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NOTICE

To,

The Members,

Zenith Steel Pipes & Industries Limited
(Formerly known as Zenith Birla (India) Limited)

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE 62N> ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF ZENITH STEEL
PIPES & INDUSTRIES LIMITED WILL BE HELD ON MONDAY, 30™ SEPTEMBER, 2024 AT
03:00 P.M. (IST) THROUGH VIDEO CONFERENCING (‘VC’) / OTHER AUDIO VISUAL MEANS,
TO TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING BUSINESS:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1. To receive, consider and adopt:

a. The Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended
March 31, 2024, together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors
thereon; and

b. The Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year

ended March 31, 2024, together with the Report of the Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a director in place of Mrs. Minal Pote (DIN: 07163539), Director who retire by
rotation and being eligible offers herself for reappointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

3. TO RATIFY REMUNERATION OF COST AUDITOR AND IN THIS REGARD, PASS THE
FOLLOWING RESOLUTION AS AN ORDINARY RESOLUTION:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to section 148 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and the rules made thereunder, as amended from time to time, the
company hereby ratifies the remuneration of Rs. 75,000/- p.a. to M/s. Y. R. Doshi & Co. who are
appointed as Cost Auditors of the company to conduct Cost Audit relating to such business of the
company as may be ordered by the Central Government under the Act, and the rules made
thereunder, for the year ended 31st March, 2025.

4. TO APPROVE INCREASE IN THE AUTHORIZED SHARE CAPITAL AND ALTERATION OF THE
CAPITAL CLAUSE OF THE MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION OF THE COMPANY:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 61(1)(a), 13 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, the Authorized Share Capital of the
Company be and is hereby increased from Rs. 155,50,00,000 /- (Rupees One Hundred Fifty Five
Crores Fifty Lakhs Only) divided into 15,55,00,000 (Fifteen Crore Fifty Five lacs Only ) equity
shares of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten) each to Rs.200,00,00,000/- (Rupees Two Hundred Crores Only)
divided into 20,00,00,000 (Twenty Crores) equity shares of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to Section 64(1)(a) and other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder, the existing Clause V of the
Memorandum of Association of the Company be altered and read as under:
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"V. The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 200,00,00,000/- (Rupees Two Hundre
Crores Only) divided into 20,00,00,000 (Twenty Crores) equity shares of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten
Only) each.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mrs. Minal Umesh Pote (DIN: 07163539), and Purushottam
Sonavane Director (DIN: 08405653), be and are hereby severally authorized to file the necessary
forms with Registrar of Companies, Mumbai and to do all acts deeds and thing as may be required
to give effect to the above resolution.”

“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution the Board be and
is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds or things as it may be necessary, proper or desirable
in this regard.”

5. ISSUE OF EQUITY SHARES AND/OR WARRANTS ON PREFERENTIAL BASIS:

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution
for reclassification of Authorised share Capital of the company as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 42 and 62(1)(c), and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Share Capital and
Debentures) Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014
and other applicable rules made there under (including any statutory modification(s) or
reenactment thereof for the time being in force) (the “Companies Act”); and in accordance with
the enabling provisions of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company (ii) the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirement)
Regulations, 2018, as amended (“ SEBI ICDR Regulations”); (iii) and the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulation 2015, as amended
(“SEBI Listing Regulations”), listing agreements entered into by the Company with the BSE
Limited (“BSE”) “Stock Exchanges”) on which the equity shares of face value of RS. 10 (Indian
Rupees Ten) each of the Company (“Equity Shares”) are listed, and any other
rules/regulations/guidelines, notifications, circulars and clarifications issued thereon from time
to time by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”); (iv) other applicable rules,
regulations, circulars, notifications, clarifications and guidelines issued thereon, from time to time
by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Reserve Bank of India, the Securities and Exchange Board
of India (“SEBI”) and/or any other statutory / regulatory authorities from time to time to the
extent applicable, and subject to execution of definitive documents and terms thereunder, and the
receipt of such approvals, consents, permissions and sanctions as may be necessary or required
from regulatory or other appropriate authorities, including but not limited to the Stock Exchanges
and subject to such conditions and modifications as might be prescribed while granting such
approvals, consents, permissions and sanctions; and which terms may be agreed to by the Board
of Directors of the Company (the “Board”, which term shall be deemed to include its committee
for such purpose) and all such other approvals, consent of the Members of the Company be and is
hereby accorded to create, offer, issue and allot 89,00,000 (Eighty Nine Lakh) Equity Shares
(“Equity Shares”) of face value of Rs. 10/- (Rupee Ten Only) each and 88,00,000 Warrants
(‘Warrants’) convertible into equivalent number of Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10/- (Rupee
Ten Only) each, to Tribus Real Estate Private Limited on Preferential allotment basis, a member
of the Promoter Group, by repayment / appropriation of its existing debt, at a price of Rs.12/-
(Rupees Twelve Only) per share (including premium of Rs. 2/- (Rupees Two Only) per equity
share) as determined by the Board in accordance with the pricing guidelines prescribed under
Regulation 164(1) and 166A of the Chapter V of the ICDR Regulations at an aggregate
consideration of Rs. 21,24,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty One Crores Twenty Four Lakhs Only) and on
such other terms and conditions as may be determined in accordance with the ICDR Regulations
or other applicable provisions of the law as may be prevailing at the time.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in accordance with SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, the ‘Relevant Date’ for
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determination of the issue price of Equity Shares and Warrants, shall be, Friday, August 30, 28
being the day immediately prior to Saturday, August 31, 2024, the date 30 (Thirty) days prior to
the date of General Meeting i.e. September 30, 2024, to approve this offer.

)

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the aforesaid issue and allotment of the Equity Shares shall be
made on the following terms and conditions: -

i) Subject to the provisions of Regulation 170 of the ICDR Regulations, the Equity Shares and
Warrants shall be allotted by the Company within a period of 15 days from the date of passing of
the shareholders’ resolution; provided that where the allotment of Equity Shares and/or Warrants
is subject to receipt of any approval from any regulatory authority, the allotment shall be
completed within a period of 15 days from the date of receipt of last of such approvals or such
other time as may be prescribed or permitted by the SEBI, Stock Exchange or other relevant
authorities.

ii) The Equity Shares allotted, including Equity Shares to be allotted pursuant to conversion of
Warrants, shall be in dematerialized form, fully paid-up and shall rank pari passu in all respects
including as to dividend, with the existing fully paid-up Equity Shares of the Company.

iii) The Equity Shares allotted, including Equity Shares to be allotted pursuant to conversion of
Warrants, and the Warrants to be issued and allotted shall be subject to lock in as provided under
Regulation 167 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations.

iv) The Equity Shares allotted, including Equity Shares to be allotted pursuant to conversion of
Warrants, will be listed and traded on the Stock Exchanges, subject to the receipt of necessary
regulatory permissions and approvals, as applicable.

v) An amount equivalent to 25% of the issue price of the Warrants shall be appropriated at the time
of making the application for Warrants.

vi) The balance 75% of the issue price shall be appropriated at the time of exercising the option to
convert the warrants into equivalent number of equity shares in one of more tranches but not
later than 18 months from the date of allotment of such convertible warrants.

vii) Inthe eventthe Warrant Holder does not exercise the option of conversion within 18 months from
the date of allotment of Warrants, the Warrants shall lapse and the deposit of 25% as indicated in
point (vii) above shall be forfeited by the Company.

viii) The issue of the Equity Shares, warrants as well as the Equity Shares arising from the exercise of
the option under the Warrants in the manner aforesaid, shall be governed by the respective
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Memorandum & Articles of Association of the Company
and also the Guidelines/Regulations issued by SEBI or any other authority as the case may be, or
any modifications thereof;

ix) Each convertible warrant shall be convertible into one (1) equity share of face value of Re. 10/-
per share;

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the names
of the Subscriber be recorded for the issue of invitation to subscribe to the Equity Shares and a
private placement offer letter in Form No. PAS-4 together with an application form be issued to
the Subscriber inviting the Subscriber to subscribe to the Equity Shares and Warrants, as per the
draft tabled at the Meeting and duly initiated by the Chairman for the purpose of identification
and consent of the Company is hereby accorded to the issuance of the same to the Subscriber
inviting the Subscriber to subscribe to the Equity Shares and/or Warrants.”
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“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Company hereby takes note of the certificate from CS Vija
Tiwari & Associates, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No. 33084, CP No. 12220)
certifying that the above issue of equity shares of the Company is being made in accordance with
the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to determine, vary, modify
or alter any of the terms and conditions of the proposed issue, as it may deem expedient, in its
discretion, subject to the provisions of the Companies Act and SEBI ICDR Regulations, without
being required to seek any further consent or approval of the members of the Company.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the above resolutions, the Board
of Directors of the Company and/or Key Management Personnel of the Company be and are
hereby severally authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as it may in its absolute
discretion deem necessary, desirable or expedient for the purpose of the issue or allotment of the
Subscription Shares, listing of the Subscription Shares on the Stock Exchanges and to resolve and
settle any questions and difficulties that may arise in the proposed issue, offer and allotment of
the Subscription Shares, utilization of issue proceeds, signing all such undertakings and
documents as may be required, and any such documents so executed and delivered or acts and
things done or caused to be done shall be conclusive evidence of the authority of the Company in
so doing and any document so executed and delivered or acts and things done or caused to be
done prior to the date hereof are hereby ratified, confirmed and approved as the acts and deeds
of the Company, and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things in connection therewith and
incidental thereto as the Board may in its absolute discretion deem fit, without being required to
seek any further consent or approval of the shareholders.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the resolution, the Board be and
is hereby authorized to engage depositories, registrars, bankers, and other consultants and
advisors to the issue and to remunerate them by way of fees and/or other charges and also to
enter into and execute all such arrangements, agreements, memoranda, documents, etc. with such
agencies, as may be required and as permitted by law.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the above resolution, the Board
be and is hereby authorized to agree and accept all such terms, condition(s), modification (s) and
alteration(s) as may be stipulated by any relevant authorities while according approval or consent
to the issue as may be considered necessary, proper or expedient and give effect to modification
(s) and to resolve and settle all questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise in this regard in the
implementation of this resolution for issue and allotment of equity shares on preferential basis
and to do all acts, deeds and things in connection therewith and incidental thereto without being
required to seek any further consent or approval of the members of the Company to the intent
that the members shall be deemed to have given their approval thereto expressly by the authority
of this resolution.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the resolution, the Board be and
is hereby authorized to delegate any or all of the powers conferred upon it by this resolution to
any committee of directors, whether existing or to be constituted, any other director(s), and/or
officer(s) of the Company.”

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Zenith Steel Pipes & Industries Limited

SD/-
MINAL UMESH POTE

Wholetime Director
Mumbai, September 07, 2024



Registered Office:
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NOTES:

1. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA’), inter alia, vide its General Circular No(s). 14/2020
dated April 8, 2020, 17/2020 dated April 13,2020, 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020 and subsequent
circulars issued in this regard, the latest being General Circular No. 09/2023 dated September 25,
2023, (collectively referred to as ‘MCA Circulars’), has permitted the holding of the AGM through
Video Conferencing ('VC') or through Other Audio-Visual Means ('OAVM'), without the physical
presence of the Members at a common venue.

2. Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, a Member entitled to attend and vote at
the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and
the proxy need not be a Member of the Company. Since this AGM is being held pursuant to the
MCA Circulars through VC/OAVM, physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with.
Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the Members will not be available for the
Annual General Meeting and hence the Proxy Form, Attendance Slip and route map of AGM are
not annexed to the Notice.

3. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from
Monday, 23rd September, 2024 to Sunday, 29th September, 2024 (both days inclusive).

4. The Members can join the EGM/AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the
scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the
Notice. The facility of participation at the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available for
1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not include large Shareholders
(Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors,
Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are
allowed to attend the EGM/AGM without restriction on account of first come first served basis.

5. The attendance of the Members attending the EGM/AGM through VC/0OAVM will be counted for
the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

6. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule20 of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended)and Regulation 44 of
SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations2015 (as amended), and the
Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated April 08, 2020, April 13,2020 and May
05, 2020 the Company is providing facility of remote e-Voting to its Members in respect of the
business to be transacted at the EGM/AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an
agreement with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through
electronic means, as the authorized agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote
e-Voting system as well as venue voting on the date of the EGM/AGM will be provided by NSDL.

7.In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April13, 2020,
the Notice calling the EGM/AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at
www.zenithsteelpipes.com. The Notice can also be accessed from the websites of the Stock
Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited at www.bseindia.com
and www.nseindia.com respectively and the EGM/AGM Notice is also available on the website of
NSDL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility) i.e. www.evoting.nsdl.com.

8. EGM/AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020and MCA
Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, MCA Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020 and
MCA Circular No. 2/2021 dated January 13, 2021.
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THE INTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS FOR REMOTEE-VOTING AND E-VOTING DURING
AGM/EGM AND JOINING MEETING THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER:

The remote e-voting period begins on 27t, September, 2024 at 9:00 A.M. and ends on 29t
September, 2024 at 05:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting
thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as
on the record date (cut-off date) i.e., 2314 September, 2024 may cast their vote electronically; The
voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital
of the Company as on the cut-off date, being 23rd September, 2024.

ii. Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at
the meeting venue.

iii. Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under
Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entities are required to provide remote e-voting facility
to its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders’ resolutions. However, it has been observed that
the participation by the public non-institutional shareholders/retail shareholders is at a negligible
level.

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed
entities in India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user
IDs and passwords by the shareholders.

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has
been decided to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login
credential, through their demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository
Participants. Demat account holders would be able to cast their vote without having to register
again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless authentication but also enhancing ease
and convenience of participating in e-voting process.

iv. In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020
on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in
demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and
Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in
their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

1. Pursuant to above said SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings
for Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode is given below:

Type of shareholders Login Method

Individual Shareholders 1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL
holding securities in demat Viz. https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal
mode with NSDL. Computer or on a mobile. On the e-Services home page click

on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is
available under ‘IDeAS’ section, this will prompt you to enter
your existing User ID and Password. After successful
authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services
under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting”
under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting
page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider
i.e. NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voting website of
NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting
period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the

10
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meeting.
2. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to
register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select
“Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.js

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by
typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com
either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the
home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon
“Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’
section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your
User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold
with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as
shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you
will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can
see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting
service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-
Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting
during the meeting.

4. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile
App “NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the QR code
mentioned below for seamless voting experience.

NSDL Mobile App is available on

‘ AppStore B Google Play

Individual =~ Shareholders 5. Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they can
holding securities in demat login through their user id and password. Option will be
mode with CDSL

made available to reach e-Voting page without any further
authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest
are https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or
www.cdslindia.com and click on New System Myeasi.

6. After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be also
able to see the E Voting Menu. The Menu will have links of e-
Voting service provider i.e. NSDL. Click on NSDL to cast your
vote.

7. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to
register is available at
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration

8. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by
providing demat Account Number and PAN No. from a link
in www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will
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authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Wobile
& Email as recorded in the demat Account. After successful
authentication, user will be provided links for the respective
ESP i.e. NSDL where the e-Voting is in progress.

Individual ~ Shareholders | You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account
(holding  securities in | through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for
demat mode) login through | e-Voting facility. Upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting
their depository | option. Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to
participants NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein
you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting
service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting
website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting
period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use
Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical
issues related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders holding | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL
securities in demat mode with | helpdesk by sending a requestat evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll
NSDL free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30

Individual Shareholders holding | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL
securities in demat mode with | helpdesk by sending a request at
CDSL helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 23058738 or
022-23058542-43

2. Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than Individual
shareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode.

» You are requested to launch the URL on internet browser: https://ivote.bigshareonline.com

= Click on “LOGIN” button under the ‘INVESTOR LOGIN’ section to Login on E-Voting Platform.

= Please enter you ‘USER ID’ (User id description is given below) and ‘PASSWORD’ which is shared
separately on you register email id.

o Shareholders holding shares in CDSL demat account should enter 16 Digit Beneficiary ID as user id.

o Shareholders holding shares in NSDL demat account should enter 8 Character DP ID followed by 8
Digit Client ID as user id.

o Shareholders holding shares in physical form should enter Event No + Folio Number registered with
the Company as user id.
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Note If you have not received any user id or password, please email from your registered efmail 1d or

contact i-vote helpdesk team. (Email id and contact number are mentioned in helpdesk section)
= Click on  AM NOT A ROBOT (CAPTCHA) option and login.

NOTE: If Shareholders are holding shares in demat form and have registered on to e-Voting system of
https://ivote.bigshareonline.com and/or voted on an earlier event of any company then they can use their
existing user id and password to login.

= [f you have forgotten the password: Click on ‘LOGIN’ under ‘INVESTOR LOGIN’ tab and then Click
on ‘Forgot your password?

» Enter “User ID”” and “Registered email ID” Click on | AM NOT A ROBOT (CAPTCHA) option and
click on ‘Reset’.

(In case a shareholder is having valid email address, Password will be sent to his / her registered e-mail
address).

Voting method for shareholders on i-VVote E-voting portal:

= After successful login, Bigshare E-voting system page will appear.

* Click on “VIEW EVENT DETAILS (CURRENT)” under ‘EVENTS’ option on investor portal.

= Select event for which you are desire to vote under the dropdown option.

» Click on “VOTE NOW?” option which is appearing on the right hand side top corner of the page.

» Cast your vote by selecting an appropriate option “IN FAVOUR”, “NOT IN FAVOUR” or
“ABSTAIN” and click on “SUBMIT VOTE”. A confirmation box will be displayed. Click “OK” to
confirm, else “CANCEL” to modify. Once you confirm, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

= Once you confirm the vote you will receive confirmation message on display screen and also you will
receive an email on your registered email id. During the voting period, members can login any number
of times till they have voted on the resolution(s). Once vote on a resolution is casted, it cannot be
changed subsequently.

» Shareholder can “CHANGE PASSWORD” or “VIEW/UPDATE PROFILE” under “PROFILE”
option on investor portal.

3. Custodian registration process for i-Vote E-Voting Website:

= You are requested to launch the URL on internet browser: https://ivote.bigshareonline.com

» Click on “REGISTER” under “CUSTODIAN LOGIN?”, to register yourself on Bigshare i-Vote e-
Voting Platform.

= Enter all required details and submit.

= After Successful registration, message will be displayed with “User id and password will be sent via
email on your registered email id”.
NOTE: If Custodian have registered on to e-Voting system of https://ivote.bigshareonline.com
and/or voted on an earlier event of any company then they can use their existing user id and password
to login.

» [f you have forgotten the password: Click on ‘LOGIN’ under ‘CUSTODIAN LOGIN’ tab and
further Click on ‘Forgot your password?
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» Enter “User ID” and “Registered email ID” Click on | AM NOT A ROBOT (CAPTC
and click on ‘RESET.
(In case a custodian is having valid email address, Password will be sent to his / her registered e-mail

address)

option

Voting method for Custodian on i-VVote E-voting portal:

= After successful login, Bigshare E-voting system page will appear.

Investor Mapping:

» First you need to map the investor with your user ID under “DOCUMENTS” option on custodian
portal.
o Click on “DOCUMENT TYPE” dropdown option and select document type power of attorney
(POA).
o Click on upload document “CHOOSE FILE” and upload power of attorney (POA) or board
resolution for respective investor and click on “UPLOAD”.

Note: The power of attorney (POA) or board resolution has to be named as the “InvestoriD.pdf”
(Mention Demat account number as Investor ID.)

o Your investor is now mapped and you can check the file status on display.

Investor vote File Upload:

= To cast your vote, select “VOTE FILE UPLOAD” option from left hand side menu on custodian
portal.

= Select the Event under dropdown option.

= Download sample voting file and enter relevant details as required and upload the same file under
upload document option by clicking on “UPLOAD”. Confirmation message will be displayed on the
screen and also you can check the file status on display (Once vote on a resolution is casted, it cannot
be changed subsequently).

Custodian can “CHANGE PASSWORD” or “VIEW/UPDATE PROFILE” under “PROFILE”
option on custodian portal.

Helpdesk for queries regarding e-voting:

Login type Helpdesk details

Shareholder*‘s other than individual In case shareholders/ investor have any queries
shareholders holding shares in Demat regarding E-voting, you may refer the Frequently
mode & Physical mode. Asked Questions (‘FAQs’) and i-Vote e-Voting

module available at
https://ivote.bigshareonline.com, under download
section or you can email us to
ivote@bigshareonline.com or call us at: 1800 22 54
22.
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4. Procedure for joining the AGM/EGM through VC/ OAVM:

For shareholder other than individual shareholders holding shares in Demat mode &
physical mode is given below:

= The Members may attend the AGM through VC/ OAVM at https://ivote.bigshareonline.com
under Investor login by using the e-voting credentials (i.e., User ID and Password).

= After successful login, Bigshare E-voting system page will appear.

» Click on “VIEW EVENT DETAILS (CURRENT)” under ‘EVENTS?’ option on investor
portal.

= Select event for which you are desire to attend the AGM/EGM under the dropdown option.

= For joining virtual meeting click on the option VOTE NOW on right hand side top corner.

* For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on “VC/OAVM?” link placed beside of “VIDEO
CONFERENCE LINK” option.

= Members attending the AGM/EGM through VC/ OAVM will be counted for the purpose of
reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The instructions for Members for e-voting on the day of the AGM/EGM are as under:-

»= The Members can join the AGM/EGM in the VC/ OAVM mode 15 minutes before the
scheduled time of the commencement of the meeting. The procedure for e-voting on the day
of the AGM/EGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for remote e-voting.

= Only those members/shareholders, who will be present in the AGM/EGM through
VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting
and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system
in the AGM/EGM.

= Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the EGM.
However, they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM/EGM.

Helpdesk for queries regarding virtual meeting:

In case shareholders/ investor have any queries regarding virtual meeting, you may refer the
Frequently Asked Questions (‘FAQs’) available at https://ivote.bigshareonline.com, under
download section or you can email us to ivote@bigshareonline.com or call us at: 1800 22 54 22.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Zenith Steel Pipes & Industries Limited

SD/-

MINAL UMESH POTE

Wholetime Director

Mumbai, September 07, 2024

Registered Office:

5thFloor, Industry House, 159,

Churchgate Reclamation, Mumbai-400020
CIN: L29220MH1960PLC011773

E-mail: zenith@zenithsteelpipes.com;
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Website: www.zenithsteelpipes.com
Tel: 022-66168400, Fax: 022-22047835

Explanatory Statement
(Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013)

As required by Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), the following explanatory
statement sets out all material facts relating to the business mentioned under Item Nos. 3 and 4
of the accompanying Notice:

Item No. 3 - To Ratify Remuneration of Cost Auditor

The company is directed, under Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) to have the audit
of its Cost records conducted by a Cost Accountant in practice. The Board of our Company has, on
the recommendation of the Audit Committee, approved the appointment of M/s. Y.R. Doshi & Co.
as the cost Auditors of the Company to conduct cost audits relating to such businesses of the
Company as may be ordered by Central Government under the Act and the rules made thereunder
for the year ending 31st March, 2024 at a remuneration of Rs. 75,000/- p.a. M/s. Y.R. Doshi & Co.
have furnished a certificate regarding their eligibility for appointment as Cost Auditors of the
Company and have vast experience in the field of cost audit and have conducted the audit of the
Cost Records of the Company for the past several years. The Board has approved the
remuneration of Rs. 75,000/- p.a. to M/s. Y. R. Doshi & Co. as the Cost Auditors.

The Resolution at Item No. 3 is recommended for approval by the members.

None of the directors and key managerial personnel of the Company or their respective relatives
are concerned or interested in Resolution mentioned at item No. 3 of the notice.

Item No. 4

INCREASE IN THE AUTHORIZED SHARE CAPITAL AND ALTERATION OF THE CAPITAL
CLAUSE OF THE MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION OF THE COMPANY.

In order to expand the capital structure of the Company and to enable the Company to issue
further shares, it is proposed to increase the authorized share capital of the Company from
Rs.155,50,00,000/- (Rupees One Hundred Fifty Five Crores Fifty Lakhs Only) divided into
15,55,00,000 (Fifteen Crore Fifty Five Lacs Only) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each
to Rs. 200,00,00,000/- (Rupees Two Hundred Crores Only) divided into 20,00,00,000 (Twenty
Crore) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each, by way of creation of an additional
4,45,00,000 (Four Crore Forty Five Lacs) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each,
ranking pari passu in all respect with existing equity shares of the company. As a consequence of
increase of authorized share capital of the Company, the existing authorized share capital clause
(Clause V) in the Memorandum of Association of the Company is required to be altered
accordingly.

The proposed increase in authorized share capital requires the approval of members of the
Company under Sections 13, 61, 64 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
as well as any other applicable statutory and regulatory approvals. The Draft amended
Memorandum of Association shall be available for inspection by the Members at the Meeting.
Therefore, the Board recommends the resolution hereof for approval of the shareholders as
Ordinary Resolution.

None of the Directors/key managerial persons of the Company or their relatives is interested,

financially or otherwise, in the aforesaid resolution. The Board recommends the ordinary
resolution as set out in Item No. 4 of the Notice for the approval by the Members.
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Item No. 5

The Company aims to be debt free. In order to meet this objective and to enhance net worth and
financial position, augment long term resources and ensuring long term viability and growth of
the Company including enhancing competitiveness, it is proposed that existing debt facilities
provided by the promoter group entity Tribus Real Estate Private Limited be capitalized by
converting/appropriating the same into equity shares and/or warrants convertible into equity
shares (‘Warrants’).

In accordance with the above, the Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on
September 7, 2024, approved inter alia issue of upto 89,00,000 Equity Shares and upto 88,00,000
Warrants convertible into equivalent number of Equity Shares of the Company (Warrants) to
Tribus Real Estate Private Limited, member of promoter group, by repayment/appropriation of
its existing debt, by way of a preferential issue.

Regulations, 2018 (the ‘SEBI (ICDR) Regulations’).Since the Company is a listed Company, the
proposed Preferential Issue is in terms of the provisions of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations 2018 (as
amended), the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeover) Regulations, 2011 (as amended), and other applicable provisions, if any, and Sections
42 and 62(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of
Securities) Rules, 2014 and Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014.

The information as required under SEBI (ICDR) Regulations 2018 and as per the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 13(2) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures)
Rules, 2014 and Rule 14 of the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014
are given below:

As per Section 42, 62, and 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, approval of shareholders through E-
Voting is required for Issue of Equity Shares and Warrants on preferential basis and hence the
resolution is placed before the shareholders. In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and as per Regulation 163 and other applicable regulation of Chapter V - Preferential Issue
of SEBI ICDR Regulations, the required disclosures regarding proposed issue are as under: -

. Objects of the Preferential issue:
To enhance net worth and financial position, reducing debt and ensuring long term viability and
growth of the Company, including enhancing its competitiveness.

. Maximum number of specified securities to be issued:

The Company intends to issue 89,00,000 Equity Shares of face value Rs. 10/- per share and
88,00,000 Warrants convertible into equivalent number of Equity Shares of face value Rs.10/- per
share.

. Amount which the company intends to raise by way of such securities.

The company intends to repay / appropriate Rs. 21,24,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty One Crores
Twenty Four Lakhs Only) by way of issuance of 89,00,000 Equity Shares of face value Rs. 10/- per
share and 88,00,000 Warrants convertible into equivalent number of Equity Shares of the
Company of face value Rs. 10/- per share on preferential Basis to Tribus Real Estate Private
Limited, a Promoter Group entity.

. Intention of promoters / directors / key managerial personnel to subscribe to the offer:

Tribus Real Estate Private Limited, a Promoter Group entity intends to subscribe to 89,00,000
Equity Shares of face value Rs. 10/- per share and 88,00,000 Warrants convertible into equivalent
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number of Equity Shares of the Company of face value Rs.10/- per share. Other than the al&¥e,
None of the other members of Promoter and Promoter Group, Directors and Key Management
Personnel has the intention to subscribe to the offer.

. The shareholding pattern before and after completion of the proposed preferential issue
would be as under: -

PRE-ISSUE EQUITY (Note *) | POST-ISSUE EQUITY (Note $)
SR. CATEGORY
NO. No. of Shares | % of Share No. of Shares % of Share
Held Holding Held Holding
A | Promoters’ holding:
Individual 34 0.00 34 0.00
Bodies Corporate 2,22,57,123 15.64 3,99,57,123 24.98
Sub Total (A) 2,22,57,157 15.64 3,99,57,157 24.98
B |Non-Promoters’
holding:
1 |Institutional
Investors
Institutional Domestic 1,07,349 0.08 1,07,349 0.07
Institutional Foreign 0 0 0 -
Sub Total (B) 1,07,349 0.08 1,07,349 0.07
2 | Non-Institutional
Investors
Bodies Corporate 1,56,99,359 11.03 1,56,99,359 9.81
Directors and Relatives 0 0 0 -
Indian Public 10,00,41,923 70.30 10,00,41,923 62.53
Others [including State 41,74,660 2.93 41,74,660 2.61
Government, HUF, NRI,
IEPF Authorities, etc.]
Sub Total (C) 11,99,15,942 84.28 11,99,15,942 74.95
GRAND TOTAL 14,22,80,448 100.00 15,99,80,448 100.00
(A+B+(C)

Note *: The above shareholding pattern has been prepared on the basis of shareholding data as on
June 30, 2024 as provided by the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent.

Note $: The post issue shareholding percentage is determined considering existing capital of
14,22,80,448 equity shares plus assuming that the 89,00,000 equity shares will fully subscribe plus
88,00,000 warrants proposed to be issued and allotted under the present issue will be fully
subscribed and will be fully converted into equivalent number of equity shares of the Company.
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6. Proposed time within which the preferential issue shall be completed:

The Company shall complete the allotment of the Equity and Warrants within a period of 15
(fifteen) days from the later of:

(i) date of the approval of this special resolution; or
(ii) receipt of last of the approval/permission required for such allotment from any regulatory
authority or the Central Government (including but not limited to the in-principle approval
of the Stock Exchanges for issuance of the securities stated above to the Proposed Allottees).

Further, upon exercise of option to convert the warrant into equity shares by the proposed
allottees, the Company shall issue and allot equivalent number of equity shares of the company
within fifteen days of such exercise of conversion of warrant.

7. The name of the proposed allottees, the identities of the persons who are the ultimate
beneficial owners of the shares and/or who ultimately control the proposed allottees, the
percentage of post preferential issue capital that may be held by them:

Sr.  |Details of Ultimate Pre-Issue Proposed Post-Issue
No. |subscriber beneficial Allotment| (Refer Note 1 below this table)
owner of | Category | No.of |Percentag Category | No.of |Percenta
the Shares | e holding Shares ge
proposed (%) (includin | holding
allottee g post (%)
conversio
n of
warrants
into
equivalen
t number
of Equity
Shares
1 Tribus Real | Please refer |Promoter NIL NIL|1,77,00,00 | Promoter (1,77,00,00f 11.06
Estate Private Note 2 Group 0 Group 0
Limited Below Entity Entity

Note 1: Please refer “Note $” to Table under the heading “Item 5. The shareholding pattern before
and after completion of the proposed preferential issue would be as under” above.

Note 2: Details of Ultimate beneficial owner of the proposed allottee:

Shareholder 1: Asian
Distributors Private Limited

Asian Distributors Private

Limited is further owned and
controlled by Sunanda Medical

Institute (Public Charitable

Trust)

Shareholder 2: Birla Bombay
Private Limited

Birla Bombay Private Limited

Owned and Controlled by Birla
Infrastructure & Constructions
Pvt. Ltd.

Shareholder 3: Birla
International Private Limited

Birla International Private
Limited is owned and controlled
by Birla Infrastructure Ltd.
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The Trust Sunanda Medical Birla Infrastructure & Birla Infrastructure Ltd. 1
Institute is represented by its Constructions Pvt. Ltd. is owned owned and controlled by Shri
Trustee Shri Arun Singhi. and controlled by Shri Krishna Krishna Arpan Trust

Arpan Trust.
The Trust Shri Krishna Arpan

The Trust Shri Krishna Arpan Trust is represented by its
Trust is represented by its Trustee | Trustee Shri Puskar Natu.
Shri Puskar Natu.

8. In terms of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, the Company hereby undertakes that:

i. An amount equivalent to 25% of the Issue Price payable at the time of subscription and
allotment of each Warrant shall be converted/adjusted against the existing debt. The balance
75% amount payable by the Warrant holder(s) shall be converted/adjusted against the
existing debt if and when the right attached to Warrant(s) to subscribe for the Equity Share(s)
is exercised. The amount converted/adjusted against Warrants shall be adjusted /
appropriated against the Issue Price for the resultant equity share(s).;

ii. If the amount payable on account of the re-computation of price is not paid within the time
stipulated in the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, the underlying Equity Shares shall continue to be
locked- in till the time such amount is paid by the proposed allottees.

iii. The issue of the Equity Shares, Warrants as well as the Equity Shares arising from the exercise
of the option under the Warrants, shall be governed by the respective provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Memorandum & Articles of Association of the Company and also the
Guidelines/Regulations issued by SEBI or any other authority as the case may be, or any
modifications thereof;

iv. Each Warrants shall be convertible into one (1) equity share of face value of Rs.10/- per share;
and

v. The Equity Shares, Warrants as well as the Equity Shares arising from the exercise of the option
under the Warrants to be issued on preferential basis to above allottee, shall be locked in for
the period as prescribed under SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirement)
Regulations, 2018.

9. Willful Defaulter or Fraudulent Borrower:

Neither the issuer nor any of its promoters or directors are willful defaulters or fraudulent
borrowers.

10. Pricing of Preferential Issue:

The Board has fixed the price of Rs 12 /- (Rupees Twelve only) per Equity shares and per Warrant
respectively, as the issue price. This is higher than the price determined in terms of Regulation
164(1) and 166A of the ICDR Regulations. The pricing certificate is issued by CS Vijay Kumar
Tiwari of M/s. Vijay S. Tiwari & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries (CP No.:12220; Mem.
No. 33084) having his office at 104, 1st Floor, New Krishna Niwas CHSL, Roshan Nagar, Opp.
Starbucks, Chandavarkar Road, Borivali (West), Mumbai-400092 and the valuation report is
issued by IBBI Registered Valuer M/s VS Jadon & Co Valuers LLP (IBBI Regn
No.IBBI/RVE/02/2023/191-) having his office at Office ]-1031, First Floor, Akshar Business Park
Plot No. 03. Sector-25, Vashi, Near APMC Market, Sanpada, Thane, Maharashtra-400703. The
document is available on website of the company at www.zenithsteelpipes.com. The said
certificate shall also be available for inspection at the registered office of the Company on all
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working days (excluding Saturdays and Sundays) during 10:00 A.M. to 5:00 P.M. up to the da
Annual General Meeting and all also be available during the Annual General Meeting.

Basis on which the price would be arrived at:

The Equity Shares of the Company are listed on BSE Limited (‘BSE’) and National Stock Exchange
of India Limited (‘NSE’) (“Stock Exchanges”). The Equity Shares are frequently traded in terms of
the SEBI ICDR Regulations and the same has been considered for determining the floor price in
accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

The highest trading volume in respect of the equity shares of the issuer has been recorded during
the preceding 90 trading days prior to the relevant date is on BSE Limited.

In terms of the applicable provisions of the Chapter V of SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2022, the minimum price for the preferential issue of
each equity share to be issued shall be a price, being higher of the following:

i. Average of 90 trading days of volume weighted average price of the Equity Shares of the
Company quoted on the BSE, preceding the Relevant Date is Rs. 10.17.

or

ii. Average of 10 trading days of volume weighted average price of the Equity Shares of the
Company quoted on the BSE, preceding the Relevant Date is Rs. 8.96.

Further, in terms of Regulation 166A of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, the Company has obtained
valuation report from M/s VS Jadon & Co Valuers LLP (IBBI Regn No.IBBI/RVE/02/2023/191-)
having his office at Office J-1031, First Floor, Akshar Business Park Plot No. 03. Sector-25, Vashi,
Near APMC Market, Sanpada, Thane, Maharashtra-400703 who has determined the valuer per
equity share of the Company at Rs. 10.17. The document is available on website of the company
at www.zenithsteelpipes.com.

The Board has fixed the floor price as Rs.12/- (Rupees Twelve only) per Equity Share / per
Warrant (including premium of Rs. 2/- per Equity Share / per Warrants) and the said price fixed
by the Board is higher than the above prices determined in terms of the ICDR Regulation and other
applicable provisions.

The justification for the allotment proposed to be made for consideration other than cash
together with valuation report of the registered valuer:

Not Applicable.

Relevant Date

In terms of the provisions of Chapter V of the ICDR Regulations, relevant date for determining the
floor price for this Preferential Allotment of equity shares is August 30, 2024, being the day
immediately prior to Saturday, August 31, 2024, 30 days prior to the date of Annual General
Meeting i.e. September 30, 2024.

However, the percentage of shareholding and voting rights exercised by the shareholders of the
Company will change in accordance with the change in the shareholding pattern pursuant to the
Preferential Allotment.

Change in control if any consequent to preferential issue

The existing Promoters of the Company will continue to be in control of the Company and there
will not be any change in the management or control of the Company as a result of the proposed
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preferential issue.

No. of persons to whom allotment on preferential basis has already been made during the
year, in terms of number of securities as well as price:

None.
Undertakings:

a) The Issuer Company undertakes that they shall re-compute the price of the Equity Shares in
terms of the provisions of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, as amended, where it is required to do
so.

(b) The Issuer Company undertakes that if the amount payable on account of the re-computation
of price is not paid within the time stipulated in terms of the provision of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations,
2018, the equity shares issued shall continue to be locked-in till the time such amount is paid by
the allottees.

(c) The entire pre-preferential holding, if any, of the proposed allottees shall be locked in for the
period.as prescribed under SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2018.

Lock-in period

The Shares to be offered, issued and allotted shall be subject to Lock-in as provided under the
provisions of ICDR Regulations. The entire pre preferential shareholding of the above allottees, if
any, shall be locked-in from the relevant date up to the period of 90 trading days from the date of
trading approval as per Regulation 167 of the ICDR Regulations

Certificate from CS Ankush Sharma, Practising Company Secretary.

A copy of the certificate, from CS Vijay Kumar Tiwari of M/s. Vijay S. Tiwari & Associates,
Practicing Company Secretaries (CP No.: 12220; Mem. No. 33084) having their office at 104, 1st
Floor, New Krishna Niwas CHSL, Roshan Nagar, Opp. Starbucks, Chandavarkar Road, Borivali
(West), Mumbai-400092, certifying that the issue of equity shares as well as convertible warrants
on preferential basis is being made in accordance with requirements of Chapter V of the SEBI
ICDR Regulations, 2018 shall be available for inspection at the Registered office of the Company
on all working days (excluding Saturdays and Sundays) during 10:00 A.M. to 5:00 P.M. up to the
date of Extra Ordinary General Meeting and also be available during the Annual General Meeting.
The said Certificate will be uploaded on the website of the Company at
www.zenithsteelpipes.com.

Details of the Directors, Key Managerial Persons or their relatives, in any way, concerned
or interested in the said resolution.

Except Tribus Real Estate Private Limited, a Promoter Group entity, none of Directors, Key
Managerial Persons or their relatives are concerned or interested in the above referred resolution
to the extent of their shareholding in the Company and the proposed allotment.

Other disclosures

In accordance with SEBI ICDR Regulations,

i) The Company has not allotted any equity shares on preferential basis in the financial year.
ii) Neither the Company nor any of its Promoters and Directors has been declared as a wilful
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defaulter or a fraudulent borrower or a fugitive economic offender.
iii) The pre- preferential holding of the proposed allottees are in dematerialized form.
iv)The issue of Equity Shares shall be made in accordance with the provisions of the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, the Companies Act, 2013 and
relevant regulations of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations and shall be made in a dematerialized form
only.

The Board of Directors of the Company believes that the proposed preferential issue is in the best
interest of the Company and its members. None of Directors of the Company nor Key Managerial
personnel are interested in the above resolution . The Board of Directors recommends the passing
of the Resolution as set out in Item No. 5 as special resolution for your approval.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Zenith Steel Pipes & Industries Limited

SD/-

MINAL UMESH POTE
Wholetime Director
Mumbai, September 07, 2024

Registered Office:

5thFloor, Industry House, 159,

Churchgate Reclamation, Mumbai-400020
CIN: L29220MH1960PLC011773

E-mail: zenith@zenithsteelpipes.com;
Website: www.zenithsteelpipes.com

Tel: 022-66168400, Fax: 022-22047835
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DETAILS OF THE DIRECTOR SEEKING APPOINTMENT OF A NEW DIRECTOR OR RE-
APPOINTMENT AT THE 62rd ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

(PURSUANT TO REGULATION 36(3) OF THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATION AND DISCLOSURE

REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015)

Name of the Director Minal Umesh Pote
DIN 07163539

Date of Birth 05.09.1975

Date of first Appointment On the Board 14.08.2019

Other Directorships (Listed/Public Companies) 1
Membership/Chairmanship in the committees of Nil

other Listed Companies

Education Qualification M.com

Brief Resume of the Director including nature of
expertise in specific function areas and their
experience etc.

Mrs. Minal Umesh Pote, post graduate
in Commerce having ten years’
experience  in  Accounts and
Administration. Responsibilities
included overall authority of the
financial operation of the company,
accounting, budget preparation,
audit, taxation; preparation of
financial statement, analysis of
business trends & daily operating
cost.

Number of Shares held in the Company:

NIL

Relationships between Directors inter-se

No other Directors are related to
her

Details of remuneration sought to be paid

Nil

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Zenith Steel Pipes & Industries Limited

SD/-

MINAL UMESH POTE
Wholetime Director
Mumbai, September 07, 2024

Registered Office:

5thFloor, Industry House, 159,

Churchgate Reclamation, Mumbai-400020
CIN: L29220MH1960PLC011773

E-mail: zenith@zenithsteelpipes.com;
Website: www.zenithsteelpipes.com

Tel: 022-66168400, Fax: 022-22047835
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Our directors have pleasure in presenting the 62rd Annual Report and the Company’s audited

financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS:

(‘in Lakhs)
CONSOLIDATED STANDALONE

PARTICULARS YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED

14,321.66 16,492.31 31-03-2024 31-03-2023
Revenue from operation 529.93 706.77 14,321.66 16,405.59
Other Income 14,851.59 17,199.08 529.93 706.76
Total Income 504.29 (517.09) 14,851.59 17,112.35
PBDIT 292.40 348.36 506.71 924.07
Interest & Finance Exp. 211.89 (865.45) 292.40 317.87
PBDT 258.19 245.17 214.31 606.20
Depreciation (46.30) (1,110.62) 258.19 245.17
PBT - - (43.88) 361.03
Less: Current tax - - - -
Earlier Year’s Tax - - - -
Deferred Tax Liability (46.30) (1,110.62) - -
Profit/(Loss) after tax (PAT) (23.34) (327.73) (43.88) 361.03
From continuing operations
Profit/(Loss) from discontinuing - - (23.34) (327.73)
Operations
Tax expense of discontinuing (69.64) (327.73) - -
operations
Profit/(loss) after tax (PAT) from (4.00) 9.60 (23.34) (327.73)
Discontinuing operations
Other Comprehensive Income 4.55 9.60
Exceptional Expenses (73.64) (1,428.75)
Net Profit/Loss for the year (73.64) (1,428.75) (62.67) 42.90
Profit/Loss transferred  to 14,321.66 16,492.31 (62.67) 42.90
Reserve

2. OPERATING AND FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE:

The revenue from operations for the year has been Rs. 14,321.66 Lakh as against Rs. 16,405.59
Lakh in the previous year. The Net Loss of our Company, for the year amounted to Rs. 62.67 lakhs
as against profit Rs. 42.90 lakhs during the previous financial year 2022-23.

3. DIVIDEND:

In view of huge losses and financial crunches, our directors have not recommended dividend for

the year ended March 31, 2024.
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4. EXPORT PERFORMANCE:

Exports turnover decreased to Rs. 3493.25 Lakh for the year ended 31st March, 2024 as compared
to Rs. 12,428.33 Lakh in previous year.

5. LOCK-OUT AT KHOPOLI UNIT:
Lock-out, declared by them management at its Khopoli unit in November, 2013 is still continuing.

6. POSSESION OF IMMOVABLE ASSETS AT KHOPOLI UNIT UNDER SECURITISATION &
RECONSTRUCTION OF ASSETS AND ENFORCEMENT OF SECURITY INTEREST ACT, 2002
(SARFAESI).

Pursuant to Companies account becoming NPA, consortium of banks led by State Bank of India
had moved its application to District Collector Alibaug for Physical Possession of Company’s
immovable property at Khopoli unit. As the same was contested by the company and matter is
subjudice in DRT court. Meanwhile State Bank of India sold their loan Account to Asset
Reconstruction Company.

7. SHARE CAPITAL:

During the year under review the Company has not allotted any shares to promoters and non-
promoters.

8. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS:
There is no change in the nature of the business of the Company during the year.

9. MATERIAL CHANGES BETWEEN THE DATE OF THE BOARD REPORT AND END OF THE
FINANCIAL YEAR:

There have been no material changes and commitments, which effect the financial position of the
company which have occurred between the end of financial year to which the financial statement
relate and the date of this report.

10. EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTIONS PLAN:

No shares have been allotted under the ESOP till date. The Company has not granted any stock
options during the financial year ended 31st March, 2024.

11. SUBSIDIARY COMPANY:

The Company has two wholly owned subsidiaries at UAE and USA which has been setup to
develop the overseas market for the Company.

The Accounts of the wholly owned Subsidiaries, namely Zenith (USA) Inc. and Zenith Middle East
FZ LLC for the year ended 31st March, 2024 have been received by the Company and a statement
pursuant to section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013, forms part of this Annual Report. Our
directors have pleasure in enclosing the consolidated financial statements of the Company in
accordance with the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
and Indian Accounting standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

In compliance with the general circular issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA),

Government of India, the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit & Loss and other documents of the
subsidiary are not attached hereto. As per the general exemption, a statement containing brief
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financial details of the Company’s subsidiary for the year ended 31st March, 2024, is includ&é
this Annual Report. The Annual Accounts of the subsidiary and the related detailed information
will be made available to any Member of the Company/its subsidiary seeking such information at
any point of time and are also available for inspection by any Member of the Company/its
subsidiary at the Registered Office of the Company/its subsidiary.

12. FIXED DEPOSITS:
(i) Details of Deposits Accepted u/s.58A of the Companies Act,1956
The Company has outstanding deposits accepted u/s 58A of the Companies Act, 1956 and Rules

made thereunder under Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 1975. Accordingly, the details
relating to deposits covered under the Companies Act, 1956 are given below:

1. Deposits Accepted during the year NIL
Deposits remained unpaid or unclaimed as at end of the year 2159.96
3. \Whether there has been any default in repayment of deposits or payment |Principal Interest

of interest thereon during the year and if so, number of such cases and the
total amount involved:

[.  Atthe beginning of the year 2,161.51 4133.06

ii. Maximum during the year 2,161.51 437443

[1I. At the end of the year 2159.96 4374.43
4. Thedetailsof deposits whicharenotincompliance withtherequirementsof |Not Applicable

Chapter V of the Act

(ii) Details of Deposits which are not in compliance with the requirements of Chapter V of the
Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has not accepted any deposits under Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules,
2013. Accordingly, the details relating to deposits, covered under Chapter V of the Companies act,
2013 are not given. Therefore, there are no deposits which are not in compliance with the
requirements of Chapter V of the companies Act, 2013.

13. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT:

In compliance with Regulation 34 (2) (e) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, a separate section on Management Discussion and Analysis
Report which also includes further details on the state of affairs of the Company, as approved by
the Board of Directors is attached herewith Annexure ‘A’ of this report.

14. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

A report on Corporate Governance along with the Compliance Certificate from the Practicing
Company Secretary is annexed here to and forms part of this report as Annexure ‘B’.

15. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors of the Company state as
under that:

1. In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable Accounting Standards had been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

2. The selected accounting policies were applied consistently and the Directors made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give true and fair view of the state of affairs
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of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024 and the Loss of the Company fo
financial year ended 31st March, 2024.

3. Proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safe guarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

4. The annual accounts have been prepared on a ‘going concern’ basis;

5. Internal financial controls had been laid down to be followed by the company and that such
internal financial Controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

6. Proper systems had been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

16. AUDITORS:
a) Statutory Auditors

M/s. CKSP and CO LLP, Chartered Accountants Mumbai, (FRN: 131228W /W100044) were
appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company in the 58t Annual General Meeting (AGM) for
five years. They fulfill the eligibility criteria and their appointment is in pursuance with the
provisions of the companies act, 2013 and rules made thereunder.

The first proviso to section 139(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 has been omitted vide section 40
of the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017 notified on 7th May, 2018. Therefore, it is not
mandatory for the Company to place the matter relating to appointment of statutory auditor for
ratification by members at every Annual General Meeting. Hence the Company has not included
the ratification of statutory auditors in the Notice of AGM.

b) Internal and Management Auditors:

The Company has appointed M/s. D EV A M & Associates LLP, Chartered Accounts as its Internal
and Management Auditors to carry out the Internal Audit of various operational areas of the
company.

c) Cost Auditors:

The Board had appointed M/s. Y.R. Doshi & Co. Cost Accountants as the Cost Auditor for the F.Y.
2023-24 atremuneration of Rs. 75,000/- p.a. subject to ratification by the members in the ensuing
Annual General Meeting.

17. SECRETARIAL AUDITORS’ REPORT:

Secretarial Audit by Anil Somani & Associates, Practicing Company Secretary (CP No.13379) is
attached here with as an ‘Annexure C’ to this Report.

18. AUDITOR’S REMARK:
The Board of Director’s explanation to auditor’s remark is as follows:

(i) Explanation for Statutory Auditor’s Remark

Sr.

No.

Statutory Auditor’s Remark Directors’ explanation
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The Company has not complied with the
provisions of section 74 of the companies Act,
2013 read with Rules made thereunder with
regard to repayment of deposits and interest on
due date, maintenance of liquid assets to the
extent required and also not fully complied with
the orders passed by the Company Law Board.

The company has taken action on priority
the dues of deposit holders who are incapacitated
and to comply with the orders of existing
authorities. For the rest, the company has already
started the process of settling their dues through
sale proceeds of the assets sold by MPID court of
the other Company who has given NOC for using
the amount towards repayment of the Fixed
Deposits of the Zenith Birla (India) Limited
currently known as Zenith Steel Pipes &
Industries Limited and will complete it before the
end of Financial Year 2024-25.

With reference to Note No 43 regarding the
balance of Trade Payables, Trade Receivables,
Loans, Advances, Deposits, intergroup, current
liabilities, borrowing from others etc. being not
confirmed by the parties due to pending
reconciliation the management has not sent
direct confirmations to parties and hence our
inability to state whether these balances are
recoverable /payable to the extent stated.

Reconciliation of balances of sundry creditors,
debtors and other parties are an ongoing basis
and the figures would be ascertained only when
the reconciliation is finalized. Hence at this stage,
impact of the same is not ascertainable.

The Company has made a provision of Rs. 41.07
lakhs in respect of certain current bank accounts
maintained with various banks, which have been
frozen by regulatory authorities. In the absence
of bank statements and year-end balance
confirmations, we are unable to comment on its
impact, if any, on the books of account.

The company is pursuing with the banks to get the
/Account unfrozen and is of the view that the
provision made is sufficient and no further loss is
expected.

The Company has accumulated losses exceeding
the share capital and reserves and its net worth
has been fully eroded. These conditions indicate
the existence of a material uncertainty that may
cast significant doubt about the company’s ability|
to continue as a going concern. However, the
standalone financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis considering
management’s assessment of the current
situation and future prospects.

On account of strategic understanding with
suppliers/customers, which is continuing, the
Company is on revival mode and is operating
some of its units. In view of the same going
concern concept holds good.

The Company has considered inventory value of
Rs. 1,986.47 Lakhs as on 31st March, 2024 in the
standalone financial statements by adopting
weighted average cost method as informed to us.
Since adequate information and necessary
supporting evidences for the valuation were not
made available to us, as a result the impact of
shortage/ excess of inventory, if any, could not
be ascertained and adjusted in the books.

Currently the company is calculating the
inventory based on variable cost incurred for the
quarter and Work in Progress is based on work
completed. Accordingly, valuation of inventories
has been arrived and according to the
management they represent a fair value.

(ii) Explanation for Secretarial Auditor’s Remark:

Sr.

No.

Secretarial Auditor’s Remark

Directors’ explanation
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Prosecution has been filed against the company
by Registrar of Companies, Mumbai for Non-
Compliance of order of Hon’ble Company Law
Board, Mumbai dated 18.08.2014 with regard to
defaulted in payment to depositors.

The company has taken action on prid
clear the dues of deposit holders who are
incapacitated and to comply with the orders of
existing authorities. For the rest, the company
has already started the process of settling their
dues through sale proceeds of the assets sold by
MPID court of the other Company who has given
NOC for using the amount towards repayment of
the Fixed Deposits of the Zenith Birla (India)
Limited currently known as Zenith Steel Pipes &
Industries Limited.

The company has defaulted in payment of
principal amount as well as interest to
depositors. The Registrar of Companies, Mumbai
has issued show cause notice to company and
officer in default under Section 74(3) of the
Companies Act, 2013

The company has taken action on priority to
clear the dues of deposit holders who are
incapacitated and to comply with the orders of
existing authorities. For the rest, the company
has already started the process of settling their
dues through sale proceeds of the assets sold by
MPID court of the other Company who has given
NOC for using the amount towards repayment of
the Fixed Deposits of the Zenith Birla (India)
Limited currently known as Zenith Steel Pipes &
Industries Limited and will complete it before
the end of Financial Year 2024-25.

The company has violated provision of SEBI Act,
1992 and SEBI Regulations for issue of GDR. The
SEBI vide order dated 31.03.2021 banned the
Company from the capital market for three years.
/As informed to us the Company has filed appeal
against the order.

The Securities Appellate Tribunal (SAT) Mumbai
has partly allowed the appeal filed by the
Company and reduced penalty from Rs. 10.00 cr.
to Rs. 25.00 Lakh

The Company has already submitted the reply in
respect of GDR related notices to SEBI and also
filed an appeal in respect of said order to SAT.
The Securities Appellate Tribunal (SAT)
Mumbai has partly allowed the appeal filed by
the Company and reduced penalty from Rs.
10.00 cr. to Rs. 25.00 Lakh and reduced
debarment period to the penalty undergone.
The penalty against chairman and managing
director and his debarment from the

The Regional Director, Western Region, Mumbai
has filed a petition before Hon’ble National
Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai against the

221/222/241/242/246 rw. 339 of the
Companies Act, 2013 on 08.04.2022 and Serious
Fraud Investigation Office (SFIO) is also
investigating the affairs of the company.

Company, its directors/KMPs under Sectionby way of rule and also filed a reply and an

The Company has filed a writ petition before the
Hon'ble High Court challenging the SFIO
Investigation in which stay grant by High court

interim application for the maintainability of the
petition filed by the Regional Director, Western
Region, Mumbai.

Composition of Board of Director was not in
accordance with Regulation 17 of SEBI (LODR),
2015. (01st April to 15.07.2023)

The Company has already complied with the
Regulation 17 of SEBI (LODR), 2015.

Composition of Nomination & Remuneration
Committee was not in accordance with
Regulation 19 of SEBI (LODR), 2015. (April to
September, 2023).

The Company has already complied with the
Regulation 19 of SEBI (LODR), 2015.
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The listed entity has delayed filed Annual
Secretarial Compliance Certificate for
31.03.2023 and the same is also not filed in XBRL
mode as per Regulation 24A of SEBI (LODR),
2015 with the stock exchanges.

The Company was making all the effort$to file
the Annual Secretarial Compliance Certificate
within due time, but due to some technical
issues we are not able to upload within the
prescribed timeline.

The listed entity has delayed filed Related Party
Transaction Report for the half year ended
30.09.2023 as per Regulation 23(9) of SEBI
(LODR), 2015 with the stock exchanges.

The Company was making all the efforts to file
Related Party Transaction Report for the half
year ended 30.09.2023 within due time, but due
to some technical issues we are not able to
upload within the prescribed timeline.

The listed entity has not filed annual report of FY
2022-23 in XBRL mode with the stock exchanges
as per Regulation 34 of SEBI (LODR), 2015.

The Company will take all the necessary steps to
comply with the applicable Regulation.

10.

Details of Board Meetings provided are not
correct in quarterly Corporate Governance
Report for December, 2023

The Company will take all the necessary steps to
comply with the same.

11.

The listed entity has delayed filed outcome of
Board Meeting held on 07.11.2023

The Company was making all the efforts to file
outcome of Board Meeting held on 07.11.2023
within due time, but due to some technical
issues we are not able to upload within the
prescribed timeline.

12.

The listed entity has delayed filed with the stock
exchanges advertisement in newspaper for
financial results for the quarter ended
30.06.2023 as per Regulation 47 of SEBI (LODR),
2015.

The Company was making all the efforts to file
advertisement in newspaper for financial
results for the quarter ended 30.06.2023 as per
Regulation 47 of SEBI (LODR), 2015 within due
time, but due to some technical issues we are not
able to upload within the prescribed timeline.

13.

The listed entity has not maintained updated
website as per Regulation 46 of SEBI (LODR)
Regulation, 2015

The Company has maintained website of the
company properly, but few of the points are
getting delayed to uploaded on the website,, The
Company will take all the necessary measures to
not getting delayed again.

14.

The Company has not adopted all applicable
policies prescribed wunder SEBI (LODR)
Regulation, 2015.

The Company has already taken the cognizance
of the not adopting Policy of Preservation of
Documents and Archival policy prescribed
under SEBI LODR Regulations, 2015.
Accordingly, The Company will take all the
necessary steps to comply.

15.

The Company has not adopted Policy of
Preservation of Documents and Archival policy
prescribed under SEBI LODR Regulations, 2015.

The Company will take all the necessary steps to
comply.

16.

The Company has not filed Annual Performance
Report (APR) to RBI for foreign subsidiaries of
the Company (Zenith USA and Zenith Middle
East).

The Company is under process for filing of FLA
return to RBI for foreign subsidiaries of the
Company (Zenith USA and Zenith Middle East).
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The Company has not filed Form MGT-14 for The Company will file the Form with
approval of director’s report FY 2022-23 and ffees.

Form CRA-2 for appointment of cost auditor for
the financial year 2023-24.

19. NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD:

Seven meetings of the Board were held during the year. For details of the meetings of the board,
please refer to the Corporate governance report, which forms part of this report.

20. BOARD OF DIRECTORS, EVALUATION ETC

Company’s Policy on Directors Appointment and Remuneration etc.

The Company has prepared a policy on Director’s appointment and remuneration pursuant to
Section 178 of the Act. The Company has also laid down criteria for determining qualifications,
positive attributes and independence of Director.

Formal Annual Evaluation

1. The Formal Annual Evaluation has been made as follows:

a. The Company has laid down evaluation criteria separately for Board, Independent Directors,
Directors other than Independent Directors and various committees of the Board. The criteria for
evaluation of Directors included parameters such as willingness and commitment to fulfil duties,
high level of professional ethics, and contribution during meetings and timely disclosure of all the
notice/details required under various provisions of laws. Based on such criteria, the evaluation
was done in a structured manner through peer consultation & discussion.

b. Evaluation of the Board was made by a separate Meeting of Independent Directors.

c. The performance evaluations of all committees were done by the Board of Directors namely:

I. Audit Committee
ii. Nomination and Remuneration Committee
iii. Stakeholders Relationship Committee.

d. Performance evaluation of non-Independent Directors was done by Separate meeting of
Independent Directors.

e. Evaluation of Independent Directors was done (excluding the Director who was evaluated) by
the Board of Directors of the Company.

f. In addition, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee has carried out evaluation of every
Director’s performance as required under Section 178(2) of Companies Act, 2013.

g. The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process.
2. Number of Board Meetings conducted during the year under review:
The Company had 7 (Seven) times Board Meetings during the financial year on 29-05-2023, 15-

07-2023,11-08-2023,07-09-2023,06-11-2023, 13-02-2024 and 27-03-2024 the details of which
are given in the Corporate Governance Report. The intervening gap between the Meetings was
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with in the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.
21. DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENCE:

The Company has received declarations from all the Independent Directors confirming that they
meet the criteria of independence as prescribed under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 read
with the Schedules and Rules issued there under.

22.POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

The Company’s policy on directors’ appointment and remuneration and other matters provided
in Section 178(3) of the Act, has been disclosed in the corporate governance report, which forms
part of the directors’ report.

23. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY:

The details in respect of internal financial control and their adequacy are included in the
Management Discussion & Analysis, which forms part of this report.

24. AUDIT COMMITTEE:

The details pertaining to composition of audit committee are included in the Corporate
Governance Report, which forms part of this report.

25. STATEMENT CONCERNING DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK
MANAGEMENT POLICY OF THE COMPANY:

Risk is an integral part of any business and therefore, Risk Management is an important function
that the business management has to perform to ensure sustain able business growth.

The Board of the Company has framed the Risk Management Policy. The details of the policy are
as updated on website of the company www.zenithsteelpipes.com. The risk management includes
identifying types of risks and its assessment, risk handling and monitoring and reporting. At
present the company has not identified any element of risk which may threaten the existence of
the company.

The Company does not fall under the ambit of top 1000 listed entities, determined on the basis of
market capitalization as at the end of the immediately preceding financial year. Hence, compliance
under Regulation21of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
is not applicable.

26. DETAILS OF POLICY DEVELOPED AND IMPLEMENTED BY THE COMPANY ON ITS
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES:

The Company has not developed and implemented any Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives
as the said provisions are not applicable.

27. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER SECTION 186
OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

During the year under review, the Company has not given loans, guarantees or investments under
Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. The details of the investments made by the Company are
provided in the accompanying financial statements.
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28. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES:

In accordance with the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made
thereunder, all related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were
on arm’s length basis and were in the ordinary course of business, the details of which are
included in the notes forming part of the financial statements.

There were no materially significant related party transactions which may have a potential
conflict with the interests of the Company at large. Accordingly, information in Form AOC-2 is not
required. The Policy on materiality of related party transactions and dealing with related party
transactions as approved by the Board may be accessed on the Company’s website at
www.zenithsteelpipes.com.

29. STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 134(3) (M) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ
WITH RULES8 (3) OF THE COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014 ON CONSERVATION OF
ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGOINGS:

Statements pursuant to Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 on conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign
exchange earnings & outgoings are annexed as Annexure “E” and forms part of this report.

30. VIGIL MECHANISM /WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY:

The company has a vigil mechanism named Whistle Blower Policy to deal with instances of fraud
and mis-management.

31. EMPLOYEES’ SAFETY:
The Company is continuously endeavoring to ensure safe working conditions for all its employees.
32. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

Since the Company does not qualify any of the criteria as laid down in section 135(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013 with regard to Corporate Social Responsibility, provisions of section 135 are
not applicable to the Company.

33. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:

As required under Section 134(3) (a) & Section 92(3) of the Act, the Annual Return is put up on
the Company’s website and can be accessed at www.zenithsteelpipes.com & Extracts of the
Annual return in form MGT 9 for the Financial Year 2023-24 is uploaded on the website of the
Company and can be accessed at www.zenithsteelpipes.com.

34. MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS/COURTS/TRIBUNALS:

There are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals
impacting the going concern status and company’s operations in future.

The listed entity banned from the capital market for three years by Securities and Exchange Board
of India under Section11, 11B (1) &11(4) of the SEBI Act 1992 vide order dated 30.03.2021 in the
matter of GDR issue.

35. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

The information required under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule5 (1) of
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are given
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below:

a. The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of
the company for the financial year: NA

b. The percentage increase in remuneration of each director, Chief Executive Officer, Chief
Financial Officer Company Secretary in the financial year;

Directors*, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer And  [% increase in the remuneration in the
Company Secretary Financial year

Minal Pote 'Whole Time Director NIL

B. Girvanesh C.F.0. 9.09%

Sonal Solanki Company Secretary NIL

c. The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year: 26.61
d. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of company: 166

e. Average percentile increases already made in the salaries of employees other than the
managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in
the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional
circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration; - Nil

f. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the company. The
Company affirms that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company.

g. As none of the employees is drawing remuneration not less than Rs. 102 Lakhs p.a. or Rs. 16.16
Lakhs p.m., if employed for the part of the year. Hence, the statement containing particulars of the
name of top ten employees as required under Section 197(12) of the Act read with rule 5(2) of
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is not
applicable.

h. The information required under Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, forms part of this Annual Report. Having
regard to the provisions of Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Reports and Accounts are
being sent to the Members excluding such information. However, the said information is available
for inspection by the Members at the registered office of the Company during its working hours
up to the date of ensuing Annual General Meeting. Further, any Member interested in obtaining
such information may obtain it by writing to the Company Secretary share@zenithsteelpipes.com.

36. DISCLOSURE PURSUANT THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

The Company has in place a Policy for Prevention Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment
at workplace which is in line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of women at the
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder. All
employees (permanent, contractual, temporary and trainees) are covered under this policy. The
Company has constituted an Internal Complaint Committee for its Head Office and branch/sales
offices under Section 4 of the captioned Act.

No complaint has been filed before the said committee during the year.

37.CEO/CFO COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE:
Certificate by the Whole time Director and Chief Financial Officer (CFO) pursuant to Regulation

17(8) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for the
financial year ended 31st March, 2024 is provided under Corporate Governance Report.
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Our directors also wish to place on record their deep sense of appreciation to the contribution
made by the employees at all levels who, through their competence, diligence, solidarity, co-
operation and support, have enabled the Company to achieve the desired results during the year.

39. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

Our directors would like to express their sincere appreciation for the assistance and co-operation
received from the financial institution, banks, Government authorities, customers, vendors and

members during the year under review.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Zenith Steel Pipes & Industries Limited

SD/-

MINAL UMESH POTE
Wholetime Director
Mumbai, September 07, 2024

Registered Office:

5thFloor, Industry House, 159,

Churchgate Reclamation, Mumbai-400020
CIN: L29220MH1960PLC011773

E-mail: zenith@zenithsteelpipes.com;
Website: www.zenithsteelpipes.com

Tel: 022-66168400, Fax: 022-22047835
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Annexure-A

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Pursuant to the amended Regulation 34 read with the Schedule V of the SEBI (listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 our directors wish to report as follows:

(a) Indian Economy:

India is the fastest growing economy in the world. In the FY 2022-23, its gross domestic product
or GDP grew by 7%. However, in the just-concluded fiscal year 2023-24, its economy has been
expanding at an even faster pace. The global economy showed resilience in FY 2023-24,
recovering modestly at an estimated growth rate of 3.2%, according to IMF projections. In the FY
2023-24,the GDP expanded at 7.6%. In comparison, other major economies are projected to grow
at a much slower clip this year. According to the International Monetary Fund (IMF), China's GDP
is expected to grow at 4.6% US at 2.1%, France at 1%, Japan at 0.9% and the UK at 0.6%. The
Interim Union Budget for FY2024-25 emphasizes on infrastructure development and inclusive
growth. It has allocated 11.1 Lacs Cr. or 3.4% of the GDP for capital expenditure, 16.9% increase
over the previous year's estimates. The manufacturing sector has played a key role in driving
India's economic expansion. With strong backward and forward linkages, it has generated
employment opportunities, fostered innovation, and improved its contribution to around 17%
currently. This contribution is boosted by rising investments and initiatives like 'Make in India.’

(b) Industry Structure & Developments:

Steel is a champion industry with growing domestic demand and an opportunity to leverage the
space vacated by Russia and Ukraine in the global market through exports. India remained a net
importer of steel for several years. However, starting 2017, fuelled by large-scale capex projects
and the National Steel Policy, the country started contributing to the global steel markets more
than ever, with nearly 6.7 MnT steel exported in FY 2023-24. India is now racing to build steel
capacities that meet the domestic demand and at the same time can supply to the global markets.
India is thus, on its path to becoming an integral part of the global supply chain. In response to
PLI Scheme announced by Government of India for specialty steel products, the steel industry is
geared up to create capacity in this space.

The Indian steel industry recorded crude steel production of 160.30 MnT in FY 2023-24, despite
pandemic-induced disruptionsin Q1 FY 2023-24. Led by a sharp recovery in demand in developed
markets and production cuts in China, steel prices rose sharply in H1 FY 2023-24 in domestic as
well as global markets. Prices moderated in Q3 FY 2023-24 and have remained volatile following
the start of the Russia-Ukraine crisis.

Steel production showed a solid recovery and domestic finished steel consumption continued to
grow. Finished steel consumption surpassed pre-pandemic levels and was supported by the
government’s improved infrastructure investments. Demand from the auto sector was
temporarily weak, due to the semi-conductor shortage. However, the industry closed the year on
a positive note and recorded 11% growth in finished steel consumption. Domestic finished steel
production rose 18.1% y-o-y to touch 113.6 MnT. Finished steel consumption stood at 105.8 MnT,
up 11.4% y-o-y, driven by the government’s infrastructure spending and the resumption of
projects stalled due to the pandemic.

(c) Opportunities & Threats:
In the new environment, the industry has to be steered with appropriate policy support to ensure

that production of steel matches the anticipated pace of growth in consumption. Special emphasis
is needed to ensure that the industry follows a sustainable path of development in respect of
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environmental friendliness, mineral conservation, quality of steel products, use of technologysa
indigenous R&D efforts to ensure that the country can, overtime, reach global efficiency
benchmarks to become a world leader in steel production technology, as well as in production of
high end steel.

As the oil and gas industry is growing rapidly, the demand for steel pipes is also increasing.
Features such as reliability and durability are some of the prominent factors driving the global
demand for steel pipes. Steel pipes have a wide range of us ability; they are used in the automotive,
mining and construction industries which drive the manufacturing steel pipe industry. The
available range of steel pipes becomes one of the reasons surpassing the demand of residential
and non-residential sector of steel pipes. The replacement of ageing pipelines also increases the
global demand of steel pipes.

However, substitutes such as iron and plastic pipes, which create diversions for the manufacturer
towards other material pipes, are estimated to restrain the market growth. The corrosive
behavior of carbon steel pipes is one of the restraining factors, and the high cost of stainless steel
also hinders the growth of the global steel pipe market.

The Indian steel sector is disadvantaged due to limited availability of essential raw material such
as high grade Manganese ore & Chromite’s, cooking coal, steel grade limestone, refractory raw
material, Nickel, Ferrous Scrap etc. Due to shortage of domestic coking coal, both in terms of
quantity and quality, pig iron producers/BF operators in India have to significantly depend on
import of coking coal. In the recent past, multiple issues have also adversely impacted the steel
sector, viz. cancellations of iron ore and coal mine allocations, delays in land acquisition,
environmental clearances, which led to many of the projects facing significant cost and time over
runs. Additionally, companies also faced substantially increased operating costs on account of
increased logistics & raw material costs and other charges.

d) Segment-wise or Product-wise Performance:

Since our Company operates only in one Segment, segment-wise or product-wise analysis of
performance is not applicable. But company has geographical segments; please refer Note No 42
of The Consolidated Financial Statement.

e) Outlook:

India has consistently witnessed steel imports declining, and exports and consumption
increasing, and steel capacities being created. The industry is getting increasingly competitive and
catering to an ever-evolving global user industry. The future looks bright for India steel industry,
with incremental growth expected across the core sectors and multiplier impact likely to be
triggered across subsidiary industries. Domestic consumption will continue to be robust, and
apparent consumption of steel will continue to grow. With the governments increased
investments on public infrastructure, the real demand is also expected to be steady. Sectors such
as appliances, housing and government projects are expected to contribute towards 7-8% growth
in steel demand in FY 2023-24.

f) Risks & Concerns:

Though Regulation 21 the SEBI (listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation,
2015 is not applicable our Company has duly adopted steps for framing, implementing and
monitoring the risk management plan and accordingly of our directors has put in place critical
risk management frame work across the Company for identification and evaluation of all potential
risks. Our Company is continuously evolving and improving systems and measures to take care of
all the risk exigencies involved in the business. All inherent risks are identified, measured,
monitored and regularly reported to management. The management decides measures required
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to overcome these risks and ensure implementation of proper risk mitigation plans. The
report and mitigation plans are presented to the Board of Directors periodically.

g) Internal Control Systems and their adequacy:

Our Company has an effective Internal Control System to prevent fraud and misuse of Company’s
resources and protect shareholders’ interest. Our Company has an independent Internal Audit
Department to monitor and review and focus on the compliances of various business processes.
The internal audit report along with audit findings and tracking of process improvements &
compliances is presented for review to the Audit Committee of Board of Directors.

h) Discussion on Financial Performance with respect to Operational Performance and state
of Company’s affairs:

The revenue from operations for the year has been Rs 14,321.66 Lakhs as against Rs. 16,405.59
Lakhs in the previous year. Revenue from operations affected due to the Company operated at
lower capacity utilization due to shortage of working capital which has also impacted the
profitability of the Company for the year. Production cost also pushed up due to exorbitant
increase in input cost. Our Company has taken several remedial steps to meet the challenges viz.
measures in saving cost at all front of operations; optimize use of available resources etc.

Key Financial Ratio

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Return on Capital Employed (%) 0.00 0.00
Basic EPS (after exceptional items) (%) (0.05) 0.02
Debtors Turnover 2.88 4.46
Trade Payable Turnover 1.59 1.85
Inventory Turnover 1.45 1.33
Debt coverage ratio (3.68) (1.21)
Current ratio 0.27 0.24
Net Capital Turnover Ratio (In Times) (:49) (0.53)
Debt Equity ratio (0.84) (0.86)
Operating profit margin (%) 341 5.40
Net profit margin (%) (0.44) (0.26)

Detailed explanation of Ratios

Return on Capital Employed

Return on Capital Employed (ROCE) is a financial ratio that measures a Company’s profitability
and the efficiency with which its capital is used. In other words, the ratio measures how well a
Company is generating profits from its capital. [t is calculated by dividing profit before exceptional
items and tax by average capital employed during the year.

Basic EPS

Earnings per Share (EPS) are the portion of a Company’s profit allocated to each share. It serves

as an indicator of a Company’s profitability. It is calculated by dividing Profit for the year by
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year.
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Debtors Turnover
The above ratio is used to quantify a Company’s effectiveness in collecting its receivables or
money owed by customers. The ratio shows how well a Company uses and manages the credit it
extends to customers and how quickly that short-term debt is collected or is paid. It is calculated
by dividing turnover by average trade receivable.

Trade payable Turnover

Trade payables are any expenses incurred from vendors, suppliers or other third parties for goods
or services provided in bringing their products to the customer. Trade payables are a combination
of the creditor/s and the bills payable for goods purchased or services rendered.

Inventory Turnover

Inventory Turnover is the number of times a Company sells and replaces its inventory during a
period. It is calculated by dividing turnover by inventory.

Interest Coverage Ratio

The Interest Coverage Ratio measures how many times a Company can cover its current interest
payment with its available earnings. It is calculated by dividing PBIT by finance cost.

Current Ratio

The Current Ratio is a liquidity ratio that measures a Company’s ability to pay short-term
obligations or those due within one year. It is calculated by dividing the current assets by current
liabilities.

Debt Equity Ratio

The ratio is used to evaluate a Company’s financial leverage. It is a measure of the degree to which
a Company is financing its operations through debt versus wholly owned funds. It is calculated by
dividing a Company’s total liabilities by its shareholder’s equity.

Net Capital Turnover Ratio

Capital turnover is the measure that indicates an organization's efficiency about the utilization of
capital employed in the business, and it is calculated as a ratio of total annual turnover divided by
the total amount of stockholder's equity (also known as net worth) and the higher the ratio, the
better is the utilization of capital employed.

Return on Investment

Return on investment (ROI) is a performance measure used to evaluate the efficiency or
profitability of an investment or compare the efficiency of a number of different investments. ROI
tries to directly measure the amount of return on a particular investment, relative to the
investment’s cost.

Operating Profit Margin (%)

Operating Profit Margin is profitability or performance ratio used to calculate the percentage of
profit a Company produces from its operations. It is calculated by dividing the EBIT by turnover.
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Net Profit Margin (%)

The net profit margin is equal to how much net income or profit is generated as a percentage of
revenue. It is calculated by dividing the profit for the year by turnover.

i) Human Resources Development and Industrial Relations:

Our Company focuses on developing the most superior workforce so that the organization and
individual employees can accomplish their work goals in service to the end users. To improve
employee productivity, PMS (Performance Management System) was implemented across the
organization.

Our Company has put in place suitable processes and mechanism to ensure that grievances are
effectively addressed. Employee Grievance Redressal Committee and the Internal Complaints
Committee are intended to facilitate open and structured discussion on work related grievances
of employees and Sexual Harassment complaints respectively, to ensure that these are dealt with
in a fair and just manner. Our Anti-Sexual Harassment initiatives allow employees to report sexual
harassment case at the workplace.

Presently, our Company employs around 178 employees including employees on contact basis.
There is Lock- out at factory at Khopoli since December, 2013. The industrial relation continues
to remain generally cordial at all locations of the Company except its factory at Khopoli.

j) Cautionary Statement:

The Management Discussion and Analysis describe Company’s projections, expectations or
predictions and are forward looking statements within the meaning of applicable laws and
regulations. Actual results could differ from those expressed or implied. Important factors that
could make a difference to the Company’s operations include economic conditions affecting
demand and supply, price conditions in domestic and international market, change in
Government regulations, tax regimes, economic developments and other related and incidental
factors.
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Annexure-B

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V (C) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

1. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

Corporate Governance is based on the principal of truth, transparency, accountability, equity and
responsibility in all our dealings with our employees, shareholders, customers, suppliers,
government, lenders and community at large. The Company believes that better corporate
governance can be achieved through increased transparency in its operations and has taken and
will continue to take various measures towards achievement of good corporate governance. It is
a tool to judge and evaluate the standards and ethics of Corporate Management.

A report on compliance with the principles of Corporate Governance as prescribed by the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) in Chapter IV read with Schedule V of SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015(herein after referred to as
“SEBI Regulations”) is given below:

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS:
a) Composition of Board:

As on 31st March, 2024, the Board of Directors has 6 (six) members, out of which 3 (Three) are
Independent Director, 2 (Five) are Non-Executive, Non-Independent Director and one is Whole
Time Director , the company has complied with the provision of appointing at least one women
director. The composition of the Board was in conformity with Regulation 17(1) SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

None of the Directors on the Board is a member on more than 10 Committees and Chairman of
more than 5 Committees (as specified in Regulation 17(1)), across all the Companies in which
they are Director. The necessary disclosures regarding Committee positions have been made by
the Directors.

The names and categories of the Directors on the Board, their attendance at Board Meetings
during the year under review and at the last Annual General Meeting, as also the number of
Directorships and Committee positions held by them in companies including this company and
number of shares held by them are provided in below table:

Name of Category No of | No. of No.of | No. of other No.of | Attendan
Director of shar |Director| Independ | Committees Board ce At the
Directorsh | e ship in ent position meetings 61st
ip held listed | Directors |Chairma|Member| attended AGM
entities hip in n s during
listed the year
entity
Sadhana Non- Nil 1 1 1 3 7 Yes
Avinash Executive
Patil -
Independe
nt Director
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Purushottam | Non- Nil 1 0 1 3
D Sonavane |Executive

- Non

Independe

nt

Director
Minal Executiv Nil 2 1 0 0 7 Yes
Umesh Pote |e

Director
Pramod Non- Nil 1 1 0 0 7 Yes
Shivaji Executive
Bhosale -

Independe

nt Director
Bhavika Non- Nil 1 1 0 0 7 Yes
Sharma Executive

Independent

Director
Ganesh Non- Nil - - 1 3 5 Yes
Mahend Executive
rakar -

Independent

Director

The details of Directors for directorship in other listed companies as on March 31, 2024 are as
follows:

Sr. Name of the Director | Name of the other listed Company. Category of Directorship
No
1. Minal Umesh Pote Birla Capital And Financial Services Independent Director
Limited
2. Pramod Shivaji Melstar Information Technologies Independent Director
Bhosale Limited (Resigned on 04t July, 2024)

b) Number of Meetings of the Board of Directors held and dates on which held:

7 (Seven) meetings were held during the year and the gap between two meetings did not exceed
120 days. The dates on which the said meetings were held are as follows:

Sr. No. | Date of Meeting
1 29/05/2023
2 15/07/2023
3 11/08/2023
4 07/09/2023
5
6
7

06/11/2023
13/02/2024
27/03/2024

Information of the Board Meeting and Committee meetings are given well in advance and
communicated to all the Directors. Normally, Board Meetings and Committee meetings are held
at the registered Office of the Company. The agenda along with explanatory notes are sent in
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advance to all the Directors.
c) Information placed before the Board of Directors:

All such matters as are statutorily required as per schedule - II & Regulation 17(7) of SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015 and also matters relating to Corporate Plans, Mobilization of Funds,
Investments/Loans, Risk Management Policy, Capital Expenditure etc. are considered by the
Board.

Besides, the following information is also regularly placed before the Board for its consideration:

1. Annual operating plans and budgets and updates

2. Capital Budgets and updates

3. Minutes of Meetings of committee of the Board

4. Quarterly results of the Company

5. Material Transactions which are not in the ordinary course of business.

6. Compliance with all regulatory and statutory requirements

7. Fatal Accidents, dangerous occurrences, material effluent pollution problems
8. Recruitment and remuneration of senior officers just below the Board level
9. Investments/Disinvestments

10. Risk Assessment Analysis

The Board periodically reviews compliance report of all applicable laws to the Company. Steps
are taken by the Company to rectify the instances of non-compliance, if any. During F.Y. 2023-24,
the Company did not have any material pecuniary transactions with Non-Executive Directors.

The company has adopted the code of Conduct and Business Ethics for Executive and Non-
Executive Directors and Senior Management Personnel. The Company has received confirmations
from all the Directors of the Company as well as Senior Management Personnel, one level below
the Directors, regarding compliance of the Code during the year under review. The Code of
Conduct and Business Ethics adopted by the Company is posted on the website of the Company
at www.zenithsteelpipes.com.

The declaration by the Whole time Director & Chief Financial Officer of the Company confirmed
the same.

d) Non-Executive Directors’ Compensation and disclosures:

During the period under review, there was no pecuniary relationship or business transaction by
the Company with any Non-Executive Directors.

MATRIX OF SKILLS/EXPERTISE/COMPETENCIES OF THE BOARD

In order to effectively discharge its duties, it is necessary that collectively the Board holds the
appropriate balance of skills and experience. The Board seeks a complementary diversity of skills
and experience across its members. The table below summarizes the key qualifications, skills and
attributes which are taken into consideration while nominating a person to serve on the Board.

Skills / Expertise / | Detail for such Skills/Expertise/Competencies
Competencies
Knowledge Understanding of the Company’s business, policies, and culture (including
its mission, vision, values, goals, current strategic plan, governance
structure, major risks and threats and potential opportunities) and
knowledge of the industry in which the Company operates.
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Strategic Leadership |Significant leadership experience to think strategically and d&¥elop
effective strategies to drive change and growth in context of the
Company’s overall objectives.

Financial expertise Qualification and / or experience in accounting and/or finance coupled
with ability to analyses the key financial statements; critically assess
financial viability and performance; contribute to financial planning;
assess financial controls and oversee capital management and funding
arrangements.

Diversity Representation of gender, cultural or other such diversity that expand the
Board’s understanding and perspective.

Corporate Governance,| Experience in developing and implementing good corporate governance
risk and Compliance |practices, maintaining board and management accountability, managing
take holders’ interests and company’s responsibilities towards customers,
employees, suppliers, regulatory bodies and the communities in which it
operates including establishing risk and compliance frameworks,
identifying and monitoring key risks.

Behavioral Skills Attributes and the competencies to use their knowledge and skills to
function well as team members and to interact with key stakeholders;

These skills/competencies are broad-based, encompassing several areas of expertise/experience.
Each Director may possess varied combinations of skills/experience within the described set of
parameters, and it is not necessary that all Directors possess all skills/experience listed therein.

e) Other Provisions as to Board and Committee:

The Board meets at least once a quarter to review the quarterly performance and the financial
results. Meetings are generally scheduled well in advance and the notice of each Board Meeting is
given in writing to each Director. All the items in the agenda are accompanied by notes giving
comprehensive information on the related subject and in certain matters such as
financial /business plans, financial results, detailed presentations are made. The agenda and the
relevant notes are sent in advance separately to each Director and only in exceptional cases; the
same is tabled at the meeting. The Board is also free to recommend the inclusion of any matter for
discussion in consultation with the Chairman.

To enable the Board to discharge its responsibilities effectively, the members of the Board are
briefed at every Board Meeting, on the overall performance of the Company, with presentations
by functional heads. Senior management is invited to attend the Board Meetings so as to provide
additional inputs to the items being discussed by the Board.

The Board’s role, functions, responsibility and accountability are clearly defined, in addition to
matters statutorily requiring Board’s approval, all major decisions involving policy formulation,
strategy and business plans, annual operating and capital expenditure budgets, new investments,
compliance with statutory/regulatory requirements, major accounting provisions and write-offs
are considered by the Board.

The minutes of the Board Meeting are circulated in advance to all Directors and confirmed at
subsequent Meeting.

3. AUDIT COMMITTEE:
Composition, Meetings and attendance during the year

The Audit Committee invites such of the executives, as it considers appropriate (and particularly
the head of the finance function) to be present at its meetings. Chief Financial Officer of the
Company attends the meetings. The Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditors attend the meetings
on invitation from the Company. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Audit
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Committee.

i. The audit committee of the Company is constituted in line with the provisions of Regulation 18
of the SEBI, LODR entered into with the stock exchanges read with Section 177 of the Companies
Act.

ii. The terms of reference of the audit committee are broadly as under:

* Reviewing Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information
to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible;

¢ Recommend the appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the
Company; Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the
statutory auditors;

* Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditors report thereon
before Submission to the board for approval, with particular reference to:

» Matters required being included in the director’s responsibility statement to be included in the
board’s Report in terms of clause(c) of sub-section 3 of section 134 of the Act

» Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same major accounting
entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by Management Significant
adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings Compliance with listing
and other legal requirements relating to financial statements Disclosure of any related party
transactions qualifications in the draft audit report reviewing, with the management, the
quarterly financial statements before submission to the board for approval;

* Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses/application off funds raised through an
issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for
purposes other than those stated in the offer document/prospectus/notice and the report
submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilization of proceeds of a public or rights
issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the board to take up steps in this matter;

¢ Review and monitor the auditors’ independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit
process; Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related

parties; Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

¢ Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary; Evaluation of
internal financial controls and risk management systems;

» Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of
the Internal control systems;

» Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal
audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting
structure coverage and frequency of internal audit;

* Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up thereon;

» Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where
there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature

and reporting the matter to the board;

 Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of
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audit as well as post audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

* To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture
holders, Shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

« Establish a vigil mechanism for directors and employee store port genuine concerns in such
manner as may be prescribed;

» To review the functioning of whistle blower mechanism;

¢ The audit committee may call for the comments of the auditors about internal control systems,
the scope of audit, including the observations of the auditors and review of financial statement
before their submission to the board and may also discuss any related issues with the internal
and statutory auditors and the management of the Company;

« Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the audit committee;
Oversee financial reporting controls and process for material subsidiaries;

* To mandatorily review the following information:
* Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations;

o Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the audit committee),
submitted by management;

¢ Management letters/letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors;
Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and

» The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the internal auditor.

iii. The composition of the audit committee and the details of meetings attended by its members
are given below

The Audit Committee consists of three members. It is composed of two members, being
Independent, Non-Executive Directors and one member, being Non-Executive - Non-Independent
Director. All the members of the Audit Committee have adequate accounting and financial
knowledge.

Mrs. Sadhana Patil, Non-Executive Independent Director is the Chairperson of the Committee
During the year ended 31st March, 2024; the Committee 4 (Four) times on 29t May, 2023, 11th
August, 2023, 6th November, 2023 and 13t February, 2024.

The composition of the Audit Committee and the attendance of members during the accounting
period are as under:

Name of the Member Category No. of Meetings
attended during the
F.Y.2023-24

Mrs. Sadhana Patil Non-Executive-Independent Director 4

(Chairperson)

Mr. Purushottam Sonavane | Non-Executive-Non Independent 4

Director
Mr. Ganesh Ramesh Non-Executive-Independent Director 3
Mahendrakar
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Mrs Bhavika Sharma Non-Executive-Independent Director 1

iv. The Audit Committee Meetings are usually held at the Corporate Office of the Company and are
normally attended by Chief financial Officer of the Company, representatives of the Statutory
Auditors, Internal Auditors and Cost auditors. The Company Secretary acts as the secretary to the
audit committee.

4. VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY:

The Company has adopted Whistle Blower policy, which was further aligned with the
requirements under the Companies Act, 2013 and the Regulation 22 of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 of the Listing agreement and
approved by the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company. The said policy
provides for mechanism for all the employees of the Company to approach the Chairman of the
Audit Committee of the Company and make protective disclosures about the unethical behavior,
actual or suspected fraud and violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct and business ethics.
Under the policy, each employee of the Company has an assured access to the Chairman of the
Audit Committee.

5. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

In accordance with the provisions of Section 178 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee is vested with all the necessary powers and authorities to recommend and ensure
appropriate disclosure on the remuneration of Managing Director, Whole-time Director and other
Directors. The remuneration policy of the Company is

based on several criterions which include responsibility, performance, potentials of the director
and growth of the Company.

a. The composition of the nomination and remuneration committee and the details of
meetings attended by its members are given below:

Name of Members & Category in the Board No. of Meetings
Designation in Committee attended during the
F.Y.2023-24
Mrs. Sadhana Patil Non-Executive-Independent Director 2
Mr. Purushottam Sonavane Non-Executive-Non Independent 2
Director

Mr. Ganesh Ramesh Non-Executive-Independent Director 2
Mahendrakar

The Quorum of the Committee is of two members.

The Company Secretary acts as secretary of the Committee.

b. Meetings of Nomination & Remuneration Committee:

During the year, Two meetings of the nomination and remuneration committee were held on 29t
Mau, 2023 and 11t August, 2024, and were attended by members of the Nomination &
Remuneration Committee.

c. Terms of Reference:

The terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee cover all the areas
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mentioned under Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 (4) of SEBI (LiSéng
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The scope of Nomination and
Remuneration Committee shall include, but shall not be restricted, to the following:

1. Identify Individual qualified to be become Director and who may be appointed in senior
management in accordance with the criteria laid down and recommend to the Board their
appointment and removal.

2. Carry out evaluation of every director’s performance.

3. Formulate criteria for determining qualification, positive attributes and independence of a
director and recommend to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration for the directors, key
managerial personnel and other employees.

4. While formulating the policy shall ensure that

a) The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and
motivate director of the quality required to run the company successfully.

b) Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance
bench marks.

c) Remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel and senior managerial management
involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long term performance

objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and its goal.

5. Formulation of the criteria for evaluation of Performance of Independent Directors and the
Board

6. Devising a Policy on Board Diversity

7. Review key corporate governance processes not specifically assigned to other committees, and
recommend changes needed to ensure that the company is at best practice;

Examine the impact of significant regulatory and statutory changes applicable to the governance
practices of the Company, and to recommend measures to implement the same;

8. Examine all major aspects of the Company’s organizational health, and recommend changes as
necessary, including

- Organization design;

- Management and employee hiring, training, development, deployment and motivation; &
- Internal communication and culture building.

9. The Company does not have any employee stock option scheme

d. Remuneration policy:

1. attract, recruit, and retain good and exceptional talent;

2. list down the criteria for determining the qualifications, positive attributes, and independence
of the directors of the Company;

3. ensure that the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees
is performance driven, motivates them, recognizes their merits and achievements and promotes
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excellence in their performance;

4. motivate such personnel to align their individual interests with the interests of the Company,
and further the interests of its stakeholders;

5. ensure a transparent nomination process for directors with the diversity of thought,
experience, knowledge, perspective and gender in the Board; and

6. Fulfill the Company’s objectives and goals, including in relation to good corporate governance,
transparency, and sustained long-term value creation for its stakeholders.

e. Details of sitting fees for the year ended March 31, 2024:

During the year 2023-24, the Company has paid sitting fees to its non-executive directors for
attending meetings of the board and meetings of audit committee of the Board.

f. None of the Directors is holding equity shares of the Company as on 31.03.2024.

g. Details of Remuneration Paid to Auditors during the FY-2023-24

Type Of Audit Fees Amount (In Rs.)
Statutory Audit Fees 7,00,000
Audit of Subsidiaries Company fees -

Cost Audit Fees 75,000

6. STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

a. The Company had a shareholders / investors grievance committee of directors to look into the
redressal of complaints of investors such as transfer or credit of shares, non-receipt of dividend /
notices / annual reports, etc. The nomenclature of the said committee was changed to
stakeholders’ relationship committee in the light of provisions of the Act and revised Regulation
20 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015.

b. The composition of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee and the details of meetings
attended by its members are given below:

Name of the Member Category No. of Meetings
Attended  During
the F.Y. 2023-24

Mr. Purushottam Sonavane Non-Executive -Non Independent 2
(Chairman) Director

Mrs. Sadhana Patil Non-Executive-Independent Director 2
Mr. Ganesh Ramesh Mahendrakar |Non- Executive-Independent Director 2

The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Stakeholders Relationship Committee

c. The Company has always valued its customer relationships. This philosophy has been extended
to Stakeholders Relationship. It focuses on servicing the needs of various stakeholders’ viz.
investors, Depositors, analysts, brokers and the general public. The Committee also monitors
implementation and compliance with Company’s Code of Conduct for Prohibition of Insider
Trading in pursuance to SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations.

d. Name, designation and address of Compliance Officer: Mr. Prakhar Agarwal, Company
Secretary, Zenith Steel Pipes & Industries Limited 5th Floor, Industry House 159, Churchgate
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Reclamation, Mumbai 400020. Telephone: 022-66168400.

e. Details of investor complaints received and redressed during the year 2023-24 are as follows:
The total number of complaints received and resolved to the satisfaction of investors during the
year under review and their break-up is provided as under:

Type of Complaints No. of Complaints

Received Resolved Pending

Legal Cases/Court Cases - - -

Non-receipt of Certificates after transfer/after - - -
exchange

Non-receipt of Dividend Warrants - - -

Non-receipt of Annual Report - - -

Non-receipt of Bonus Shares - - -

Non-receipt of Demat Credit - - -

Non-receipt of Demat Rejection Documents - - -
SEBI - - -
Total - - -

f. Meetings of Stakeholders Relationship Committee

Two (2) Stakeholders Relationship Committee Meetings were held during the year 2023-24 on
29th May, 2024 and 11t August, 2023,

Terms of Reference.

The terms of reference of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee cover all the areas mentioned
under Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 20 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The scope of the Stakeholders Relationship
Committee shall include, but shall not be restricted, to the following:

1. Efficient transfer of shares, including review of cases for refusal of transfer/transmission of
shares and debentures.

2. Redressal of shareholder and investors complaints like transfer of shares, non-receipt of
Balance Sheet, non-receipt of declared dividends etc.;

3. Issue of duplicate/Split/Consolidated Share Certificates;

4. Allotment and listing of Shares;

5. Review of cases for refusal of transfer/transmission of Shares and Debentures;

6. Reference to statutory and regulatory authorities regarding investor grievances;

7. To ensure proper and timely attendance and Redressal of investor queries and grievance.

7. SUBSIDIARY COMPANY:

The Company has two foreign subsidiary companies. However, the Company does not have any
material non- listed Indian subsidiary whose turnover or net worth (i.e. paid-up capital and free
reserves) exceed 20%of the consolidated turnover or net worth respectively, of the listed holding
company and its subsidiaries in the immediately preceding year.

Sr. No. Name of the Subsidiary Date of Incorporation | Country in which incorporated
1. Zenith (USA)Inc. June 18, 1970 USA
2. Zenith Middle East FZLLC November 27,2013 Dubai-UAE
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Financial Statements of Subsidiary Companies are reviewed by the Audit Committee o
Company.

The Company has a policy for determining ‘material subsidiaries’ which is disclosed on its website
at the following Link http://www.zenithsteelpipes.com.

8. GENERAL MEETINGS:

(a) Details of location, time and date of last three Annual General Meetings (AGM) are given
below:-

Year AGM | Location Day, Date & Time
2022-2023 | 61st |through Video Conferencing ('VC') / Other Audio Friday, 30.09.2023 at
Visual Means('OAVM") 01.00 p.m.
2021-2022 | 60th |through Video Conferencing ('VC') / Other Friday, 30.09.2022 at
Audio Visual Means('OAVM") 01.00 p.m.
2020-2021 | 59th |through Video Conferencing ('VC') / Other Wednesday,
Audio Visual Means('OAVM') 29.09.2021 at 03:00
p.m.

(b) Extra Ordinary General Meeting
There was no Extra Ordinary General Meeting held during the Financial Year 2023-24.

(c) Details of Special Resolution passed during last three years at the Annual General Meetings:

Date of AGM Particulars of Special Resolutions Passed

2022-23 Re- appointment of Mrs. Bhavika Sharma (DIN: 08846865) as an Independent
Director of the Company for a second term of three consecutive years

2021-2022 Re- appointment of Mrs. Sadhana Patil, (DIN: 06565115) as an Independent
Director of the Company for a second term of three consecutive years

2020-2021 Re-appointment of Mrs. Minal Pote as a Whole time Director & fixation of
remuneration

(d) Postal Ballot:

During the year under review, No resolutions transacted through Postal Ballot.
9. DISCLOSURES:

a. Related Party Transaction:

The Board has received disclosures from key managerial personnel relating to material, financial
and commercial transactions where they and / or relatives have personal interest. There were no
materially significant related party transactions i.e., transactions of material nature, with its
promoters, the Directors or the management, their subsidiaries or relatives etc. that may have
potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large. Related Party Transactions have been
included in the notes to the Annual Accounts of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2024.
The Board has approved a policy for related party transactions which has been uploaded on the
Company’s website. The web as required under Listing Regulations is as wunder:
www.zenithsteelpipes.com.

b. Details of non-compliance
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The Company has complied with requirements of the Stock Exchanges, SEBI and other autho
on all matters relating to capital markets during the last three years.

The Company has adopted a whistle blower policy and has established the necessary vigil
mechanism for employees and directors to report concerns about unethical behavior. No person
has been denied access to the chairman of the audit committee. The said policy has been also put
up on the website of the Company at the following link http://www.zenithsteelpipes.com.

c. All mandatory requirements as per SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 have been complied with by the company.

d. All assets of the Company whether movable or immovable are sufficiently insured. All fore
seeable risk whether in terms of foreign currency exposure, data and record management etc. are
being managed effectively by the Company.

e. Policies adopted during the year:
There is no policy adopted during the Financial Year 2023-24
f. Disclosures regarding commodity risks by listed entities:

Our export contracts generally match and align with local procurement / imported contracts so
as to mitigate the risk. Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of
an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company is exposed
to foreign exchange risk through its sales and purchases from overseas suppliers in foreign
currencies. The company measures risk through sensitivity analysis.

g. Disclosure Pursuant the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and redressal) Act, 2013.

The Company has in place a Policy for Prevention Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment
at work place which is in line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of women at the
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder. All
employees (permanent, contractual, temporary and trainees) are covered under this policy. The
Company has constituted an Internal Complaint Committee for its Head Office and branch/sales
offices under Section 4 of the captioned Act.

No complaint has been filed before the said committee during the year.

h. The Company does not fall under the ambit of top 1000 listed entities, determined on the basis
of market capitalization as at the end of the immediately preceding financial year. Hence,
compliance under Regulation 21 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 is not applicable.

10. RECONCILIATION OF SHARE CAPITAL:

A qualified Company Secretary carried out an audit to reconcile the total admitted capital with
National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited
(CDSL) and the total issued and listed capital. The audit confirms that the total issued/ paid-up
capital is in agreement with the total number of shares in physical and the total number of
dematerialized shares held with NSDL and CDSL.

Pursuant to Regulation 40(9) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations And Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2015 with the Stock Exchanges, certificate on half yearly basis have been issued by a
Company Secretary in Practice for due compliance of share transfer formalities of the Company.
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11. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:

a. Results: The unaudited quarterly financial statements are announced within forty-five days of
the end of each quarter and the audited annual results are announced within sixty days from the
end of the last quarter or such a time as notified by the Statutory Authority. The aforesaid financial
statements after being taken on record by the Audit Committee and Board of Directors are
communicated to the Stock Exchanges where the shares of the Company are listed.

Quarterly and Annual Results are published in newspapers viz., The Financial Express and
lakshdweep in the format prescribed under Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations And
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 with the stock exchanges where the shares of the
Company are listed.

b. Management Discussion & Analysis Report

The Management discussion & analysis Report forms part of the Directors’ Report. All matters
pertaining to industry structure and developments, opportunities and threats, outlook risks and
concerns, internal control and systems etc. are discussed in the said report.

c. Company’s Corporate Website:

The financial results are also posted on the Company’s Website www.zenithsteelpipes.com The
Company’s website provides information about its business and the Section on “Investor’s
Information” serves to inform and service the Shareholders allowing them to access information
at their convenience.

d. Annual Report: Annual Report is circulated to all the members within the required time frame.

e. Investor Email ID of the Registrar & Share Transfer Agents: All the share related requests/
queries/correspondence, if any, are to be forwarded by the investors to the Registrar and
Transfer Agents of the Company Big share Services Private Limited and/or email them to
investor@bigshareonline.com

f. Designated Email ID for Complaints/ Redressal: The Company has designated an email ID
share@zenithsteelpipes.com exclusively for the purpose of registering complaints/grievances by
investors. Investors whose requests/queries/correspondence remain unresolved can send their
complaints/grievances to the above referred e-mail ID and the same would be attended to
promptly by the Company.

12. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER'’S INFORMATION:

The Company is registered in the State of Maharashtra, India. The Corporate Identification
Number (CIN) allotted to the Company by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) is
L29220MH1960PLC011773.

1. Annual General Meeting
Day, Date & Time : Monday, 30th September, 2024 at 03:00 PM.
Book Closure Date : From Tuesday, 24th September, 2024 to Monday, 30t September, 2024 (both

days inclusive).

2. Financial Calendar for the year 2024-25 (Tentative)

Accounting Year : April 1, 2024 to March 31, 2025
First Quarter Results : On or before 14t August, 2024
Second Quarter Results : On or before 14t November, 2024
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Third Quarter Results : On or before 14t February, 2025
Fourth Quarter & Annual Results : On or before 30t May, 2025
Mailing of Annual Report : September, 2025
Annual General Meeting : On or before 30th September, 2025

Registered Office 5thFloor, Industry House, 159, Churchgate Reclamation, Mumbai-400020.
Stock Exchange

Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd - P. ]. Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai 400023

Stock Code : 531845

National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. - Exchange Plaza, Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra (East),
Mumbai-400 051

Stock Code: ZENITHSTL

ISIN No. for the Company: INE318D01020
Depository’s connectivity: NSDL and CDSL
Dividend policy:

Dividends, other than interim dividend(s), are to be declared at the annual general meetings of
shareholders based on the recommendation of the board of directors. Generally, the factors that
may be considered by the board of directors before making any recommendations for dividend
include, without limitation, the Company’s future expansion plans and capital requirements,
profits earned during the fiscal year, cost of raising funds from alternate sources, liquidity
position, applicable taxes including tax on dividend, as well as exemptions under tax laws
available to various categories of investors from time to time and general market conditions. The
board of directors may also from time to time pay interim dividend(s) to shareholders.

Stock Price Data and Comparison to broad-based indices:
Market Price Data: High, Low during each month in the financial year.
Monthly High/ Low of market price of the Company’s shares traded on the Bombay Stock

Exchange Ltd. (BSE) and National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) during the financial year
ended 31st March, 2024 is furnished below:

Months NSE BSE Months NSE BSE
High Low | High Low High | Low | High | Low
0) 0) 0) () () () () ()
April, 2023 4.60 4.15 565 | 3.30 | October, 2023 | 690 | 495 | 7.17 | 3.95
May, 2023 4.45 3.90 4.45 | 3.85 November, 2023 7.20 | 540 | 732 | 5.59
June, 2023 4.40 3.95 433 | 3.90 |December, 2023 | 7.85 | 5.55 | 795 | 5.48
July, 2023 4.10 3.75 417 | 3.90 January, 2024 7.70 | 6.45 | 7.80 | 6.55
August, 2023 4.30 3.80 4.29 | 3.85 | February, 2024 | 8.60 | 7.00 10.09 | 7.10
September, 2023 4.10 3.85 433 | 3.82 March, 2024 - - 9.80 | 7.10
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Registrar & Share Transfer Agents

For Electronic & Physical Mode:

Bigshare Services Pvt. Ltd.
1st Floor, Bharat Tin Works Building, Opp. Vasant Oasis, Makwana

Road, Marol, Andheri (East), Mumbai-400059
Tel. Nos.: 02262638204 Mobile No.: 7045454394

Email: vinod@bigshareonline.com

Shareholders can login in to www.bigshareonline.com, the website of our Registrar and Share
Transfer Agents, M/s. Bigshare Services Private Limited for assistance.

Share Transfer System

The Board has delegated the authority for approving transfer, transmission etc. of Company’s
securities to the Stakeholders Relationship Committee, who in turn has authorized the Company
Secretary and officials of the Secretarial Department to carry this work. The share transfer
formalities are completed on a weekly basis. The Shares sent for transfer in physical form are sent
to Registrars and Share Transfer Agents, and returned between15 to 30 days from the date of
receipt, if Documents are in order in all respects. Shares under objections are returned within 2
weeks.

In compliance with Regulation 40(9) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations 2015, the Company obtains a certificate from practicing Company
Secretary on a half-yearly basis confirming that all certificates have been issued within one month

from the date of lodgments for transfer, sub-division, consolidation etc.

Distribution of Shareholding as on 31st March, 2024

No. of Equity Shares held Total No. of No. of Shares Shareholdin
Shareholders held gIn %
1to 5000 62595 5293574 3.72
5001 to 10000 5413 4517375 3.18
10001 to 20000 3408 5265882 3.70
20001 to 30000 1338 3477345 2.44
30001 to 40000 613 2229490 1.57
40001 to 50000 723 3489352 2.45
50001 to 100000 1069 8232736 5.79
100001 t0 999999999999999 1082 109774694 77.15
Total 76241 142280448 100
Shareholding Pattern of the Company as on 31st March, 2024 (including Demat)
Categories No. of No. of shares Percentage
Shareholders held of total
Shares
Promoters/Directors and their Associate 12 22257157 15.64
companies
Corporate Bodies (Public) 213 15699359 11.03
NRIs 370 1119521 0.79
Banks/FIs and Insurance Companies 23 106699 0.08
Mutual Funds 4 650 0
Resident Individual (Public) 79971 37868528 26.62
Resident Individual (Public) holding nominal 490 61492743 43.22
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share capital in excess of Rs. 2 Lakhs
Clearing Members 33 254614 0.18
Trusts 6 1400 0
Foreign Companies - - -
HUF 645 2799070 1.97
Flls - - -
Unit Trust of India - - -
Government Companies 2 55 0
IEPF 1 680652 0.48
Total 81770 142280448 100.00

m Resident Individual (Public)
® Promoters/Directors and their Associate companies

Corporate Bodies (Public) NRIs
= (Public) NRIs

Shareholding of Non-executive Directors of the Company as on 31st March, 2024

Name of the Non-Executive Directors No. of shares % of total
held Shares
Mr. Purushottam Sonavane Nil Nil
Mr. Pramod Bhosale Nil Nil
Mrs. Sadhana Patil Nil Nil
Mrs. Bhavika Sharma Nil Nil
Mr. Ganesh Ramesh Mahendrakar Nil Nil
Total Nil Nil

Dematerialization of shares and liquidity

99.36% of the total Equity Capital is held in dematerialized form with NSDL and CDSL as on March
31st, 2024. Trading in Equity Shares of the Company is permitted only in dematerialized form as
per notification issued by Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI).

Outstanding GDRs / ADRs / Warrants or any convertible instruments, conversion date and likely
impact on equity: The Company does not have any outstanding GDRs/ ADRs/ Warrants or any

convertible instruments.
Plant Location

a) Khopoli Unit

Tal Khopoli, Dist. Raigad, Maharashastra-410203

b) Tarapur Unit

G-38/39, M.LLD.C,, Tarapur, Dist. Palghar Maharashtra- 401506

¢) Murbad Unit

Survey (Gut) No.440/441, Nhave, Kakadpada, Murbad District, Thane, Maharashtra
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d) Trichy Mobile Unit
SH No.71, Survey No. 782, Village: Kalugar Thogainmala, Taluka: Kulithalai, Dist.: Karur-639120,
Tamil Nadu

For Investor Correspondence and Compliance related query

Address for Correspondence Mr. Prakhar Agarwal
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
159, Industry House, 5th Floor,
Churchgate Reclamation, Mumbai-20
Tel No.: 022-66168400; Fax No.: 022-22047835
E-mail: share@zenithsteelpipes.com

Equity shares in the suspense account:

In term of Regulation 39(4) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations 2015, Company has received the confirmation from Registrar & Share Transfer
Agents, Big share Services Private Limited that there are no any unclaimed shares/suspense
account in the Company.

Transfer of unclaimed dividend to Investor Education and Protection Fund

Pursuant to sections 124 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions, if any, of
the Act, all unclaimed/unpaid dividend, remaining unclaimed / unpaid for a period of seven years
from the date they became due for payment, in relation to the Company, have been transferred to
the IEPF established by the Central Government.

46(2) (B) To (I) of compliance of Corporate Governance Requirements Specified In Regulation 17
to 27 and Listing Regulation.

Sr. | Particulars Regulati | Compliance | Compliance observed for the following
No. on status
Yes/No/N.
A.
1. |Board of Directors 17 Yes » Composition
» Meetings
» Review of compliance report
» Plans for orderly succession for appointments
» Code of Conduct
» Fees/compensation to Non-Executive Directors
» Minimum in formation to be placed before the

Board
Compliance Certificate

Y

» Risk assessment and management
» Performance evolution of Independent
Directors
2. | Related Party 23 Yes » Policy on Materiality of Related party
Transaction Transactions and dealing with Related Party
Transactions

» Approval including omnibus approval of Audit
Committee

» Review of related Party Transactions
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» There were no Material RPT
Subsidiaries of the 24 Yes > There was no material subsidiary of the
Company Company and as a result the other compliance
in respect of material subsidiary were not
applicable
» Review of financial statements of unlisted
Subsidiary by the Audit Committee
» Significant transactions and arrangement of]
Unlisted subsidiary
Obligation with 25 Yes » Maximum Directorship and tenure
respect to > Meeting of Independent Directors
In.dependent » Familiarizations of Independent Directors
Directors
Obligation with 26 Yes » Memberships/Chairpersonship in Committees
respect to Directors » Affirmation on Compliance of Code of Conduct
and Senior by Directors and Senior Management
Managements > Discloser of shareholding by Non-Executive
Directors
» Discloser by Senior Management about
potential Conflicts of interest
Other Corporate 27 Yes » Compliance with discretionary requirements
Governance » Filing of quarterly compliance report on
requirements Corporate Governance
Website 46(2)(b) Yes » Terms and conditions for appointment
to(i) of Independent Directors
» Composition of various Committees of the
Board of Directors
» Code of Conduct of Board of Directors and
Senior Management personnel
» Details of  establishment of  Vigil
Mechanism/Whistle Blower policy
» Policy on dealing with Related Party
Transactions
> Policy for determining material subsidiaries
» Details off familiarization programmes

imparted to Independent Directors
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CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT FOR BOARD OF DIRECTOR
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

To
The Member of
M/S. Zenith Steel Pipes & Industries Limited,

[, Purushottam Sonavane, Director, declare that all the Board Members and senior management
personnel of the Company have complied with the Code of Conduct of the Company for the period
from 1st April, 2023 to 31st March, 2024.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of Zenith Steel Pipes & Industries Limited
CIN -L29220MH1960PLC011773

Sd/-

Purshottam Sonavane
Director

Place: Mumbai
Date: September 07, 2024

DIRECTOR & CFO CERTIFICATION

The Whole time Director and the Chief Financial Officer of the Company give annual certification
on financial reporting and internal controls to the board in terms of Regulation17(8) of the Listing
Regulations. Director and the Chief Financial Officer also give quarterly certification on financial
results while placing the financial results before the Board in terms of Regulation 33(2) of the
Listing Regulations. The annual certificate given by the Director and the Chief Financial Officer is
published in this Report.

Certificate by the Whole time Director and Chief Financial Officer (CFO) pursuant to Regulation
17(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 on the
Audited Financial Statement for the year 2023-24.

We, Minal Pote Whole time Director and B. Girvanesh-CFO of the Company here by certify that:-

1. We have reviewed the Financial Statements and Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on
31st March, 2024 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:

I. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or
contain statements that might be misleading;

II. these statements together present a true & fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in
compliance with existing Accounting Standards, applicable Laws and Regulations.

2. To the best of our knowledge and belief, there were no transactions entered into by the
Company during the year, which were fraudulent, illegal or which violated the Company’s Code

of Conduct.

3. We are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal control for the financial reporting
and we have;
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(a) Evaluated the effectiveness of internal control system of the Company pertaining to finaX
reporting
(b) Not found any deficiencies in the design or operation of the internal control.

4. We have indicated to the Company’s Statutory Auditors, internal auditors and the audit
committee of the Board of Directors

(a) Significant changes that have occurred in the internal control over financial reporting during
the year;

(b) There have been no significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the
same have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements;

(c) There have been no instances of significant fraud nor there was any involvement of the
management or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system
over financial reporting; and

(d) There were no deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls, which could
adversely affect the Company’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data nor
there was any material weakness in internal controls over financial reporting nor any corrective
actions with regards to deficiencies, as there none.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Zenith Steel Pipes & Industries Limited

Sd/- Sd/-
Minal Pote B. Girvanesh
Wholetime Director Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date: September 07, 2024
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

(As per clause C of Schedule V of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015 read with regulation 34(3) of the said Listing
Regulations).

To
The Members
ZENITH STEEL PIPES &INDUSTRIES LIMITED

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from
the Directors of ZENITH STEEL PIPES & INDUSTRIES LIMITED having CIN:
L29220MH1960PLC011773 and having registered office at 5th Floor, Industry House, 159,
Churchgate Reclamation, Mumbai-400020, Maharashtra, India (herein after referred to as ‘the
Company’), produced before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in
accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Subclause 10 (i) of the Securities
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including
Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in as considered
necessary and explanations furnished to us by the Company & its officers, we hereby certify that
none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending
on 31st March, 2024 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as
Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate
Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority.

SR. No. | Name of Director DIN Date of appointment in
Company
1. Mr. Ganesh Ramesh Mahendrakar 10240514 15/07/2023
2. Mrs. Sadhana Avinash Patil 06565115 20/03/2019
3. Mrs. Minal Umesh Pote 07163539 14/08/2019
4. Mr. Purushottam Digambar Sonavane 08405653 29/03/2019
5. Mr. Pramod Shivaji Bhosale 08669615 13/03/2020
6. Mrs. Bhavika Sharma 08846865 24/08/2020

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the
responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of
the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the
affairs of the Company.

For Anil Somani & Associates
Practising Company Secretaries

SD/-

CS Anil Kumar Somani
ACS: 36055

COP: 13379

Place: Bhilwara
Date: September 07, 2024
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CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To,
The Members of
ZENITH STEEL PIPES & INDUSTRIES LIMITED

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by ZENITH STEEL
PIPES & INDUSTRIES LIMITED for the year ended on 31st March 2024 as stipulated in Schedule
V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The Compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management.

Our examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company
for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor
an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as
stipulated in the above mentioned Listing Regulations except observations mentioned in
secretarial audit report.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company, nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the
affairs of the Company.

For Anil Somani & Associates
Practising Company Secretaries

SD/-

CS Anil Kumar Somani
ACS: 36055

COP: 13379

Place: Bhilwara
Date: September 07, 2024
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Annexure-C

ANIL SOMANI & ASSOCIATES

B-5, Ganpati Complex, Pur Road, Bhilwara, Rajasthan-311001
Email Id: corporatesolutions14@gmail.com, (M) 09166611876

Form No. MR-3 SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2023
[Pursuant to section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

ZENITH STEEL PIPES & INDUSTRIES LIMITED
(Formerly known as Zenith Birla (India) Limited)
5th Floor, Industry House,

159, Church gate Reclamation,

Mumbai-400020.

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by ZENITH STEEL PIPES & INDUSTRIES LIMITED
(hereinafter called the company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us
a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliance’s and expressing
our opinion thereon.

Management’'s Responsibility for Secretarial Compliance’s

The company’s Management is responsible for preparation and maintenance of secretarial
records and for devising proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of applicable
laws and regulations.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the Secretarial records, Standards, Procedures
followed by the company with respect to Secretarial Compliance’s.

[ believe that audit evidence and information obtained from the Company’s management is
adequate and appropriate for me to provide a basis for my opinion.

Opinion

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company,
its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, We
hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial
year ended on 31st March, 2024 complied with the statutory provisions listed here-under and
also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the
extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2024 according to the
provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under;
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;
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(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there uléer
to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External
Commercial Borrowings;

(v)  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;
b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015;
c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009;
d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; N. A.
e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008; N.A.
f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;
g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009; and
h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; N.
A.
(vi) The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986
(vii) The EPF & Misc. Provisions Act, 1952;
(viii) Employees’ state Insurance Act, 1948;
(ix) The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965;
(x) The payment of Gratuity Act, 1972

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India;
(i) SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above except:

1. Prosecution has been filed against the company by Registrar of Companies, Mumbai for
Non Compliance of order of Hon’ble Company Law Board, Mumbai dated 18.08.2014
with regard to defaulted in payment to depositors.

2. The Company has not complied with the provision of section 74 of the Companies Act,
2013 or any other relevant provision of the Act, and the Companies (Acceptance of
Deposits) Rules, 2014 with regard to non-repayment of deposits and interest, on due date,
maintenance of liquid assets to the extent required as well as not fully complying with
the orders passed by the Company Law Board.

3. The company has violated provision of SEBI Act, 1992 and SEBI Regulations for issue of
GDR. The SEBI vide order dated 31.03.2021 banned the Company from the capital market
for three years. As informed to us the Company has filed appeal against the order.

The Securities Appellate Tribunal (SAT) Mumbai has partly allowed the appeal filed by
the Company and reduced penalty from Rs. 10.00 cr. to Rs. 25.00 Lakh (penalty amount
is not paid by the company) and reduced debarment period to the penalty undergone. The
penalty against chairman and managing director and his debarment from the capital
market for one years is confirmed.
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The Securities and exchange Board of India has filed a civil appeal with the Sup¥em
Court against SAT Order and the same is pending

4 The Regional Director, Western Region, Mumbai has filed a petition before Hon'ble
National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai against the Company, its directors/KMPs
under Section 221/222/241/242/246 r.w. 339 of the Companies Act, 2013 on 08.04.2022 and
Serious Fraud Investigation Office (SFIO) is also investigating the affairs of the
company.

5. Composition of Board of Director was not in accordance with Regulation 17 of SEBI
(LODR), 2015. (01st April to 15.07.2023)

6. Composition of Nomination & Remuneration Committee was not in accordance with
Regulation 19 of SEBI (LODR), 2015. (April to September, 2023).

7. The listed entity has delayed filed Annual Secretarial Compliance Certificate for
31.03.2023 and the same is also not filed in XBRL mode as per Regulation 24A of SEBI
(LODR), 2015 with the stock exchanges.

8. The listed entity has delayed filed Related Party Transaction Report for the half year
ended 30.09.2023 as per Regulation 23(9) of SEBI (LODR), 2015 with the stock exchanges.

9. The listed entity has not filed annual report of FY 2022-23 in XBRL mode with the stock
exchanges as per Regulation 34 of SEBI (LODR), 2015.

10. Details of Board Meetings provided are not correct in quarterly Corporate Governance
Report for December, 2023.

11. The listed entity has delayed filed outcome of Board Meeting held on 06.11.2023

12. The listed entity has delayed filed with the stock exchanges advertisement in newspaper
for financial results for the quarter ended 30.06.2023 as per Regulation 47 of SEBI
(LODR), 2015.

13. The listed entity has not maintained updated website as per Regulation 46 of SEBI
(LODR) Regulation, 2015

14 The Company has not adopted all applicable policies prescribed under SEBI (LODR)
Regulation, 2015

15. The Company has not adopted Policy of Preservation of Documents and Archival policy
prescribed under SEBI LODR Regulations, 2015.

16. The Company has not filed Annual Performance Report (APR) to RBI for foreign
subsidiaries of the Company (Zenith USA and Zenith Middle East).

17. The Company has not filed Form MGT-14 for approval of director’s report FY 2022-23
and Form CRA-2 for appointment of cost auditor for the financial year 2023-24.

Statutory Auditors observation:

The statutory auditor of the company has issued qualified audit report for the year ended on 31st
March, 2024 and mentioned some observations in their audit report.
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We further report that

1. The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non- Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition
of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in
compliance with the provisions of the Act.

2. Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting.

3. Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and
recorded as part of the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance
with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

Disclosures:

1. During the June, 2023 quarter, the Company had received a letter on from Directorate of
Enforcement {under Foreign Exchange Management Act) on 22/05/2023 directing the company
to submit certain records/documents as listed in the said letter pursuant to order u/s 37 of
Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 read with Section 133(6) of the Income Tax Act, 1961.
In response to the same the Company had submitted the requisite documents to the department.
As on date, the company has not received any further communication in regards to the same.

2. The company has accumulated losses exceeding the share capital and reserves and its net worth
has been fully eroded. These conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that may
cast significant doubt about the company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

3. The show cause notice u/s 148A(b) of Income Tax Act, 1961 received by Company on
01/03/2024 for AY 2020-21 and necessary submission was made on 14/03/2024. Further
notice u/s 148 of Income Tax Act, 1961 was received on 15/05/2024 related to the said mater.

For Anil Somani & Associates
Practising Company Secretaries
PR 1869/2022

Anil Kumar Somani
ACS: 36055

COP: 13379

UDIN: A036055F001168221

Place: Bhilwara
Date: 7t September, 2024

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as “Annexure A” and
forms an integral part of this report.
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ANNEXURE - A

To,
The Members,
ZENITH STEEL PIPES & INDUSTRIES LIMITED

(Formerly known as Zenith Birla (India) Limited)
5th Floor, Industry House,
159, Church gate Reclamation,

Mumbai-400020.

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe
that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the company.

. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance
of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards are the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification
of procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to future viability of the company nor of
the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
company.

For Anil Somani & Associates
Practising Company Secretaries
PR 1869/2022

Anil Kumar Somani

ACS: 36055

COP: 13379

UDIN: A036055F001168221

Place: Bhilwara
Date: 7th September, 2024
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Annexure-D
Form AOC-2

Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with
related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including
certain arm'’s length transactions under third proviso there to

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with
related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including
certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso there to

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: None

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Zenith Steel Pipes & Industries Limited

Sd/- Sd/-
Minal Pote B. Girvanesh
Wholetime Director Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date: September 07, 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of
Zenith Steel Pipes & Industries Limited
(Formerly known as Zenith Birla (India) Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Zenith Steel Pipes &
Industries Limited (formerly known as Zenith Birla (India) Limited) (“the Company”), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash
Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including a
summary of the material accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein after
referred to as “the standalone financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
subject to the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified opinion paragraph below
the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act,2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give true and fair view in conformity with the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March 2024,
the loss and the total comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended
on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

The Company has not complied with the provision of section 74 or any other relevant provision
of the Act, and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 with regard to non-repayment
of deposits and interest, on due date, maintenance of liquid assets to the extent required as well
as not fully complying with the orders passed by the Company Law Board.

With reference to Note No 43 regarding the balance of Trade Payables, Trade Receivables, Loans,
Advances, Deposits, intergroup, current liabilities, borrowing from others etc. being not
confirmed by the parties due to pending reconciliation the management has not sent direct
confirmations to parties and hence our inability to state whether these balances are recoverable
/payable to the extent stated.

The Company has made a provision of Rs. 41.07 lakhs in respect of certain current bank accounts
maintained with various banks, which have been frozen by regulatory authorities. In the absence
of bank statements and year-end balance confirmations, we are unable to comment on its impact,
if any, on the books of account. (Refer note 50).

The Company has accumulated losses exceeding the share capital and reserves and its net worth
has been fully eroded. These conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that may
cast significant doubt about the company’s ability to continue as a going concern. However, the
standalone financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis considering
management’s assessment of the current situation and future prospects. (Refer note 47)

The Company has considered inventory value of Rs. 1,986.47 Lakhs as on 31st March, 2024 in the

standalone financial statements by adopting weighted average cost method as informed to us.
Since adequate information and necessary supporting evidences for the valuation were not made
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available to us, as a result the impact of shortage/ excess of inventory, if any, could nd
ascertained and adjusted in the books. (Refer Note no 49)

We conducted our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SA’s) specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to the following matters forming part of the notes to the standalone financial
statements:

Note no. 45 regarding MOU entered into by the Company with Tribus Real Estate Pvt. Ltd (TREPL)
for taking over the Company’s secured bank loan, which is pending completion.

Note no. 48 regarding to the order issued by SEBI for violations of provisions of SEBI Act 1992
and SEBI regulations regarding issue of GDR.

Note no. 46 regarding Securitization & Reconstruction of Financial Assets initiated by Consortium
Banks for repayment of dues Rs. 19,319.00 Lakhs as on 31st January, 2014 and have taken
symbolic possession of immovable assets and filed case for physical possession. The case is
pending in DRT Pune.

Note no. 53 regarding the show cause notice u/s 148A(b) of Income Tax Act, 1961 received by
Company on 01st March, 2024 for AY 2020-21.

Note no. 54 regarding reversal of provisions for expenses and disclosed in the Financial
Statements.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.
Key Audit Matters

Key Audit Matters (“KAM”) are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In
addition to the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion Section, we have determined
the matters described below to be the Key Audit Matters (“KAM”) to be communicated in our
report.

Key Audit Matter Auditors’ Response

Evaluation of income tax provision In view of significance of matter, we applied
The Company is required to estimate its the following audit procedures in this area,
income tax liabilities in accordance with among others to obtain sufficient appropriate
the tax laws applicable in India. Further, audit evidence:

there are matters of interpretation in
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terms of application of tax laws and
related rules to determine current tax
provision and deferred taxed.

The Company has material tax positions
and litigations on a range of tax matters.
This requires management to make
significant judgements to determine the
possible outcome of uncertain tax
provisions and litigations and their
consequent  impact
accounting and disclosures

standalone financial statements.

related
in the

on

Refer Note 34 to the Standalone
Financial Statements.

testing the design and operating
effectiveness of the company’s key controls
over identifying uncertain tax position and
matters involving litigations/disputes.

obtaining details of tax positions and tax

litigations for the year and as at 31st March

2024 and holding discussions with
designated management personnel.
assessing and analyzing select key

correspondences with tax authorities and
inspecting external legal opinions obtained
by management for key uncertain tax
positions and tax litigations.

evidence and
documentation to determine whether the
information provides a basis for amounts
reserved / not reserved in the books of
account.

evaluating underlying

Involving our tax specialists and evaluating
managements underlying key assumptions
in estimating the tax provisions and
estimate the possible outcome of tax
litigations; and in respect of tax positions
and litigation, assessing the computation of
provisions and consequent impact on
related accounting and disclosures in the
standalone financial statements.

We verified that the income tax provisions
recognized till date in the books of account and
assessed that the related disclosures are given
in the financial statements.

2023-24

Allowance for credit losses

The  Company the
allowance for credit losses based on
historical loss experience adjusted to
reflect current and estimated future
economic conditions. The Company
considered current and anticipated

determines

future economic conditions relating to
industries the Company deals with and
the geographical location where it
operates.

In calculating expected credit loss, the
Company has also considered credit
reports
information for its
estimate the probability of default in

and other related credit

customers to

Our audit procedures related to the allowance

for
the

credit losses for trade receivables included
following, among others:

We tested the effectiveness of controls over

the

e development of the methodology for
the losses,
including consideration of the current
and

allowance for credit

estimated future economic
conditions

e completeness and accuracy of
information used in the estimation of
probability of default and

e Computation of the allowance for

credit losses.
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future.

We
losses as a key audit matter because the
Company significant
judgment in calculating the expected
credit losses.

identified allowance for credit

exercises

Refer Note 57 to the Standalone
financial statements.

For a sample of customers:
We tested the input data such as credit reports
and other credit related information used in
estimating the probability of default by
comparing them to external and internal
sources of information.

We tested the mathematical accuracy and
computation of the allowances by using the
same input data used by the Company.

2023-24

Investment impairment assessment

investments in
investments are

The Company has
subsidiaries. These
accounted for at cost less impairment. If
an impairment exists, the recoverable
amounts of the above investment are
estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any.

Determination of for
impairment in these
investments and recoverable amount
significant
judgements.

triggers
value of
and

involves estimates

Evaluation of impairment risk and assessing
whether triggers exist for any investment
based on consideration of external and
internal factors affecting the value and
performance of the investment.

Our audit procedures included:
e Obtained management assessment of
recoverable amount for investments where
impairment risk is identified.

¢ Evaluated the mathematical accuracy of the
cash flow projection and assessed the
underlying key
management’s valuation models used to
determine recoverable amount considering
external data, including assumptions of
projected EBITDA, revenue growth rate,
terminal growth rates, discount rates, and
assessed the sensitivity of the assumptions
on the impairment assessment and assessed
the forecasts against the historical
performance.

assumptions in

We assessed the appropriateness of the
related disclosures in the standalone financial
statements.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
other information. The other information comprises the information included in the Management
Discussion and Analysis, Director’s Report including annexures to Director’s Report, Corporate
Governance Report and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the Standalone Financial
Statements and our Auditors’ Report thereon. The above-referred information is expected to be
made available to us after the date of this Auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance, conclusion thereon.
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5) In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements
or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to date of this
audit report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the other information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein,
we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take
appropriate actions, if required.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone
Financial Statements.

6) The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in
Section 134 (5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance (including other
comprehensive income), changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with, the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act and the accounting
principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

7) In preparing the standalone financial statements, management and Board of Directors are
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone financial statements

8) Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143 (3) (i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to Standalone financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements
in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

9) Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order") issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act and on the basis of the
examination of the books and records of the Company as we considered appropriate and
according to the information and explanation given to us, we give in the “Annexure A” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

10) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in
paragraph 10(h) (vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended);

c. The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive income), the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the Standalone
Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

d. In our opinion and to the best of our information and explanation given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended;

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March 2024
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on 31st
March 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B”. Our report expresses a Qualified Opinion on the internal financial controls over
financial statements of the Company for the year.

g. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the remuneration paid by the company to its directors during the year is in accordance with
the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with
Rule11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31st March 2024 on
its financial position in its standalone financial statements. Refer Note 34 to the
standalone financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There has been no amount required to be transferred as on 31st March 2024, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company;

iv.

a. The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
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funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds d
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any
other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company.

b. The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including
foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

c. Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that
the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

v. The company has not declared or paid any Dividend during the year.

vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
software’s for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended 31st March,
2024 which does not have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility for all
relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, in absence of audit trail feature
in the system we are unable to comment on whether the audit trail feature is being
tampered with.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from 1st
April, 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record
retention is not applicable for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024.

For CKSP AND CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN - 131228W / W100044

Dhananajay Jaiswal

Partner

M. No. 187686

UDIN: 24187686BKBXMW2292
Place: Mumbai

Dated: 28th May, 2024
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report of even date, to the members of Zenith Steel Pipes & Industries Limited (formerly
known as Zenith Birla (India) Limited) (“the Company”), on the Standalone Financial Statements
for the year ended 31st March 2024.)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company
and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that:

In respect off the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

a) (A) The Company has not maintained records showing full particulars including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.
(B) The Company has not maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

b) Based on the information and explanation given to us, the Company’s management carries out
the physical verification of Property, Plant and Equipment once in a year. In our opinion, the
frequency of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and
nature of its assets. As explained to us, no material discrepancies were noticed by the
management on such physical verification.

c) Inouropinion and according to information and explanations given to us, and on based on our
examination of records of the company provided to us, we report that, the title deeds in respect
of buildings and factory buildings disclosed in the standalone financial statements included
under Property, Plant and Equipment are held in the name of the Company (Refer Note no 2)
as at the balance sheet date except as under:

Description Gross Held in Whether Period Reason
of property carrying name of promoter, held - for not
value director Since being
(Rupees or their held in
in relative the name
Lakhs) or of
employee company
Free Hold 329.50 Tungabhadra No 2010 Disputed
Property Holdings Pvt under land
Ltd regulatory
authorities
records

d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and
Equipment (including Right-of-use assets) or Intangible assets or both during the year.

e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(a) The inventories, except goods-in-transit and stocks lying with third parties, were
physically verified during the year by the Management at reasonable intervals. In our opinion
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the coverage and procedure of such verification by the Management is appropriate haw#ng
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its operations. No discrepancies were
noticed on verification between the physical stocks and book record that were 10% or more
in the aggregate for each class of inventories.

(b) Asper the information and explanations given to us, the company has not been sanctioned
working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, at any point of time during
the year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets and
hence reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

iii. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments in, provided guarantee
and granted loans, secured or unsecured, to its related parties during the year. Hence the
provisions of sub-clause (a) to (f) are not applicable to the Company.

iv. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any
investments, nor granted any loans or provided any guarantees or securities to parties covered
under Section 185 of the Companies Act,2013 and the company has not provided any loan,
guarantee or security as specified under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. Further, the
Company has complied with the provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect
of investments made.

v. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, in respect of compliance by the Company with the directive issued
by the Reserve Bank of India, the provisions of section 73 to 76 of the companies Act, 2013 read
with Rules made thereunder with regard to repayment of deposits and interest on due date,
maintenance of liquid assets to the extent required are not complied with and the company has
also not fully complied with the orders passed by the Company Law Board.

vi. According to the information and explanations given to us by management, the books of accounts
maintained by the Company in respect of products where, pursuant to the rules made by Central
Government of India, the maintenance of cost records has been prescribed under sub section (i)
of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and we have relied on the cost audit report issued by
the cost auditor dated 13th February, 2024 on the basis of which we are of the opinion that prima
facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained.

vii. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us in our opinion except for dues in respect of Dividend Distribution Tax, Tax
Deducted at Source, Profession Tax, Tax Collected at Source, Provident Fund and Labour Welfare
Fund the Company is generally regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues including
Custom Duty, Cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable. The following balances
remained in arrears as at the last day of the financial year for a period exceeding six months from
the date, they become payable:

S .No. Nature of Due Amount Outstanding (Rs.in
lakhs)

1. Income Tax Deducted at Source 24.68

2. Provident Fund 28.19

3. Professional Tax 1.01

4, Maharashtra Labour Welfare Fund 0.01

5. Dividend Distribution Tax 359.08

6. Interest on Dividend Distribution Tax 527.85
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b) According to the information and explanation given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there were no disputed dues in respect of Service Tax. The particulars of Dues of
Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Sales Tax, and Value added tax and Income Tax as at March 31, 2024,
which have not been deposited on account of disputes are as follows:

Period to
. . . Amount
Name of the Nature which the Forur.n where dispute is (Rs in
Statute of Dues matte.r pending lakhs)
pertains to
CustomAct, 1962 Custom 1985-86 High Court 3.45
Duty 1998-99 Tribunal 82.00
Central Excise 1995-96 Commissioner Appeal 129.78
ExciseAct,1959 Duty
Central Sales Tax Central 1995-96 Tribunal 78.88
Act, 1956 Sales
Tax
Maharashtra Value Value 2006-07 Joint Commissioner 1,739.30
Added Tax,2002 added Appeal
Tax 2007-08 Joint Commissioner 2,577.63
Appeal
2011-12 Tribunal 50.98
2012-13 Joint Commissioner 330.30
Appeal
Income Tax Act, Income 2013-14 CIT(Appeal) 2.18
1961 Tax 2014-15 CIT(Appeal) 215.16
2018-19 CIT(Appeal) 35.44

viii. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not surrendered or
disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books of account, in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report
on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

ix. a) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanations
given to us, there has been default in payments to the banks since August 2012. The company has
entered into an agreement with Tribus Real Estate Pvt. Ltd. for taking over the company’s dues to
the banks as reflected earlier in the company books on terms agreed to between the Company and
Tribus Real Estate Pvt. Ltd. Consequently, there are no Bank loan/outstanding in the Books of the
Company as this has been transferred to Tribus Real Estate Pvt. Ltd during earlier years.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank
or financial institution or government or government authority.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company
has obtained loan during the year. The same were applied by the Company for the purposes for
which the loans were obtained.

d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis by the Company,

Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of

80



Annual Report

2023-24

the standalone financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not t3
any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries
as defined under the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not
applicable.

f) According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us,
we report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held
in its subsidiaries as defined under the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(f) of the
Order is not applicable

X. a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or
further public offer (including debt instruments). Accordingly, Clause (x)(a) of Order is not
applicable.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

xi.  a)No fraud by the Company has been noticed or reported during the course of the audit. However,
as per the information and explanation provided by the Company, during the year one fraud has
been identified on the Company by an employee amounting to not more than Rs.75 lakhs against
which the Company has recovered an amount to the tune of Rs. 56 lakhs which was adjusted
against Outstanding Ocean Freight Payable.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as
prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government.

¢) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not received any
whistle blower complaints during the year.

xii.  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

xiii. According to information and explanations given to us, all transactions with the related parties
are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and the details of such
transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

xiv. (a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our
opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period
under audit.

xv.  According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him and hence clause 3(xv) of

the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvi. (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.
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(b) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of audit, the
Company does not have any CIC. Accordingly, the requirements of clause 3(xvi)(d) are not
applicable.

xvii. The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding
financial year.

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

xix. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the Board
of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting
its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date
of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company
as and when they fall due.

xx.  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there provisions of
Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, clauses
3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

xxi. The clause 3 (xxi) of the order is not applicable to the Standalone Financial Statements, hence no
comment is given.

For CKSP AND CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN - 131228W / W100044

Dhananajay Jaiswal

Partner

M. No. 187686

UDIN: 24187686BKBXMW2292

Place: Mumbai
Dated: 28th May, 2024
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report to the members of Zenith Steel Pipes & Industries Limited (formerly known
as Zenith Birla (India) Limited) of even date.)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the
Act’).

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements
of Zenith Steel Pipes & industries Limited (formerly known as Zenith Birla (India) Limited)
(‘the Company’) as of 31st March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s and Board of Director’s Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls.

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control with reference to financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting (‘the Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note issued by ICAI and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over Financial
Reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Statements

A company’s internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that -

i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

iii) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on
the standalone financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal, financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management over ride of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Qualified Opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the following
material weaknesses have been identified as at 31st March, 2024:

a) The Company does not have an approved delegation of authority matrix, which leads to
uncertainties regarding decision-making authority and responsibility within the
organization. This deficiency may result in unauthorized transactions, inefficient processes,
and increased risk of errors or fraud, as there are no clearly defined parameters for approving
and executing financial transactions and other significant actions.

b) The Company does not have a Risk Control Matrix (RCM). Without a comprehensive
assessment of the RCM, the company may not effectively identify, assess, or mitigate risks
associated with its financial and operational processes. This oversight can impair the ability
to implement appropriate controls, increasing the risk of financial misstatements,
operational inefficiencies, and non-compliance with regulatory requirements.

¢) The Company does not have an appropriate internal control system for identification and
allocation of overheads to inventory. This could potentially result in material misstatements
in the Company’s consumption, inventory and expense account balances.

d) The Company does not have a system to obtain balance confirmations from all parties.
Without periodic balance confirmations, there is an increased risk of inaccuracies in the
company's financial statements. This deficiency may lead to discrepancies between the
company’s records and those of its external parties, potentially resulting in unidentified
errors.
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A ‘material weakness’ is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial control
over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the company's annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a
timely basis.

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has maintained, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements were operating effectively as at 31st March 2024 based on the internal
financial control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by
the ICAI, except for the possible effects of the material weaknesses described above on the
achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the Company’s internal financial controls
over financial reporting were operating effectively as of 31st March, 2024.

We have considered the material weaknesses identified and reported above in determining the
nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the 31st March 2024 financial
statements of the Company, and these material weaknesses do not affect our qualified opinion on
the standalone financial statements of the Company.

For CKSP AND CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN - 131228W / W100044

Dhananajay Jaiswal

Partner

M. No. 187686

UDIN: 24187686BKBXMW2292

Place: Mumbai
Dated: 28th May, 2024
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ZENITH STEEL PIPES AND INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Standalone Balance sheet as at 315t March, 2024
As at As at
i Particulars Rote | 31stMarch, 2024 | 31t March, 2023
’ ) Amount in Lakhs)| (Amount in Lakhs)
ASSETS
HOMN-CURRENT ASSETS
Froperty, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Asset
{a) |Froperty. Plant & Equipment 2 4 350 80 4.451.01
(b) |Capital work n progress 3 #5231 o823
(g) |intangible Asscls 4 1.19 12.67
{d) Financial Assets -
(&) (1) Irnvesirments 5 245 248
(i) Diher Financal Asseats G 337.04 256 27
(fy Other Non-Curent Assets T 237850 221017
Total Non - Current Assets T.A62.72 T.091.83
CURREMNT ASSETS
(@)  |InwEnlones 8 1,586 47 20584 48
(b} Financial Assets -
(i) Trade Rectivables 9 5574 23 4 37871
(it} Cash and Cash Equivaleris 10 4307 524,56
{lll) Bank Balances ather than (1) above i1 65, 0 0.5
{n} Loans 12 1.573.18 1,632 33
{v) Other Financial Assets - -
(g)  |Other Cumrent Assels 13 1.356.13 ST
{dy Current lax assels (Nel) 14 o4 45 191 5:"_
Total - Current Asm:l 10,693, 48 9, 460,25 |
Total Assets 17,856.20 16, 552,08
1. EGUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(@) |Egquity share capital 15 14 228 04 14 226804
ib} |Other equity 16 EIH{HII {38 232 0T
Total - Equity (25,066, T0) (25,004.03)]
LIABILITIES
A Hon-Current Liabllitles
(@) |Financial liabilities
(i} Borrowings iT 181633 IT.26
(b} |Provisions 18 SIT.23 b
(e) |Deferred tax Babilites (Mei) 1% 504 86 S04 85
Total Hon - Current Liabilities| 2 . 1,365,315
B Current Liahilities
{@) |Financial liabilities
(I} Bormowings 17 18 282 14 2120612
{il} Trade payables 20 - -
- MSME Fayable 24T 87 -
-Cher Than MSME Payabla 8270 85 B BGE5 85
{iiiy Other financial liabities 1 4 374,43 4, 133,08
(b) |Ofher canrent labfities 2 6,860 25 5,014 61
(gl |Provisions 18 T1.4T 564
id) Current tax kabilitses (Met) 23 GOE 4T BE5 38
Total - Current Liabilities 40,024 .48 40, 190,76
Total Equity and Liabilities 17,856.20 16,552.08 |
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
As Per Our Aftached Report of Even Date ;;‘I“:T;: e e e
ForGCHK S P AND CO LLP LI - LECA0MH Y S50RLC0TT £
Charlered Accountants
Firm Regustration No . 131228WAA 100044
Purushottam Sonavane Minal Pote
Dhananajay Jaiswal Director Whale time Directo
Partner DIM. 08405653 DM, 07163538
Membership Mo, 187688
B.Girvanesh Sonal Solanki
Place: Mumbai Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Dt 28lh May 2024
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ZENITH STEEL PIPES AND INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Standalgne Statement of Profit and Loss for the Period ended 315t March, 2024
Rs in Lakhs
For the year ended
::'_ Particulars f:: st March, 2023
) {Amourt in Lakhs|
L. IHEOME
Revienue fiom operabons M 16,405,549
rincoms 5 T0E 76
clal incoms 17,112 35
I EXPEMBES
i of Rearer Miberinls and Components Consumed 5 10,623 58
Putchasses of Stock-n-Trade i 40048
anges in Irventones of Fnished Goods, Semi-Finished Goods and 28 107 %
Sock-in-Trads ;
Employes bensfis aipense s 82E3
Financs costs R HTET
Deprocston & amorizaban epenss N 5T
I BEPEMGES 32 R ]
utal Expenses 16,751.52
n. Profit / [Loss) befare exception iems and tax {11} 351.03
Iv. Excapbonal #ams -
V. Prafit / [Loas) befare tax [l - V) 361.03
WL B GG
(1) Earfiar Year's Tax .
viL Profit iLoss) for the peried from coninuing operations (V-V1) 381,03
Vil Profit {Loss) from discontinuing cperations {327.73)
18 ax enpense of deconbinuing operations
X Fredit{less) from Discontinuing operations | afier tax) (VIII-LX) (327,73
XL ProfibLoss) for the penod [VE#X) 1230
118 ER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ij Bems that will pat be recassifed ko prod of loss
Related fo employas beredits BED
Forsign Trarsaation Difference .
in} Incgme e relatng bo ilems that will nol bs reclassified W profit or
ks
Tiokal Otfwer Comprenensing income (red of fao) E60
etal Comprehansive income for the year, ret of tax (X1+XN] 42590
Earnings Per Ehars [EPE] 13
Basic and Diluled EPS for the period from Continuing and i
Ciscontinued Operations
Basic and Diluted EPS for the pariod from Confinuing 024
Operations
Basic and Diluled EPS for the period from Ciscontinusd 021
Operations
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
A5 Per Ou Altsehsd Report of Even Dets r;m;;:ﬂMMﬂUMMdmmllel
FerCKSPANDCOLLP CIN - L202208H 1 960PL00 17T
Chartanad Assountants
Fiem Regitration Mo 13122800 100044
Purushottam Sendavans Minal Pote
Chamarajay Jaiswal Director Whols time Director
Partner DiN, DB4REELI DM, 07163639
Membarship Mo: 187556
B.Girvanesh Zonal Sokanki
Place: Mumbai Chief Finarcial Officer Company Secretary
Ceatey 264h Mary X124
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR FRIFED 318T MARCH, 2074

Sr. Mo, Particulars
A |CASH FLOW FROM OFDRATING ACTRAITIES:
M prolil bl P g, g prce peiosd adfjusiomsnis (lcksdeng
Apasralzn)

Adpratrrants Tor:
Crinprrord i lns sl A isalios
Fruarce Couls
Praf on Bale of Ases
Irrlirasl coms

Dperating Profia Bofors Waorking Copleal Changos
Al jusbisenia Tor changes in workng capital =
s i b &
Trade Recsrvabilan
Loans
CHFr Cusront Assals
Trade Fayaldes
Pregeniiaang
o Fevaneal Liabdises
CHFwr Mom-current Financial Assals
i Cosrrand | chiles
Propvinacmn In Mo -Curnent Lk

Cwsh Flow From OGperating Activities Aftor Dxcaptional Bom
hecoans tax pakid (et ol ssfumd)
Direct Tames Pasdiveversal (Hed of Redund)

Hea Cash Flow From Opersing Accivities Afeer Exoopiionsd loem......(&)
CASH FLOW FROM MYESTHG ACTIVITIES:
Paynsents mada for Property, Mlant and Equipmant and Cogial Werk in Progress
Payments made for Intangbie Assots
Prowcissctn fram saks of Propedy, Pl ard Fauigmanl
Crthasr Hor-Cuneed Asssis
InSaresl Racanad
Hub-fotal
et Cash usaad Tor Invesilng Acilviiles. .. ......... (B8]

CASH FLOW FROM FINAMCBG ACTNITIHS:

Fompaymant of EBomoesmgs
Indpresi Pad

Mat Cash usaed far Financing Activities, .. ... {C}

Hadt Increnss[Necrenass) in Cash & Caah Frpsvalenis (f+08+40)
Camhi amd Cash Equivalsnis af ihe beglonlng of ihe peboad
Add: (ncrease) | Decrease n Fixed Deposit accounts kept os
mmamrgln mscaney with banks

Cash and Cash Equivalemis at the end of perbod

Rcoapciliation of Cash and Bank Balances

Coanikh arwl Bank Balarsan

Lsns

Bakines i Foosd Dapodil stoounts wilh hanks huaving & maturly pesmod
of Pione Bhan thres monthe

Cash and Cash Equivalents ot the end of perbod

Balances wilh Banks in Cwrrent Acoounis
Craash om Hand

Bardk Deposd Mavng Mabenty Less 1han Thres Months
Léad - Pravisss fos Diveshing Wahis o Bark Balancs

R

Ths

Ststemant of cech floe ht besn prepersd under tha indirsct mathad s cet out in ths nd A%
¥ mSeatement of Cash Flow™ ab wpecilied in e 4 (el E dtandardi)
Rules, J08%

granylng notes ars an inisgral part of th financial i

AS P U ATLSCNRD FISpT OF EvEn Dans

Foa K% F AND COLLP
Charimmd Acoodavianis
Firm: Fagisiradion Mg 130 2006000 1000

2023-24
R# lin Lakl
For the year ondod
Fsi Maaclhs, 2033
24547
M7 AT
{224}
560,80
554,10
Tod TR
{1.298.37)
125
BOE 4D
1,048 30
BE S
201 B0
{44, 18}
AN 1)
TH A%
1.081.33
16T 4F
131.30
(ER 1]
1,004, T3
{369 T5}
(1. 06}
X
{60, Ty
{a20, ¥a)
{428.70)
el 09)
(3T AT)
1,900, 95y
11, 108, 6
Ll
151.2%
4. 2%
255, 5
Sa4.56
Sd. 58
RS O
£, S
4. 56
210083
P
50 (MR
1= 3T 534 56
For amd o Esfiall of Bowsd of Dirgctons of
Famnills lss] Pipss & Indhusvies L insitd
Pur s bl ta Soiae et Minal Paota
Mhiracine Whenile Simo Dt o
DIHL. D880 5530 G, GF 13359
WA irranat Bomal Eolanki
Mkl PRl ORI e M e L
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il

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUATY
EQLATY SHARE CAPITAL

FOR THE ¥EAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2024

{R:s in lakhs)
mﬂﬂnbwlﬁnfm Changes in Equity  |Restated balance at the |Changesin Equity | Balance at the end of
ing parled Share Capitsl due to |beginning of the current |Share Copital during  |the current reparting
prior period changes reporting period Ehs curnrent year pariod
i) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2003 {R iin lakhs)
mnmmmﬂm Changes in Equity  |Restated halance 51 the |Chanpes in Equity Balancs st the end of
ing parled Share Capital dus to |beginning of the Share Capital durbng  |the previous
prior period changes | pravicus reporting the pravicus year  reporting paricd
pavicsd
14,228 04 - 14,228.04 14, 23804
B OTHER EQUITY
il FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2023
{Res i laichs)
Othar itema of Otier
Comprehansive | Total Other
Particulars Securithes Pramium Ganeral Reserves Retained Earnings Income [specly Eauity
nature]
Balmnee as on 0104 2023 14,308 30 raa0.36 | 56, 304.52) 81379 IHHI.'I}?!
hange In Ascounting policy of pracr pesicd
mary .
Restated balince as on 0004 2023 -
Prafic Far The Yaar |ET 1Y) [&T 2:['
Eﬂrﬂ Comprataesive Income for the
UrTEnE year 455 455
racsferred to Retiansed Eprmimgs "
gthar C [ 10 bl i | -
— T e TN
i1 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2023
{Rs iin laichs)
Other itema of Other
Comprehenshve | Total Other
Particulars Securities Premium Ganeral Besarves Eetained Earnings (specify Exquity
nature]
[Balange as on O3 .04 2022 14,308 30 I.440.36 Iﬁ._ﬂ?-ﬁl Bl419 | 36174970
hange in Accounting policy or pricor pesiod
=] =
Rifabed balance 6 on 0104 M2 2 =
Prafit Far The Year 33130 3330
I;r-:-ul Comprefentive Intame for the
urrenk year 9,50 960
Tranaferred ta Aetsined Eamings -
Arry ether Chargs [ 10 be specified] -
Balarce sian 3105, 2023 14,308.30 440,06 | 56,8045 ] BERTH | (38.2320TH
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ZEWITH STEEL PFES AND MCUETRIES LWBTEL

Handaleae Hotes feiming pan of the Finenclal Salements 1o e Year saded 1131 March, 2004

P Prop@ry, Plant B Egapment ead Inaangiie Asis

Froperty, Flard asd B

Armart i lakis

| Facteuie | Feotmetdioed | Lessehsiiland | Buddisgs | Pueal Meshisery | Furniture & Futures | Veslties | 0ffes Equipsests | Compoter | Teisl
Drpad Larfyr e Wabee
Balancr 35 o ¥ Mash, M2 180850 1223 51T AL R .13 WE 2205 15,200 3%
Adkiion . ; 152 7 1.5 A 15553
(DD || DRI 1 1 v v
Bt 58 40 31 March, BBE 169655 132 BT TATATE LIRS = uX M 1EIELE
Eettoriuikitid Deprasaban
Balincs ah B 3 Massh, X1 s ] FrLTE LT i ] e 254 (8 LR
(it attion fod e v 5 -} p 1 208 1 1] ¥.1i 08 2 -]
e, Aari et L] A 2 T Lo T (K} |86 i m.ﬂl
Eaancn an af 11 Blarch, 2058 e PR 595880 " WAS T TR TS ] T
it Bt
Ry i 31 ey, 2058 1 08 5 150 LT 7050 51 HH W 33 a0 445181
&b a3 Mawch, T 109055 LT B 1TELIE 13 W Ne FECTH
ks
i i Wik |arad bnckades B 1 S L Bor vl h [ Bl il i il i BB i o Hbe doarmpiainy
3 |Capital Work in progress 4
Parficular Blant ;Hm b | Imtangible Assets
Particular | Computer Softwars
Gross Carrying Yalue Gross Carrying Velus
Balance as at 31 March, 2023 00 73 Balance as at 31 March, 2022 3306
i o Adddicn 1.18
Deduction / Adustmants
Deduchon | Adustments ni Balance s at 31 March, 2023 3422
Balance as al 31 March, 2024 BN Aisditicn
Deasdiction (| Adjusbments
Balance as at 31 March, 2024 3422
Accumiisied Depreciation
Bafanca as af 31 March X123 . Accurmulated Depreciation
Balancs as ab 31 March, 2022 2155
ecialion for e '
o o Dapraciabon for Bha year
Deducton | Adusiments 2 Deduction | Agustments :
Balance as at 31 March, 2024 . Batanoe a5 of 31 March, 2023 155
Drspriscintion fod B yisar 11,48
Deduction | Adpustments -
Met Block Balance as at 31 March, 2024 203
A5 a1 3 March, 2003 9.3
Nl Biock
B at M Warch, W24 mn
As &l 31 Maich, 2023 1267
A3 ot 31 March, 2024 119

90



Standalone Notes formin

ZEMITH STEEL PIPES AND INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Annual Report

2023-24

art of the Financial Statements for the

roended J31th March, 2024

An at An at
Br. Ho. Particulars I J1st March, 2024 =t March, 2023
| jumount in Lakhs) [Amaount in Lakhs)
Gross Block I 15,355 60 15,221,584
Lafd - Acc Deprécialion | 10, 998 08 VO, FF0 B
Laas - Impairmant of Asssls
Ml Block | !m a4 45101
Note® Flease refer note no. 2 Property, Plant & Equipmant
3 CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS
! As at As at
&r. Ha, Particilars 1 318t March, 2024 st March, 2023
- (Amount in Lakhs) [Amaunt in Lakhs)
CopHbal WO k- Progieas ] 1 0o 73
Tatal | %‘ EEEE]
Hote® Please refer note no. 3 Capital Work in Progress
4 INTAMGIEBLE ASSETS
! As at As at
Sr. M, Particulars I F1at March, 2024 Ist March, 2023
| (Amsount in Lakha) (Amaunt in Lakhs)
Gross Blook I LT ad 22
Less - Acc. Depreciation ¥ % 21.88
Mt Block | .18 1567
ote” Please refer note no. 4 h’llll‘l-ﬂihli Assels
& INWVEBTMENT
i As at As at
Sr. Mo, Particulars | Fist March, 2024 ¥t March, 2023
o (Ameunt in Lakhe) [Amaunt in Lakhe)
Ar Gther Investmeni-at Cost
Crutieeol |
4 385 a0 (31st Manch 2022 4 36 350) Fully poaid wp egquiby |
afuare of e 10 aach in Birla Transasia Carpate Limafed | 63 70 8370
Less: Provision for diminution in valee . (L e ] {63,705
I *,
) Equity Instruments in subsidiary companiss carried st |
cost (Unguoted and fully paid up } I
VMDD Soesnith (LESAG, Inc. Mow Yioak, A wholly osmied |
Subsidiary company |
{1000) Mominal walue of Shanes in Us § 30,000) | .28 2.28
|
2 UAE Durham 2 Million of Zanith Middle East FZE, A wihily |
e Susmidiary of the Company, Further VAL Dirham 0.22 |
rrallion is pencdeng Allobment | 26730 267 30
Less prowision fos dimenution in value {257 .30% (257 _30)
Inveatmeant In Zanith Middls East FZE- Dus to abasncs of
fusliire business prospective and negative net worth of entity,
considerad i svwesiment as impgaened and Tully perosvided Tor
| L 278
[+]] Cther Investment -Unguoted Fully Paid up I
|
236 UG % 1,000 epch of P.T. Horzon Synbex | Indonssia I
oodvlinue 1o be held in the (236) aene of crsbwiule The India |
Tesdl Manulachres Limibed and the aames are &bl n process |
of Bairyg Iranalarred in the nams of s SOMBany panding |
recesipl of the necessary approvad froem Reserve Bank of India | 1931 1831
bt prosviason o cirmimulon in valoe | (18 31} (150 315
2000 (31st March 2022 2000) Fully paid up equity ahee of |
Hu. 10 Esch in Tena CETP Co.of Sooesty Lid. OF RHa I
i0femch  (20d0) : 0 0
: 54 545
E) In @overmment securities - Undguoled |
HMational Saving Certificale | . .
i =] -
Total I PR ] FIEL]
Aggregate amount of guoted investments I a3 70 B3 T0
Market value of guoted Investments | 3285 32 86
Aggregate amount of unquoted vestmaents 27808 I78.09
Aggregats provision for dimimution in valus of !
nvestmants | m} (340.31)
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Sr. Mo,

Particulars

As at
st March, 2024

Unsecured; considerd good :

[Amount in Lakhs) (Amount in Lakhs)

As ot
F1st March, 2023

Deposits with Odhers S3T.04 F0E 2T
Total Non - Currant 33T.04 258.27
7 OTHER HON-CURRENT ASSETS
s at A at
Sr. No., Farticulars . 315t March, 2024 314t March, 2023
. (Amountin Lakhs) {Amount in Lakhs)
HNon-Current
Unsecured; considerd good :
Ciher Achvances (Capital Advance) - 1738
Deposits with Governrment Authonties 244 01 2319
TDS Receivakhe 33345 23875
Prepaid Expensa 11.87
Value Added Tax Recséivable ] 1. 790 87 1,720 87
Total Non - Currant : Eiﬁﬁ 2,.270.A7
8 INVENTORIES
As at As at
5r. Mo, Particulars 3st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
(Amount in Lakhs) {Armount in Lakis)
Rarey Matenals and Components 270 38 ;233
Sami-Finished Goods 13134 BhT 98
Fuashed Goods 1.590.18 E15 68
Steres and Spare Parts 14670 170.32
Oither (Scrap) 4785 3819
Taotal 1, 2004 45
% TRADE RECEIVABLES
As at As at
5r. No, Particulars 315t March, 2024 315t March, 2023
{(Amount in Lakhs) {Amount in Lakhs)
Unsecured, considerd good unless otherwise mentioned |
Considered Good 5574 23 4 T8 T
Considered doubtiul T.08 T7.98
Lesa: Prowisson for doubiiul debls [?EE] [ S8
Total 585T4.23 4308 M
Total 557423 4,378.71
10 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
A al A= at
Er, No, Particulars 31st March, 2024 315t March, 2023
{Amount in Lakhs) {Amount in Lakhs)
) Balances with Banks in Currend Accounts B3.20 21083
B} Cash on Hand 0,85 2.00
Ch Bank Deposit Having Maturity Less Than Thres Months - 250,00
Less : Provision for Dirnishing Value in Bank Bakance {41 .ﬁ?i [38.23T)
Tokal 524.58
41 OTHER BANK BALAMCES
As at As at
5r. Mo, Particulars  31st March, 2024 315t March, 2023
1 !EI‘H in I.il:l'lll; (Amount in Lakhs)
A Balances in Margin Money Accouni i 5 5 60 8
Tatal BE.84 B0.54
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17 Loan
At &S nt
Br. Mo, Particulars M=t March, 2024 I =t March, 2023
| {Areunt in Lakiv) AUt in Lok
Unsscured; conasliderd good ;
CHher Loans and Advance (Conesdered Dol AHLE 57 AHEE 57
Less - - Provision for Doubtful Advanoes {48857 (485 58T
L mnel A whieh hmve significant incrense in Credit
ik
| | darud A, = erechl mpairesl
Tl Mo - Saarrant - =
Eurr\.gl
Unsecursd; considend good :
Loowiies il avdbvadvoas (o Ralated Partes -
Losw & Advanoe bo Employecs (Unaeoured, Considened |
Lame - Proaieion for Doubtful Advances 1 .
Totsd = Loan & Advance io Employess [Linsecuned:
Cinrwsicloroad chosbfull) | A
Loy & Acheisnc ko Inles Conporate Depossils (Uinsecasesad
Cinsidered good) | ] :
Lo & Acvancs to Others (Uinsesuned Comaiened good) 1.573.19 1,085 1%
CHher Loans and Advancs (Uniscursd Conichansd DoubiNad) L8 [ IR 12, VO B
Less o= Prowvision for Downdful Advanoss | (12 141 .T&
Tatal - Current 1, '
13 OTHER CURRENT ASESETE
As ot s nt
Sr, MNa, Particulars A1st Mareh, 2024 Iist March, 2023
(AUt in Lakis) {Amount in Lakis)
Capital Sdvanoss | - =
Total Current - -
Ly ireel] igtwrdd gesod | |
Ay Aupvanced Faid 19 Supplari/Seraces | BT 20 135,39
oy Balances with Government Authorilles
Coupewt insse nibivees 1 esi=iviisie 0,0 -
CGain & Hevncs Tax v |
Bub Tolal (B) m- gﬁ_ﬁ
[y Chimrs |
Paup-gaiand Fxpanrisans E ih 78 38 G
Actvnnes 1o Emgloyees (Linssouned, Considered good) 41,76 AT 44
Interesl acorued on fiked deposits snd ofhers (LI Y]
Sulby Telal (€] [ T |
Total (A+B+C) 1 H77.70]
14 CURRENT TAX ASSETS (MET)
As ol A ol
Sr. M, Particulars I1st March, 2024 J1=k March, 2023
(ANt In Lakivs) ALt In Lakia)
Aibvance Incoimsr Tax 1561 52
Toinl
18 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
An ot An ot
Sr. Ma, Particulars I 1=t March, 2024 I1st March, 2023
{Amount in Lakivs) (AUt in Lakhs)
A AUTHOMISED SHARE CAPITAL
15, G600, 00 {15,565, 00, 0600) Eguity Shames of e 100 aach 16 A5, . W
Total i i
B} ISSUED, SUASCRIBED & PAID UP SHARE CAPITAL
14,22 B0 448 (3 1s March 2032 14 27 80448 ) Equeiy
Shares of Ra, 104~ afsh
41 14,5 L=
Total —m T4, B
14 Tha reconciliation of the number of shares cutstandingis
sl ourt bisbows H
Shares outstanding et the beginming of the year 14,22 80 448 .00 14 22 80 448 00
sl duringg (e g - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year T 1455 E044B.00 14,22 80, 445.00
14.2 Thas ci s of Shareholcers halding than 8% share Mes esf Bhares % Held Ho of Shares e Held
Dirtn Darnbay MPet, Lid n1T1397 .74 0AT138T 574
Hitesshy Rl Javon | T B0k B.2T TEOOOOD E.27T
Amarjesisingh Harbhajan Rajpal TASBATT 817 TATB422 B.21
‘On 10-01-2011 the Comgany issued 1,08,10,000 Converitle Equily Shate Warrants which convertible mic 1 Eguity
Share af RS 10 aach af agncd caleolatod w accomdancs il SER rogulanben. 25% of By issus proco saas pavgakie
4.3 | ot ther B of alloirment of warrants and the balance % at the tma of allotmant of Equity Shares. On 20032011,

15,80, D) wasirmnbs wene oonveded inbo Equity Shaies. The remainesg 52 560 000 warranis waens conde il o

Equily Shares LRch-L AT
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1 Aok Mm@k
W, M, Famiculars i Fiel March, 3034 W1et March, 3033
i Mlﬂ (5] w AUt in Lakbs)
] = il For iKW | Ak, ML RO 1 00, 0k
(£ Germeral Resesrvas | 2 aa 58 2 A0 AR
4] Reinineod Enrndngs |
Dnlance As peer last Accosind | [ Rk E R ) (SR DT T
Al PR S (LSS For B SUITTEND e | (0T 3y ST T ]
Aol Arsiey Transfeimed o CHees Linds = -
Clrsning Phiisrss | (AT T4} (R A0 B
(=] EFi T SRR e e e S OEE 1
CHpmiing Balaivca | 82370 R R
Sdd, Difwer Comprabhansive Incoimas | 455 Nt
Choming [nimrcs ] B2, 3 [ -]
Taotal sﬁ LL73 El 1 IE&T_‘! l&i:!.ﬂ?l
ir BORROVING S
] Aw ot Am ok
Sr, Mo, Farticulars 1 Fiet March, I03T4 Wst March, 3030
o] Baecured Loans ]
Towrm Lomnm
Fagees Team Lomn from ank {(I2sfsr nobs (A balow)
Fipareagn Coasmonoy Toonmn Lomn froimn fenaenninl nesbrucenan (FRefer
wupeta Iy baboeas
Term Lomns
Frgay Banks - .
Buwb Todsl 1 - =
En!wnﬂi
m} i@ e iired Loans
Frosn Bawvkn_Car L AT L T4 ]
Fraam Odhars 1 1441
Toemi B « CaErrant 1 !-m ;T:l"‘a'i'
By Secursd Loans

Frosm Chmndos

From it (Rafor note (m) —m—i o
Suhiotal (&) i ‘IH

Hj nseaured Loans
Froam Baaavks_Car Loan .07 .80
et rred Payrment Listsililies | 18650 1800 O
Camried] mmabsilian  of Fixed Dappoaiin | 2,185 08 ERLIN-5
Frogan Cribhamrs X4 Agy

Euratatal () - TSR, 20 |
Toiml -~ Susrreeni . E

 Beouwrity and Sallenl Toome.

i} Lo eyl on cermamnd frome Renls. e eecored by ypedhecantinn of emvenicrien s @ or ook cdebibs o
PRSP . PO DS S0 A OISy Setuirand Dy waly o TS ORanGE iy i F ke Aasers

PROVIS NS
AEL]

LT “i
B M Framiticuilars 1 FMwl March, 2024 Fml March, 2023
. —dAmaunt i Lakisk LAk 0 kakinsd
S R TR
Provisien for Bmployes Benefits
Chr ity +33.0a *2T 18
Laavir Encanhrmasnl benalits 21504 21.08
Frovesicn Tor ConBasgesricmas 3 L
Taotml Mo - Surrent ;i ﬁlﬁf'
SEurrwnt
Ay Provision for Bmployes Bensfits
Capamritruitioa b Prosioisnt Fusnad [t h oA
B Lty Sik.B0 LLEL R
Laave Erncashrrsasesyl Benehis l,!!-i':l_-
Tl Tortal kil
B Prraasion for & (ale o] & Aa
' Total - Cuarrent - a7 | TE. 84 |
i DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
| ELL M ot
Wi M Framitic uliars H Pl Marcih, 2034 1wl March, 2023

L AUt N LRI (Amount in Lakhs)
Crufarirwd Tax Limbality |
Pradystod 10 fimaed Gaadate

20 TRADE PAYABLES

| A as El
A, Mo, Farticulars | st March, 034 Jat March, 3523
L Amsunt n Lakis) [arraLint if Lakive)
LT i
Ll Bseie, Small @ Faduem Lalerprses ) 247 a7

st b Ciiners ' f_ATE D8
Total « Surrent . [X10

31 OTHER FINAMNGLIAL LIABILITIES

] Lo LT
By, M, Farticiilmrs | F1at March, 20248 st March, 2023
|
Aamount o Lokiak.  (Amount in Lakiay
Surrent |
Imimrest paynble on Fixed Depeonit | F T <8, 1505, O
Smcaaniy Dawenmitn frodm Cabern = -

Total - Current — N | EREER N
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22 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
- An at An al
BSr. No. Particulars 31at March, 2024 315t March, 2023
—tAmount in Lakhst  (Amount in Lakhsh |
Lurrgnt
Acvanoes rom Customers 212247 a1
Payabhe b employeds 83,80 84,31
Statwory Labdilias 137.78 110,99
CHhar Payabie i 84S, o Bl 16
Tatal - Currant " .
CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES (MET})
As at An al

Sr. No,

Particulars

st March, 2024 31st March, 2023
. thmount n Lakhse) = (Amount in Lakhs) |

Driviedand Tax on Dividend
Proveigscn for Intensd on Dnadend Tax
Total

SEE.0E b R
40,340 i, e 4]
BEE, 38

REVEMNUE FROM ODFERATIOMNS

| Feor thie yiear anced 3181 For the year ended 318t

Sr. No. Particulors March, 2024 (Amount in March, 2023 (Amount in

Lakhs) Lakks)
Sale of Prodocts (Including asciees defty) B30 18 14 et 38
Sale of Sorvices (Job-Work ) & 553 47 2443
CHEr ﬂ-ﬂﬂ-ﬂtﬂﬂ FRErLE 1.?93.9‘3
Rewvenus Trom operaticns 1&% 16,406 .58

25 OTHER INCOME

Fﬂ'“wmﬂ!" For tha year endad 3181
Sr. No. Particulars March, 2024 (Amount in March, 2023 (Amount in

Lakha) Lakks)
Intarast Incoma From Clhars 6.52 -
Provisson For Expenses Wrillen back A8 T3 =
Mt Gain on Foreign Cumenoy Troslaeon & Trsnsaoton 27 a8 [iECERIY |
PrafitiLosa) on Sale of Assesls - 225
Other Mon Opearating Incoms 0.7y I
Total 529.03 T08.76

COST OF RAW MATERLALS AND COMPOMEMTS
2 CoONSUMED

Fwﬁwﬁﬁ I8k For El'ﬂ'l!l‘ wndad JT1at
Br. Mo, Particulnrs ¥ 2024 (Amount in March, 2022 (Amount in

Lakis)
Oipeneng Sioock J12.30 Fan . re
Al | Purchngs 7888 18 10,4085 55

| Less : Sales

Less : Closing Stock 270 31253

Cost of Raw Materisls and Components Consumed

PURCHASES OF 8TOCH-IN-TRADE

| For the year ended 315t  For the year ended 313t

Sr. No. Particulars i March, 2024 (Amount in March, 2023 (Amount in
Lakhs) Lakki)

Purchase of Traded Coods (Pgpe) 230,66 40140

TOTAL 230.66 401.48 |

CHAMGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, SEMI-

For the year ended 315t For the year ended 315t

Sr. Ho. Particulars March, 2024 (Amount In March, 2023 (Amount in
Lakkrs)
Inventories at the baginning of the year
Fimiahed Goodu/Siock -in -Trede B15.68 633,20
Sami-Finishad Goods 85T oA 1, 25700
Sorap ata 1 28 43
1 1lﬁgﬁ | 1. 819.43
Inventories at the end of the year
Finished Goods/Stock -in -Trade 1.380.18 {E15.68)
Sami-Finahed Gooda 131,34 (95T 0a)
Borap &lc T 80 {20 05
_ 1 i, | {1,602.71)
TEhange In Inyentories
Finished Goods!Stack «in -Trade [Frd.81) 17.53
Saimil - Finishend Goosds B26 G4 2R B2
Serap e 0 T8
I ST 5
TOTAL 307,59

95



Annual Report

2023-24
20 EMPLOYEE BEMEFITS EXPENSE
For the year ended Jist
Br. No. Particulars March, 2023 [(Amownt in
Lakhs)
Salanios, Woges and Boms 706,
Coniribation o Provident and Ofler Funds 8.5
Stalf Welfare Exponses 1
Taotal 81293
30 FINANCE COSTS
For the year snded 31at
8r. No. Particulars March, 2023 (Amount in
" Lakhs)
Inborest Expensos 315,
Bank Charges 2
Total T
31 _DEFRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXFENSES
For the year ended J1at
Sr. No. Particulars March, 2023 (Amount in
Lakkhs)
Dhrprociahon o Tangitns Assats FEENE |
Total 24517
32 OTHER EXPEMSES
or the year st
Br. Mo, Particulars March, 2023 (Amownt in
] Manufacturing Expenses
Corviumplson of Siones and Spanes 1
Powwes, fual and valber 410.1
Buikings 3
Plant and machineny X3,
Caonrearsion, Oetred and Other manulachuring saponses B84,
Sulbr Total (&) 1,463.41
For the year ended J1st
8r, Ho. Particulars March, 2023 {Amount in
La
Bj Selling and Distribution Expenses
Froight, Forasrding, Handng Exponses £ Othars 1454,
Comamission &
Sub Total (B 1,455,
For the year endaed 31at
5r. Ho. Pariiculars March, 2023 {Amount In
Lakhs)
€] Establishment Expenses
Fant
Eleciricity Changess
Insurance
Fates and taxes
MAcalansous expensas
Legal Feas
Professional [ Consifiancy Fess
Sacurity Charges
Payment to Auditor
A Anschilor
Fawr Lirnatod Ronvioe
For Reambursamenl of Expiansars
Intergst on TDS
Othar Repers
Traweding and Convryance C s
WVahecle Expanses

Prowision Tor diminution of Asceds
Bod Dwbis, irmecoveroble advanoes and cloems waitten off
Sub Total (B

Total (A+H]

96



Annual Report

20

23-24

Zenith Steel Pipes & Industries Limited

Motes to the the financial statements
Mote 11.1. Trade Receivables

Ageing of Trade Recebeable a5 on March 31, 2024 {Rs b Lakhs)
Outstanding for followlng perlods from due date of payment
Parficulars B Months
Hot Due <G Months tolYesr 1to2Years 2to 3 Years >3 Vears Total
Undrsputed Trade Recenables - Considered good 1,027.29 36.10 150679 3,003.53 052 sﬁ
Undisputed Trade Recerqables - Which have significant
imcreane in cradit risk - - 798 7.
Undisputed Trade Recenables - Credst Impaired -
Deputed Trade Receivables - Considered good - -
Cisputed Trade Recepables - Which have significant
imcrease im credit risk
Deputed Trade Recenvables - Credit Impaaned - - - - -
1027.29 36,00 15067 300353 8.50 5,582,211
Less ; Allowance for doubtful trade receivable - Billed . . " . |798) o]
Tatal Trade Recelvabiles 557
Trade Receivables wnbdled -
Ageing of Trade Recebrable a5 on March 31, 2023
Particulars & Months
Hat Dus <GMenths tol¥ear 1002Years Zto3Years >3 Years Tolal
Undisputed Trade Recenables - Considerad good 62.53 3069.61 123124 1533 - 437871
Undisputed Trade Recesvables - Which have significant
imcrease im credit risk T.as

Undrputed Trade Recessables - Creda Impaired
Daputed Trade Recevables - Considered good
Disputed Trade Receivables - Which have significant
imereae im oredit risk

Desputed Trade Recervables - Credi Impaired

Less : Allewance for doubtful trade receivable - Billed
Tatal Trade Receivables
Trade Receivables unbaliad

Kote; 11.2 A&gelng Done From The Date of Transactions.

va

15.33 0

7.98  4386.685513

6251 BGA.GOG2L  1231.2393
] - - - - (7.28)

97

[7.58]
43m.m




Annual Report

2023-24

Zenith Steel Plpes & Industries Limited

[Notes to the the financial statements

[Mote 17.1. Trade Payables
Ageing of Trade Payables as on March 31, 2024

Cutstanding for following periods from due date of payment

(il Interest armount rermaining urnpaid

{iii) Interest paid by the Company in terms of
Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with
the amoeunt of the payment made to the supplier
beyond the appinted day

() Interest due and payable for the pericd of
delay in making payment (which have been paid
Jeut beyond the appointed day during the pericd)
bt without adding interest specified under the
Micro, Small and bedium Enterprises
Development A, 2006

{v} Interest accrued and remaining unpaid

{vl) Interest remaining due and payable even in
the succeeding years, until such date when the
interest dues as above are actually paid to the
small enterprises

Particulars Mot Due < 1 Year 1to2 Years 2to3Years >3 Years Total
{i} MSME 24787 - - - - HE
i) Others BED. 36 1,021.07 4016.04 254749 2,294 96 B.267.22
{ill) Disputed Dues - MSME - - - - - -
{iii) Disputed Dues - Others EN T 1.63
928.23 1,021.07 4,016.04 254.79 2,298.59 B.518.72
Ageing of Trade Payables as on March 31, 2023
— . Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Mot Due <l¥ear  1to2Years 2to3Years >3Years Total
{i} MSME - - - - - -
(i) Dthers 1543.21 45690.36 246,82 11.08 2304.47 889595
{iii) Disputed Dues - MSKE . - . - - )
{iil) Disputed Dues - Others - - - - - -
143,21 4E690.36 24682 1108 2304 47 ERES5.95
MNote 17.1
Trade payables are non interest bearing and are normally settled on 30 days to 365 days credit term.
MNote 17.2
Ageing Done From the Date of Traniactions.
Mote 17.3
Disclosure under section 22 of the Micro, Small and Mediurm Enterprises Development Act, 2006 [as amendad)
Asat 31 As at 31
March, 2024 March, 2023
{i} Principal amount rermaining unpakd 2418 -

-

Hote: Identlfication of micro and small enterprises s basis Intimation recehved from vendors
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Matos o Blancdalons finanaolal statemants for the yoar anded 39e1 Maroh, J0F4
Backgrawnad;
Zendh Stesl Ppes & industnes Limiled {twe Compary] s 8 Pullic Limiled Company i ifndia h g i e A aifecs al Induslsy
m' iy Figar, 158, Churchpate Recismaton Membs400 020, ndia. The Company i sngaged in e manufaciuring and seling of ERW &nd

1. Matarlal accounting poliches

(tad Statamant of Compdlancs

The fiancial Stalements have been prepared M accardance with Indian Accounling Standards (Ind AS) a8 poescribed under section 133 of the
Companiss Act, 2013 (Mthe AcT | read with the {indian & v Gtandande) Rubss, 3015 as amesndsd froem fimes 1o bme and otiesr
iR o e AC1 W0 e e xienl iobfed a0 amplicabie.

(B) Basie of preaparatken of finanolal statements

Thess financial datsmants hayve besn preparsd on he eicricsl cost basis. = Tor w and % which ars messursc o Eeir
walsss at the ano of eaoh reporting peried. 64 saplaned ot SC0ounTng policies ek, l-lm.u-n-uall cost is generally based o the Tair value of e
congidaralion groen in sxchangs for goosis and serdoss

Ths of fir poaiBan (nciuding statsment of changee in aquity) snd Ehe statamend of prodn andd ke are prap and | in
this Ronmst prescribed in Division || of Sohedubs | b s Compantas Acl, 2013, The cash By slatermean Fias bean prapared and prossnbed &s ped
this regpuirsmsnte of ind AS T "Cath Flow Siatemenis”, Thae LT with respect o ilsme in e Bolsncs shesl arsd slatsmaen of
el mnd o, as proseribed in Bahedule (1 5 e Al o presented by way of rotes fomosg pat of Becsunts alang o e olfies fabes redguireel
far b micipied under the notifled Accounting Standsrds

Al pupate and labilities hovs been clossifed op curment or Ngn-cument e par the Company's nermal operatng cyche and obher crilenis as set out
under Il A% and in Pe Sohaduls D e A Baded an 1ha faluie SR serdcei arvd Iher realiialian n Caskh acsd Cash Eguivalenti. the
Comiany had ascertaied LS cDeramng cyche a5 tealos vl for he purposs of Clierent oF rent dlassdoaton of assels and Labdies.

Bataunlirg palices have Bean conaalently aopod cxcopl where @ revwly-iaaued accowun =g stamiard & intially o 1
sxizhng accounting sfandard raquines o changs in the accounting polcy hitherto in use

The Comapany's linancisl sistemants ars presentad in indisn Rupses @ | whch s sl its functicnsl cumency. Al smounts have been rgundesd off
(12 mham Frmares] MkFE unleRs S erae indicaled Der shace dati are presented in Fdan Rupees.

() ey Accountlng Estimate v Jidgemens

The praparadicn of financial nrite raguire B o judgmanis, sslimaies pnd sssumpsans in e application of accounsng
pelicies Mat afect Ms repofed balances of asdets and liabilties, disclotures relaling 10 contingent LABAReS A% 01 date of inancisl slalemenls and
reponed plaitsmant of mcome and sxpenss for the pened presentsd. Management balisves thel the sstimastes ueed in the preparaticn of the
firiamcial atatements e prusient @nd reasorable. Eulimates & Tirg e o if engeing bas. Revisions 1o eccouriling)

EANITAlES GiE FECOniSed DrospeEc el

Cretaded ifoemalion aboal each of thess eslimales ard judgements & ichided o relsvam rdes Wogethiel =ith the informalion aboul 1he Dasis of
caksulaion fer sach afeciod lirm Berm in the ial

The afeas invebing critical eatimalod oF [LUEgemants Porlaining 19 rMveriue Friftica, an via, wiaful lite of property, plant and equipgmant
(P g I ETGIE AR R CUTTET LaN SX0enEs 8 Tae oy S0, Pecoginion of defeired ek assels an0 Provishons 890 comangent iabimes
Estimaias and judgements ars continualy swalunaiad They ars bassd on hislorcal sspansncs and othar faciors. includng sxpsctabons of fuburs
Evenils IFuEl by Bave & Hrancial Fpect an e Comoaty 690 gl are belisssd D De Measond bhe Urmer s o U e s,

i el ol | il The Cor ferers L% Carrying il s irs suleskliarias and clfer enliSas ab cosl armually, o0 raee
Frmgrsnily wien Bhers i for e H Ehes r aitle Smound ie e than ite camying mmsHnt, Bhe impainmaent e e fesr
Llsaful Ide of iy, Plont el B i g irtangitis asast Resdund vabies, usstful lves and methode af depraciaticn af properbys

Elant ard squigment ae reviewed ol cach Ninancial yoar end and adjusled preagectvely, § apsregriabe
Taxes: The Company provides 1or Tan eansiserng Me applicabls tax reguislions and based &n probables asimales

Tﬁtwm-ﬁﬂ'ml'ﬂli: kel s b ased on esBmdabe S Sulicianl Lixab b waﬁuumerwlm RUCH ARl Sien Be ullleed.

Eraddiant and comingent linbilas: Pravision s recogniied whon e Company Rk & prosent cHlignbon S & result of pas! event and il S
proballe thal an e of Pesowos s @l e requined 1o Ssmie 1he oblgathen. @ iespect of which a reliable sstimales can be mads. Provisions and
=] are reviewed af each balarcs safeat dabe and adjuated o refllect the current ot astimatos.

Fair Value Measuraments: When e fair value of the % o o digclosed in the Financial Statemants
o D PR BEUTE B e DO 0 e By e arkElE, e Te7 value & resasuned uu'bn-mu\-nuum pechigues. Tre npa b s

ars from able markels, whare possibiie, bul whare [hesa i nof fossSie, & degres of judg i wd in
entarashning lav values

|Leases: The Campany valuaties if 60 AFTARSEMEN] GuSIMes 15 B 6 %S B8 BaF UE PegUIrermants of Ina AS 116, ISentfication oF § Bass reaures
Wthnnnmnt The Company wees significant sdgement in asssssing (he sases team (nchsding anticipated renswass ) and the sophoable
Aol Fals.

Ilm Revenus Recognition

Revaniie i§ eosgn@ed on e Fasis of aopdoyed ConFacts Megaiding e warsher of Qoods OF Seryioes 10 @ cuslomed Tor an amainl el fafects 1
conpdesralon to which the sntity sxpacis to be enitslsd in exchangs for thoss goods or Beraces, Revenus is messursd ot the fae value of
MNP PEoE el OF feceivable ki b Seeoun 1Mhe Gl oF CEoinls. rebates, oul@oing lawes on 6les of Goods OF Seivices,

" L ol @f T i wilug o1 cor = able far ke Goods Suppliod &nd darvices rendered, fel af relumd,
discourts and inoentives ko cusiomesrs, Rewsnies ﬂ:ludul amoint collacted on bahall of thind parties wiz. Goods and Servios Tas (GETH

Rayanue froam conrsct with CUusomer ars recopnissd when goods sre dispaiched and thes coninod ower the goods sakd ars anaferresd 1o
cusbamens.

|Pevenue from hamkey conlrachs having paord o b fullllpd ovor the bma s n aning tha a B

comphete S60Eeon of Tl PEFGITERDS CDIGEEON. THE Company MeaSLUNeS (e Drogress USing T Dulpu melivod, Costs b5 hulfil & P
whikchi s disectly roladed (o 8 conbract or o .mn andicipated contrac, gonerados of ortacm of The thnd will b uned in sathling
BETArmANCE SbEABISAS B e FUlURE B8NS Sxpeoned b Be A &re priasn a8 N Assel

Enpoit #ales are acoaunled Dased of mie dates of Bl of Lasng.

IS PR BOinie (5 Seerued of i PFOporiod Dasis over e paricd of Bian ¢ defosil | iy eRmenl excepl @ Cods OF Li0niicant wnoerisintes
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jll’r Progarty, Plan and Equipmani:

AR Aernd of propeny. plant and squipment 6re staled B8 corkl less Boemuliled Sepdeciation whd Mpairment ided i any. Coll inchades
sxpandibure that is desctly attributabls o the acguisibon of the asssts and cost incurred for bringing the assats 1o s pressnt location and
carediticn for &% intended uke

|Praparty. plant and eguipment which are nol ready ko inlended use o3 on the date of Balance Sheet are disciosed as " Capital work-in-progress”
and arg Fated &l ooal

|D=preciaton is prowided on a pro-reds basis on the straight line method bassd on estimated ussfu e presoibed under Scheduls 1l o he
Compansss Aot 2013

T of Assois Lits of Assals
A Ygars
]%é Machinery 15 ‘rears
Furmiture & Fistures 10 Tears

Venhicles B vears
[ Equipments = vTaars

3 Vears
[Ceasehowd Lana Amorized over the

ol ba ks

The uigrful livers have Baen delermingd based on Wwchimsal avalualion dane by [he Mmansgerent's axpart in ander 1o refect e actusl uisge of the
asseis. The residual values are nol more than 5% of the original cost of the assel. The asssis’ residual values and uselul lives are reviswed, and
adpusted i appropriabs, ot the snd of sach reporting perod.

The residual values. vseful lives and method of deprecialicn of PPE B reviewed o8 sach Tinancial year ond and adjuited prospactively. i
ApDIODTiabe.

[{F) intangibie Assats:

Separaiely purchased intangible assets ane intally measured ol cost. Infangible assets acquired in o bUusSiness CoOMDINDDON ane recognised of Ta

|wahst @ tha i 1 dite. Subsegeantly. iMangBle assets are Carmied 8 Cosl EEs By Btumlabed aMoridation and ccumulaled Fndaarment
Iosses, if any. The useful bves of inlangible assets are assessed o5 efher finfe of indefinfie. The assessment of indefinite life i reviewed annually]
8 datadming whathar e indes life if mad, Bt i impained of changed prodgectively Basis revited aslimates

Finfg-life intangible assels ane amoriaed on & iraight line Bads over the panicod of their expected viahul nved. The amarisation pencd and the
amortisation method for finite-le intangible assets is reviewed ol each financial year end and adjusted prospeciively. if appropriate The estimated

usefd bves of the Computer Softsare for the ourrent and comparnative psnods is 3 yeans

{5} Impalrmant of Assats:

Impairmant of non-financlal assols -

Mon-fAnanciad ad4ets are besbed annually for Fnpasment oF mong reguenty il svents of Changes in CinCuMSEaNceES indicale That they may be
impaired. An sasef is reated o impaired when the comying cost of sssels excesds (b3 recoverable valus, An empasment koss is charged to the
Siatemeani of Frofil and Loss in e year in which an asse! is idenliied as mpaired. The impainment loss recogniaed in priod accounlting penod i
increased’ reversed where there has been changs in the estimabs of recoversbls vabues. The recovernsbls valus |s Bhe hegher of the assets’ nst
dallang price and valud in e

impatrmant of financial assols -
Tha Comparry o4 lods @bl ireg W expdched cradil loss (ECL) model Tor tha Tingndial asssts which arg nal Taer valued rgugh
prmmm LmﬂnwmmﬂwthMrm significant financing component i measured ot armount egual B life tme ECL. Fof
all othpt findAcial dsdats. ECLS & rdddured Bl of airSunt aguil 5 1 12 manth ECL. unless are hid Bean SIgniicant indradds in credil ridk
frodm indtial recognisation in whikch coss those are measuned o lifetime ECL. The amournt of ECLS (of reversal) that is requived o sdjust the loss
|alkrvincs @l reparting date 1o the amcur thal is reguired B Be recagnised M Mecognited ai an Maarment Gain o I08E in pralit and sl

{H) Invisntorioes:

{11 Rarw Maderials and components, semi-finished goods, fnished goods, stores and spares, goods for rade are valusd af cost or net reakzabls
wilhed wiiehsiygd i aodr, Cosl formiuls used B waighted dversde cosl Codl comprites of cosl of purchass, cosl of Cofvaiienn and Gl cosl
imcuETEd in bingng the mveniony b0 ks present location snd conditon,

(i} Giopats ¢ Maobsrials @ Transit are valued ot cost b dote.

{lil) Scrap is valued af s esimated realizable yvalue,
(i) Adequabte provisicns are made Tor chsclete inventory based on technical estimates made by the Company.

|40 Forakgn Curréncy Transactions:
Transactons in forsign cumrency one recorded ol the exchange rate prevailing on the date of ransactions. et exchangs gain of kKss resuBsng in
|respect of foreign exchangs transactions setted durng the year is recognized in the Statemsnt of Proft snd Loss.

[Moinetary sesats and labities in forsign cusTency which are cutstanding as ol the year-snd, are transiabed ol the year-and af the closing sachangd
rate and the resultant axchange diferences ane recogmzed in the Statement of Profitl and Loas in the year in which thay arise,

|Hen-menetary fareipn curmency items are carmed ol cost

1S} Emngeloyas Benalins:

{I} Bhoraaerm obligations:

Employes banafits payable wholly within beshye months of avaling employss senics anes classified a3 shof-lem smployes benelis. Thes benefits
|rchudes salares and waged. Banus and ax- gratia. The undiscournted amount of shar-lerm employes Banefits 16 b pasd in exchangs of
Smployess services ane recognised in the period inwhich the smployes renders the relobed serdos.
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The Compary hos adopted ind A5 118-Leases afeciive 18t Apnl. 2019, using the micdified retrospective mathiod. The Company has appked the
stamdand 1 95 Iea3es wilh the cumulaiee impact recogniaed on 1he date of witial apglication (131 Agri, 2019 Accordingly, Dréveoies persd
infoealion Fas nol Been restabed.

The Compary's lsase aviet classes primanty condist of leases Tor Land and Buildings and Plant & Machinery, The Company alsesses whether o
- o . @l eegion of & Sorirast, A ", of b o e conlris! conweyi the right 16 contrel The use of an
|entied asset for & period of Bme in sachange for consideration. To assess whether 8 contract conveys the right 1o controd the use of an dentifieg
asss, fhe Company assssses whather

{1 thy conitract ineohses the use of an denbifsd sssst
?I{H?ﬂhﬂﬂmi‘mmmmhmnmllﬂMMMImmﬂlhﬂ oeasaat tharousgh they pesriced) Of thes beodss aned
i) thes Cosmpany Ras the rght bo direct 1he use of ihe assst

(vl the Coompary Rid s fight o operale the Bassl oF

(v he Compary designed e GRSl © & way hal predatermingd o aid Bor whol puipose il will be use

I Corgsnry is 8 193Sar

Leasss under which the Company it o lesacr are clossifisd an finance or operafing leases, Leass contracty whares ol the risks and resards ars
subsisntialy ransfemed (o the lsssss. the lsase ooniracts sre classified as fnance leases. A8 othar beases are closaifsd os operating leasss.

Fior leases whider wheoh the Comgany B an irermediate asod, he Company Soooins for the hesd-lease and the sub-leass a3 b0 SEparate
comracts. The sub-leads i further classifed aither as & BRance lease oF 6N SHETANNG lease by relerencs 1o the RolU assel arsing fram e head-
[EXTER

) Govarnmant GranULoan:
Capital grants for project capital subsicy sne credited 1o capital ressre.

The Compary has o mandatory sxemplion under Ind A5 101 and acccrdingly, Bhere i3 na changs in acoouniing reatment on e amount
carmied forward an the dode of transiticn bor salkes low defenral boan §incentive.

{F) Assals Hold For Sale

ilhn-cl.nlnl aaiats o disposal groups comprising of asssls ansd liabilfties are clossifed g ~ whaen all the followang crifevia are med: (1) decision has
baan made o sell, i) the asssbs ore ovailable for immediste sole in fs prassnt condSon, () the assets ore being actrasty marketed and (v sole

hos been agresd or is expectsd o be concluded within 12 monsha of the Balance Sheet date. Subssguently. such non-cumesnt sssets and
disposal groups classfisd as ‘held for sale” ore measued ot i ksar of its carying wales and toir value l83s costs o $sll. Mon-cument asssts hald
[P sabe are fol depreciale OF Gt

1) DHscontinued oparations
A dneantinued Sparation is a1 of the Company’'s hat rep o separaty ne of Busineds that has Been dhpoasd of of s

[l for aads, or is & subscliary scouired sxclusiasly with & view 1o resals. Classification s o discontinuesd Spsration Goours upon the aarier of
disposal oF whien e opedaticn meets the ontaris 1o be classlied as held Tor sols.

(R} Earnbngs par share (EPS)

HmﬁmiPﬁﬁﬂﬂ.ﬂﬂcmmﬂﬁﬂmiwulJmm“mﬁNWmeFﬁﬂmmﬂ
any sxsepticnal Bem. Humber of dhades uked in @ E g8 par Ahdne i4 the wesghled averagpe fumBer of the sRafes outilanding
during the pericd, Diltive g par s parbed and discliosesd after adjusling effect of all déutive patential equity shares, @ any, excepl
wihen result will Be anti - diytive, Dilviree potential equity Shares are deemed comverted as al the Beginning of the pericsd. unless maued at o kaler
date.

15} Prowislons, Contingent Liatdlities and Contingant Assats:

The Compary creabis & phavision wihers [herd i§ present sbligalion && & redult of & padl event thal probalily Pegures an oullidne of Misuicas and §
relable eRlimate San be meds of T amount of e obligatan, & Sacloiue faf & conbngent Habaty & made wien e m & podsibie of & Bresen
abligabon that may, but prebably will nat reguine an sufiow of resources. When Thene m o gossible clHigaticn in respect of which The TkelFood of
oo of rescurces s remmobs, no provisson of disclosure s made. Contingent Assets are deciosed only when on inflow of sconomic benefs i
praba b

[Ty Cash and cash sguivalants

Cakh and caih sguivalents Comprite cadh and depoid with banks and coparalicni. The Company conkiders all highly hguid Rveslments with a
remeaining mahunty ol the date of purchaas of three montha or less and thed sre readiy convertible o known smounts of coah i be cath
L BT

|y Moaswramant of Falr value of financial instrumanis

The Compary™s BOOOUNENGg policees nd discloaures reguing measurement of fair vabues Tor ihe Bnancial inswumenis. The Comaany has an
established control fremesork with respsct o measesment of fair values, The mansgemsnt regulay reviess signifcant uncbsensabs inpuis and|
wiludtion Sopistrents, i hitd party iNformaksn, Such o Droker quoles of BRrciig Seresss, & uled 1o meaiuns fair valies, then s Mansgament
ansFiEes evidence cbtaingd figm thind paties o 1 Bhap isien i such valuabons meel the reguremsnts of ind AS, Rcheding level in
e faie value hisnarchy @ which duch valuaticns ihould Ba clasiified. When meadurng he far value of @ Ainancial addel of & inancial labilty, the
Company uses obasrvable marked data as far s possible. Fair valuss ane cabesgorssd info different levels in o Gair valus hisrarchy boassd on the
inpats used N B valuation technigues o folikrs,

Levwel 1: quoted prices (unodjusied) n actroe markests for idenbical ossets o labilities.

Lewel 2: irnpuis other than guoted prces included in Level 1 that are obserdable for the assst or liabilty, sither desctly (I8, 83 prioss) or indesctly
{8, darived fam preses),

Lewel 3 impuls for the asse? of Bability thal are nol based on observable market data {unobservable nputs)

H ingats usesd o masasure Tar value of an asset or @ labidy fall inks different levels of Tar valee hisraschy, then far valse measurerment s
categomiad in it enbrely in e same level of Lair value hisrarchy as e kKevasd level input that is sigrificant i the entire measuremaent. The
Coarpany recogrines iransfen babesen levels of fair valus hisrarchy ot the end of the reporting peniod dunng which the changs has ocounmed
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(V) RECENT PRONQUMNCEMENTS

Mindstry of Corporate Affairs TMEAT] notifies nerw standards or amendments 1o the axisling standards under Companies (Indian Acctunting
Standards] Rules as issued from lime 1o bme, For the year ended March 31, 2024, MCA has not nobified any new slandands or amendments 1o

the existing standards applcable o the Company

I3 Eamnings Per Share (EPS) {Rs.in Lakhs)f
Particulars sl March, Ji@d 1%L March. 2023 |
{EvoiitiLoss) for e penod from conbnung coerations 51,03
|Profitiioss) from Discontinusng operations (337.73)
[ret Prof  (Loss) afer tax abibubable b Eguity Shavehalders (A) (ET. 22 33,30
[Weighted pvarage rumber of eguity shares 14.22,80,448 14,22 80,448
[re. of Equinty Shares sutsianding during the year Tor cilculating Basic EPIB) 14,22 80,448 14 22 80 448
|Hﬁ. of Equity Shares culsbanding during the year for caloulabing Diluled EFFC) 14 14 22 80 448
[Moming Valus of Equity Shares (Fs) 107 105
Baie and Diuied EPS for the parisd Frem Caonlinuirg and Discantinussd Operations 5 0.02
Baik 370 DiuIed EPS for 1he pencd em Canbnuing Coerations . 0.24 |
Bt 879 Diled EPS for 1he percd feom CaconiAued Opsratons 02 10.21)
M. Contingent liabilities and Commitmants (to the extent not provided for) {Rs.In LaH.h—'IJ
Iﬂ Estimatsd amaunt of conirasts ramaining 1o bs axscuted on capital accound (nel of Rcvances), rat provided MIL MIL
(b} Contingent liablilities not provided for
Particulars Jist HRd | 3dsit March, 2033
1. Disputed Demands on acooun of
@) Cursom Dty 8545 2545
b Excise Cuty 120.78| 129.78
¢ Ceriral Sales Tax 78.88 78.88]
d) Maharsahtra VAT 4668.21| 4658.71)
@) Incorme Tax ETN TR TR
[Totai 5245.10] 62“-%'

[e) Tha Campary & & parfy i vARous legal procasdings in B namnal souns of business and doss nol sxpse the culcams of the prosessings 1o have any

acdvarse aflect on s financial conditions, resu®s of cparations or cash fiows

(dh The outfiow of the resournces in respect of pending disputed matters in respect of Sales Tax, Income Tax, VAT and Excise Duty would depend
on the uibmate ouicoms of the dspules lying belore vanous authonlies amounding fo Rs, S245.10 Lakhs (previous year Rs. 534560 Lakhs)
However company has made the provisions of Rs. 254,12 Lakhs. The Company has teken legal and other steps necessary 1o probect s position

in respact of thess claims.

A8, Utllization of proceeds of publlc! right Issue as on 315t March, 2024 |5 as under:
(Ra.in Lakhs)|
Description Tatal Estimated Cost| Hnmﬂ?l ;“_.ml':“_“ m'“’h"_ ‘;;;3
Land and Buiding 1000.00 1000.00 1000.00
Piant and Machnery|imporiediindigencus ) 8532 .00 8321.00 #321.00
Miscellaneous Fived Aasets 36556,00 350600 356,00
Contingencies 272.00 27200
Balance amount to be spent 13500,00| 13280.00 13289.00

wrutilped procesds of GOR imsue. The detail of viikzatsen of procesds of Re. 13500 lakha is ghvan here above

datermination and compleson of iransfer formnines

|37, Audifor Remuneration And Reimbursement

Fending Tull ulilization, the balance amourd & held in CurrenbFixed deposl Toan/sdvances scoounts. Thee is Provision for doubthul advances o th bae of
Fs. 100925 Lakrs. Pending recovery of thal edvance. the amount available for depicymment will e ol lesaer b3 than exienL
Dwring e e 2006-07 the Company made & Follow on Public [ssue and oongeguenty rased an amourd of Be. 13100 LakMs

The sharehalders of the company at the Annual General Meeting beld on 1Tth Seplember, 2012 approved wasiabon in utilization of follew on public offer
procesds, so that the company can also utilize the proceeds for. Manufacturing of SaW & ERW pipes at Chennai or at such other locations as may be decided
by the Board. Oud of Rs. 13500 Lakhs, Rs. 3038 Lakhs will be uSlized from the urutiized procesds of pubic issue and Balance P 5384 Lakks will be from

BB, The title deeds for land [freshold ). building, Gcenses, with respect 1o ane location e Murbad are in the process of being transfemed in the name of the
|Company on amalgamation of Tungabhadra Haldings Private Limied. Stamp duty and other kevies ansing out of the same | if any, shall be acoounbed on

the year ended|For the year ended
Masch 31

Stalubory audil bees T.00 T.00
[Fres bor otbebr aud related sadvices 200
|Beimbursemen of out of pocket e s 103 f.a2
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3%, Employen Benefits:
(&) Dafined Contribution Plans;
The Compay has recagrined the following amounts in slatersenl of peaft and kna lor e pear Emnl.ihml_
Particulars Fiat Mareh, O34 Hat Mareh, 7073
[ Coninbution fo Employees Provident Fund and Cifer Funds 16.1 BE'-
Total| 186, 851

|8) Dafined Banafit Plans :
I. |a} Contribution to Gratuity:
Prosision for Gratulty has besn mads in the anoounis based on an achuarnial valuaton camed ol ai the oloss of te year The Company does nol havee ary funding
Details urder Ind 4516, o T ecient apphoable is fumished belos:

N [Ra.in Lakhsj

Particulars st March, 2034 st March, 2023
Amount recognised in Balance Sheel
|Hm vailus of Safined Bansfl chigason 262 AT 260,23
Fair i of pissn Jssety = =
Fundad Status
Expanse recognised in the Statermant of Profll and Loss
Cramery! aanece cost 577 13.13
et Imiedest 308 1567
Total expanse charged to Profit and Loss Acoount BAET TB.80
Amount recorded as Cther Eml‘lih lreis e
Arauaial (GainLoas recogrised for the period 508 808
Rty on Plan Aaasts sochusng rel intesl
Taotal Sctuarial (Gain)iLoss recognised in OCI 508 B.OB
Reconciliation of nat liability!{Assat)
Dpering net kabdity 29032 28550
Presdsion no longer requined'additional provision requined
Adustrnent i opering balance
Enpendes chanped o e Stateren of Prof and Loss 8arT T8.80
Condibution pakd 11,18y (33,58
e Comprebansive Inocma (001 5.08 9 &80
Closing net defined benefit liabilityassot) 20287 200.22
Movemant in banafit obligation
Opening defined banafit obligation 29022 285.50
Inbsrest on Sefined Dinaf obligation 308 15.67
ST Sahics cail 87T 1313
Basnadis pasd {11.18) (33.68)
Actandinl (GarLokd on S 508 8.08
Closing of defined bansfit obligation 29287 ZB8.TO
Movement in Plan Assels
ﬂpinlng findr value of plan aasats -
Adpriarmant i opsning falr value of plan sl E
Fatum on plan assets enduding interesl invome =
Inbared! Income d
Coninibution by smpioyer o
Danedts pasd E
Closing fair value of plan nasstas §
Agsol Information
e Managed nd 4
P -
Grand Total .
Principal actuarial assumptions :
Disoourd rate (o) T.25% T.35%
Salary escallation rabe (poa) M EEl% T %
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rEh.p-Idtl-d ot o i Sured in S e year
Sy
A quandl Lative serabvity anahysh for signifcand sssumption o ol 31 March 2023 s o shown babos
Impact on defirved bansls obligabon
Csinirn R
1% e e {18, (17. 704
1% Decraase 21.30 20,80
Rate of Inorearss in Salary
1% Inoreass 21.60 2090
1% Cwomass ﬁﬂﬂ (18,104
Maturity Profike of defined benels oblagaticn Fraer Thee Furnd
Wi
184 dolloraing veaw 28 00 81,93
v Todr= g ¥ sar .69 22 48
Jral RoSceaing Ve 1.0:0 20 48
dih Tod o= Vear 4 68 12 53
Seh feldowifeg Vear 211 2383
Sum of & b 10 Years BDS 108,83
N, Lo Encashmpnt:
Tra Company Fas recogrized the Tolowing amounts in sialemant of peolf and loss for the year

_ . {R=.in Lakhs g
rF‘lrtlllll.llll'l. Il March, 2034 Iial Bl e, 2033
Amount recognised in Balance Shaoet
Praiecd wihss of defird banalil cbipation 31,38 3538
Fir v of plae ddietbs o E:
Fumnded Status
Exponas rocognised in the Smatomaent of Profit and Loas
Conre Sarren Gial oe7 168
Pt bnd et st (I._Tﬂ i |
Tolal expernss charged 1o Prodil and Loss Account 1.78 599
Amount recorded as Othar Comprohoensive Income
Arpaarka! | Tan vLos s recopred for The Dedl :ﬂ_ﬂ 1.5
Higham on Plan Avssts sccdudog nel intenest
Total Actuarial [Gain)Loss recognised in OC1 n..ﬂ.:] 1.52
Reconciliation of net Habklity i Asset)
Ciparing net Ratisy 3038 1837
ey s e larager Foqumed adaliienal Eraa s s iegured
Al Al B O TEme] Do lasreDor
Expenses ohaeged o the Stalement of Profs aed Loss 1.76 699
Coniribation pakd il {] A |
e Comprehenshoe Incorme (0510 {083y 162
Cloaing net defined banefit Habdlity|asset) 31.28 30.38
Movement in benefit obligation
Opeaning defined benafit obligation 30.38 2837
Irlara il 2y A Bl SO0 IS o.7a 2.01
Comtur! iariow GoEl a7 3.98
Banofis pad (D2 {55604
Acfaiinl Dl FL s (o gt {053y i 52
Closing of dofined bonofit obligation 3138 3038
Movemant in Plan Assels
Opaning fair value of plan assais - -
Apastrnen B SpEnen fa vt of plan 333813 = -
Fowtuar on plic drisets suchelieng inhenes! mosrm E -
Intlpiad dodma - -
e by ey = E:
Fanatiy pad - -
Cloaing fair valuo of plan assats - .
Ansal Information
Insre managed by - =
Crrrs - -
Grand Total = -
Principnl actuarial aasumpiiocns :
Rats ol lrteredl for deicriritivng T.25% pa, TA5% poa
Salary grow 5.50% w0 T.00% pa | 5 50% 10 T.00% p.a
i rats 1.00% at il ages| 1.00% a4 ol agesd
Trop indisr Padis-wcs has spproved the Sode or Socal Security, 3039 wieh would rpact e ey the Carmpany Kwarnds Provident Furd and Gratuity, The
Efectee dabe Froem which the changes e Baplizable i3 yol o be fotfed and the fral fules Bee el 5 B rlssd The Companny il iery Sun &0 S aluaion of the sl
e recoad i sames i the fnarcial statements i the pericd i wheoh Tne Sooe baoomes eflectiae and the retated nedes ane pabiished.
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39, Ralatad party disclosuras:
{4) Name of related parties and nature of relationships:
As par ind AT 24, T diciosunes o Ranschons with T nalabed 15 ) by,

Hams of the Related Party Relationshi
1._Zorith {LISA) inc. (Wielly awned) Wholly Ovned Subsidianes

I2 Zerith Migde East FZE [Wiholty crned)

3 BiiacC Al Finiareil Sanaesy e
4 Fia Eacrona LPwed

b Bl"IlIMEﬂd Tantin Park Limikd
5. Birla Viking Traveds Limaed

7. Biresp Carpets Private Limited

|l. Erera Mogwgini Chamisas Proabe miwd L i C i Diycks
5. Kropoi Irreesimanis Limiess

10, Palnns Teolle Pt Palaabs L=t

11 Sacr Siwfing Sonieas Brivals Limiled

1. Shiiton Radusfries Likisd

13, Birla Praeisise T, Lt Common Mismbar _
14, GlEvsnean Balid s smanss El,- Manezsmen: Personnsl (Chisf Financial Officer)

1%, Sonal Solank Wi Pasans  (Com detrelarys
1B, Inal Lirmsdd Pois W'a Farsant tn'l'hﬁ:l-mﬂf“_gri
17, Furusholtam Ciaambiar Sonsesne
2 Sadhard Avnagh Pt

15, Framod Shiva Bhosam
[Z5_Enava srama Diraecicr

21 Ganaah Famash Mabandeslinr (W E F 1507 2073

" Balamee Carvied fo Balamee Sheet (%ef) Dtalamee Carried to Balamce Sheet (el
b ol 1 o I S—
Reveivable Fayable Reveivable Favabde

Snuanesh Balawesamanan b | .7

H) ey Management Personnel s ons Sciari x| )
Linal Limesn Pole ol
1. Eirla Praciiizn Techndagies o

(#) Entarprivas Cwrwd or  [Limiled - L1
significandly influenced by kgl Zensh [W5A) N haly %
Earagaman: parsonnel or  |awned) (NeLo provisions) | : 1874
thair ralathes. 3 Zenin Midde Ea FZE

{iiholly Genid)

{8) Transactions during the year ended 31st March, 2024 with related parties : (Rsin Lakhsjf

Papilsulais Ky “-ll!'lll'll Prrustimel rl-'.lhrrprlu ww el sl "lemrlﬂh' ImMueneedd by
310304 J1-03-2023 31-03-2034 | 31-03-302Y

Eschangs Gan Loss 67 o

Advance Ghon Paymon | 1174

LeanAdvancs Reties - 1,500 0| -

Servicas Facened: . o

Loans £ Advances - Wike OF .

T o ettt T z r

Aamuraraion ﬂ_ﬂ -!E_-s-' Fl

{C) Disclosure In respect of material transaction with related parties during year included In (B) above: {Rsdn Lakhs)j

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23

1. Sala of Goods

2. Loans & Advances

|:. Euia Freciskon Tedhnoioghes Limad 50000 | =

[2. Zunith (LSA) int 11,74

3. Rsmunaration Pasd prd ] 1A |

40, In the eplsion of ine Based. Cument Aspain. Loss ol A=Svanced Alve & VIS on malstion i ths srsinary courss of Buaiee i 6 sl squal i 1 amcunl i1 which B9y ans
sriated

Al Disclosures in reypect of Derreatives Indlraments:
|h|'|'l'-lh'l’l Instruments mmnul‘r:m March 3034 B, HI...’F'I’HH!I'U! Tﬂrﬂ
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42. In BCCordance Wit IND-AS 108 "Segmant Regomting’, segmaent fmation has besn given in T conscddaled fnancial statement of the Company and farefon, fo sepante
dHCIOUN S SESMEn IASrmation |8 Qe i thise Tnancisl stalesants.

41, Balance Confirmations-

a. The talance of Trade Payables. Trade Reckivabies. Loats and Advandes, Deposits. Curmenl Liabities. Bomowings from thers sic. are considentd a8 per books of sccount. dus
to pending reconcilations by the management and Tws direct confirmations wene nol sant o the paries. In the opinion of the management, since the amount dus B from these
parties ane fully payabierecoverabie, no material diSerence s axpeched 5o arise a1 e time of seSeman], reguiring accounting sfect in as on JU032024

br. The Company I8 curnenty in T process of 58Ting the amounts of trade payable by Exs Jay Global 'Venfures Privale Limibed and trade recesvable from ango Capftal LLC ona

Parsuan bo the abowe. Th Company had recersd & gal nobios on 28062000 from Ess Jay Gobal Venlures Private Lisfied 1o wfich the Sompany B 5801 8 nisponss on
300E2021. Acoondingly. the company has determined that tha net amount recetvabie from e group is Rs. 150 Lakks which is under sforesaid econcilationegal dispute.

Th company has riceiad further Communication in s regands from the Advocates of Ess Jay Giobal Ventunks Private Lisited on 12082000 for w®ich the compary has
responses on 2708201 through the Company sdvocates. Besides, T compary has aiso sant a formal legal nolice o Mangs Capital LLC on 04102023 asking them 1o ciear
duid, A3 o0 dte. D CORMDANY REE Nol Pesbaed By Turlhie SOMSUNRICESON I MpBrE 10 e 14

c. Trw Company has not cbtained confirmations. fafm a vendon reganding MEAE statos, bance wihoul T nelewans details, provision is not msds for inbenest labilty towards e
$8T i T Boodkd o of 31032024 83wl B8 discieiuned nelened 19 MIME B not approgniale in aceence of Benbtcaton of MIUE partes

A4, T compacyy his Seciansd B lockout of its Khapal unit in Nowemitssr. 2013 and T kame i S0 Teited B 8 Scontasd unill operation from Ta quirisr snded J0-09-2000
and tha dapossl unil'operation hive Slsc been considensd a8 dscontinusd operalions In acoordance =i Ind AS 104 = ‘Hon-Curment Assets. Heid for Sale and Disconbinosd
Coprationy

45, Tra Company had enbaned into & MOLU with Tribus Resl Exiate Pel. Lid. [TREPL) for taking ower Tw compary's bank loans as reflecisd sarier in fe company’s books based of
IRITE Bk by BEtedeh e Company 8nd TREPL. TREPL =il negotate with T wnding Banka'ARCH fo aiDe ther duss amically sithe theough One Time Seltlement o
olihersie on scoaplabie terma and takecrabr 8l secuned iGans of th Company from bani. togathed with seterties ofened 1o the banks by the Company. A per MOU, TREPL i
Sy abaciue right on Tose securiies (3 the Company npays the emount wistsd in MOU, The amount o e geten! pakd By TREFL has besn shown s the scoounts &8 Secured
Lo from Qthers. Bkl ARG iy Bolding morgaged seouriies which o not vl assigned in liedr of e TREPL

48, Consortum of hanks i isien gcion undel Securitiiaion and Recomincson of Financial Aasets and Enforcement of Security stenest Act 200D in Felnaary 2004 and caled
upon tha company b nepay T amount of A3 153.19 Crores. towards T duss &5 o 31.01 2014 within sbrty days. Themsafer the consorium of banks. hawe taken symbolic
PUSSESSKR on 25,05 2014 of fe Immovatie susals at the Khopol unit and Ned & clee for Baking phySicsl prssassion j=hich wil b revie-ed afes by invent Assals Securmsancd
and Rgconatruction Private Limited since Th loan ham bean astignesd 1o Twm by back on 31-03-2018

AT. Trop vl wizrmy of Top Company a3 per the Sefinition gven in the Companies Aot 2003 continues 12 Be regatie o om 31-03-2024 dus 1o sccomulaied oases Donsiderng
sirategic uncenstanding i sapplen ousiomens, T company is on the revival mode and b operaling some of Ta unils. Also. the Company's Board of Dimectors (the Board | are
ANNTINING avalabie DPBONS 10 AATher Orease SAMEINCOME POm OpIeatons. Baming usfornsseen chtumsiances beyond e coniny of the Company. he Board & confdent about
this Compery's abilly 1o confifes B8 8 going concwm, Bassd Trupon and consisening M projcied revenues | cash iows, he Company hid prepansd BLcounis on 8 going
coroern Eass.

48, T compary '+ prohibibed fhom acorssing he securites markcs for thies years by a SEBI order dated 310032021 for violaling certain sechions of the SEBI Act 1582 and the
SEB| Ragulation for ivbus of Giotal Depositary Receiphs PGOR"). On 180772021, the Company appealed sgaing! the sfonsmintonsd ore. Thi final hianing wal complited o8
002023, and SEBI issusd M final raling on JU0320Z3. As per the rullng. This Company’s Apeeal was lamgely upheid, the debarmnt wan shomensd 1o T ime arsady served.
and fhe penalty was decreased from RS 10 crones fo As. 25 lakia, The same hes been peovkded in the bogis of accounts of the Company aa of 31032021 and is e b be paid
ol 3102024, Ay oo date. ZEBI Fa Mied b chvl Bppaal w1t Supseme Courl againgd Ma same on OTCAD0ED. A1 on date. the comgany has nol redehed any furthe

i raand & T BamsE,

A5, For Tl pUfpedd of vEILIRG i3 iINveniones, the COmPany Uled the waighisd Sareps (o8] Wchnlges Bhd reporied & naeniony value of R4, 1985 45 Lakha a2 of 31032024, Dus
the sdded vardable cosls connechid «with manufacturing T goods. T vakos of finkhed goods. work i progiess. and scrip Bems 8 done mansaly ceTar than being produced by &
yysiam.

H0. Thare ane cartain non-opecating curment bank acoounts of the Company. The bank stalements and Ealancs confiemations o of 31032024 for these stocunts tould nol be
oblained: the company has provided for the full amount {Rs.d1.07 Lakhs] pending clarficationsconfirmations from respeciie Banks.

51, During T Taphemnlar. 2023 quidiid, P Comgany Rl riclvid B ri-09aning noScs us 148 of Incoms Tax AL 1561 for AY 201520 for which i B el ratum of Indome
whisrsin the inCome Bax deparimeni has alleged hal “thees is a compists cessaBon of kabiity in fhe hands of the Company with regands fo principal amourt of loan and outstanding
Faradl payable on iDan" in relaton B Non-Pefoming Al wih varous bank, Th Company Ras macs Recaesry SubmBson i th AUTntes and submistion B sccephed By
i phorSies wEhGUL BTy BES Sl

852, Dearing Wb Juni, 2020 quarter. this Compieyy Fad WMJWMMMHMMHIWEmmﬁmmﬂWMﬂ
mhmwmmnmmnmmmmmuﬂurw mmﬂm1m“mm1m‘lﬂh
income Tan Act, 1961, In esponsa 1o T same T Company had submiSed T requists documents i The depariment. As on dabe, the company has nof recsived any furer
pommusicabion s regands i e Lima,

53, T Company fas receved B show Chuse nolion ui T48A[) of ncome Tax AL 1861 &0 01032024 for AY 2020-21 IR reapect of acquisiian of Non-Pediorming Asseb By
Imvant grosp. The Company s made recessany submission on FAOL2024 o the Authortes. On 18042004 the Company has recefaed nobios w's 148 of Income Tax Acl, 1961 9
TN T InCome o Wi el Tl T rituem within $0 S8y from e noSce, Th Compiey B in proces 5 fie T neltum B B o' 148,

54, During T quarier snded 30032024, he managemant has assessed e provisions for Srperses mase in earker years for gually daim and export freight and Based Thneon,
TSRt EROVESIoNS in e BCoounts i respect of cerlain paries and disciosed T 5amMe under 0T INCOMS 83 provision writhen back amcunting 1o A, 456,33 lakhs.

45, Disclosure as per section 186 of the Companies act. 2013

Ther dwtails of loans, guarantess and invesiments under section 136 of B companies act, 2012 read with the companies rules, 2014 are as Tollows

‘t Mum:mmmhmm

|:|g Detais of loant given by company are 1 fallows « I Fm
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56. Fair values of financial assets and financial llabilities:

[T} Vaksabion Al fisanclsl nafnamnenty oo el retocnized and Suldeguendy Pe-masiuned of Ter valus 83 deicribed Babse: The fak viiue of feancisl siaels and RabiSe ae
Pciuded o e senoust &l wiich P inairuseni could Be schangsd it & cumen] RanaaSon Bab-ein B wiing parked, othee Tan in 6 fonoed of ByudaSon ke, Tha e valus of
invsdmend in quoted Equlty Shares, Bonds, Govemment Secarities, Treasery Bills and Mutasl Funds i measured ot quoted price or MAY, The fair vaius of the remaining fnancil
RATUTNY B SelETInES Uling dhcountsd cah o analyals, The Anancisl Firusents B0e COMGONER IN00 Bhies rvel SaNed OF B inguts uaed 19 s B 1plr valol

PR RLTITRES B SCred Baie Lires 1) Ducted prces (Lrdjiuited | in scties marketi for identicsl suaebl of abEsed; and Lavel I Inguth cthed Thn T quied priced inciuded
withiins Lirvwd 1 S5 Bew cbsar it for e a3sel or Babiity, aifar dewcty of indinecty, Lavel 3 VEUSSon echnsgues 1o0 which h kewest W input that is sigrificant b ta fair
MBS I urobsarvable. The camying velues of e Snancisl insirumaents by calegoris wen a8 followy

Thi fsliring i the Beewechy for determising and diiciosing th fair vaiue of Tinancial instruments By valusSon echniqus

Ll 1 = Cooaslued pricas (unadjusted) in scthe manets for denical Susets of bataties,

vl T - INputs Sthe TN Quoled ErCRS inchaded wiin Level 1 Thet 8ne oSeervabin for T BIet of RaSEty, lhir Sinecty [Le. B8 pricen) of indisectly (Le. Served Bom prices)

"Lave 1 - Inpats for e aasaly or Eadivtas thad ane not Cased on obeervabas market dala (unobssrvabie inpuls|
Mo Anancial assets NabiSes hare Deen vaued using el 1 Rl value measurements.
Thi fdigrsineg tabsbe prusanits Tair vaion hisranchy of assety and Sabiites msssured 8l 1air valol of & PECSTING Basi

{Rs.In Lakhs)
As a1 Wst March, 2024 Bz at 31st March, 2023
Particulars =
Liwel of Irgat wed im Lavwnl off irpust umad s
Carmying Amount I-lll_i'l.lﬂ Carying Amcent el 123

|Financial Assals
At Amortised Cost
Trads receivabied 557423 43787 .
Coarbh 8nd cash el Bants 43.07 82495 -
Bank balances oitar han cih and cash egufnabin BS54 k] =
Loans a0 Sdsanias 157008 156329 &
Other Snancaal aset - i L
A1 FVTPL - = - -

The ciemying amdunt of e nitervaSind, coih 8% cidR squivalenty 8nd othid Bank BEENtEL ISANE BN Sdvandel. O T Arandisl Badets SnEIher St Iiddls o
ERnBaanid 19 Apprdnimale e fal calrl dus 1o Tl Shad] M hatane

Financial llabilitbos

At Amortised Cost _

Bomonings T AT 2152338 :
Trade Cayabies 851872 BAYS .
Citfvie St BA D S 437443 493308 =
Other cumant Rabiises. 85925 5 gadn .
(81 FYTPL - ) . :

Th clerying amounis of Bamewings, rade payabiss, cihar financial Rabifies i 0T curtsenl EAbETHS Are CONSioeesd I0 SERMKIMaDs T TMr vakets dus 1o Thiskr shor ilem
nafure. Thiry dee clasaafied & Mol 3 o e in B Rair saiko hisarchy dus i B inchesion of uRcE STl inpuls INCkaling AT BNd Couniieparty CredR sk

57. Financial risk management chjectives and policies:
Thi ComEary i aaposed b vanous Snancisl sk Thss Fis sne coligoized nlo manet rk, oresl risk snd BquadBy rfad. Thi Comgany’s risk mesagessant i3 oosrdinaied by tha
Boand o Deeclon and ocutes on scuring Keg lem and shord berm cash fiows. The Company dows nod engage in Fading of Snancisl sverts for speculalive purponss.

(A} Market riak:

WAari et rig o T riik this?! th dair waio & futune Caih foe of 8 francisl inafromest will Buctuste becioks of changes in markel prices, Liarced fak Somprised Sines Syped of ik
inberest rale M, CLIMSNCY Mgk B ofar price riSk, Such B8 equity price risk and commodity sk Financial inatromants afected by marked risk include bonrings and oevatie
ial insinaments

(I} Interast rate risk:
Irderasd rase risk is the risk Tal T Tair value or Auture cash Bows of & fnancial instrument =il Rectuale Because of changes in macisl inkews! rates. Tha Company's sxpotens o -
ik of chistegi i maninl nberal niles Telate pAmarty B I COMpany s ISng-1ers debt obllgation with Aoating inbereat raies.

(i} Foralgn currancy risk:

The Company is sxpossd ko loesgn cummency risk ansing mainty on bomosing. sxpor of finished goods and import of rare material. Fonsign cumency Sapcsanss ns managed within
ppreved policy parsmalers ullising forvand contrects

|Forsign currency exposure that are not hedged by lorward contracts as at 31st March, 2024,

Farticulan AdfruiL HOEI-34 | Aot |USD) 202323
1. Twim Laan -
2. Dwblor 753,52 B0, T79.62
3. Céhar Payables __ ETasAaAR 8,44 81757
. Cfher Recelables 15765488 10 15765400, 29 =

Full peovision for doubtful advance hid Baen mads spanst s ameun

(B} Cradit risk:
Cormait ik b This ik of Bancial koid 05 the Company & ouomie’ & Sounterpadty 1o & Arandisl Ratrament ele b Sl S conirsciudl sbigationd. Credi ok ariad pAnCipaly from

SAaluiory HpOs = reguiaiony BRANCH 8nd B30 arset from cash Peld -0 banks and francisl NSTTUG0eS. Tr MGMUS: SIP0IIN 10 credil sk b egual i e carying
vakas of Bhe Snarcil avsets. The obfecive of meraging counterparty coedl fk s i prevent ioases in fnancial svests. The Comeany assesses e credt gealty of Ta
puriepartes. faking Infc atooLn! T fnencal posion. past sepence and ot factcn

The Company Bmih i srpasuns 1o coedl mik of cash Faid w15 banks by desling with highty rated Sanks and nelfiuBions and relaining ificient halesses in bink sctounh requined
Ml & month's cpeiaionsl costs, The LAanagement nivierss B BEnK SICOURS o Meguilr bidl and fund Srrvdowi Bes planned i bt thal T ummuﬂl]

Bank socounis. Tha Compiey S0l nOT fonises By credit sk on degodits with regulsiony suthorile
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{ ) Liguidity risk:

lkcpaicity it i tha fisk thal the Company =@l rt be 8% 10 mas! B Snancisl obligations as thay beicme dus. The Company manage B gukiity ik by eviuning. o ' o

potaie. ol B will vy hiod ificict Bquidity 1o maed i Pabilties when doe.

Th a0he badgor analyss T COMEANy's francaal A o mbviant maiueoes Dased on Teir Ooninaiua | maiunies i

Particulars [Ais 81 3158 March, 2024 JLess then 1 year 1-2 ywars 25 years Above § jears
Bt 26080 4T 1.024.00 sl 3118 1922077
nbies 154530 4016 04 Z 853,38 -
Crtmar vl ot B 437443 241.37 0018 £l 2.580.57
Partliculars Az at ¥1sk Maech, 3023 |Less then 1 e 1-T yoaii -5 yedrs Above 5 yems
[Berrengs PR %.50 314,78 e 20,967 .43
Trnds P abss 8,555 38 533387 FTHE Z316.3% :
A Bnancial ISbibes 413306 04.79 530.77 211871 BTLTS

58, Capltal managermeni:

For Tk purposs of e Compars taphal managemert caplial inChudes i1 squily Capial. shank premoum snd al ofher $uty reskoves STTOUIEtE 0 Ma egquty Roidens Tha
prirmary copcive of the Company's ceodal mansgemen is & madmize e sharehoider value and o ensune e Corgamy's aDiEy 12 CONINUS &% 8 JOINg CORCRM.

Tha Company monfors geanng raso Le. total debt 7 proporion 1o i oversd Bnencing stuctung, L. equity and debl Total Sebl mainiy compriaes of bomer«ings fom Eanks, firancly
irpstiutionn. and Undetunsd Loand. Thi Compasy marages the caplal stnactare and maae s sdjushments 10 e the Bght of thangss in sconcmic oondBons and Te sk
CRarscienstics of thi wrdarying sdsais.

[ Particulars :m% st March, 7023

{F) Tokal sty GE, (25,004 03)
(] Totsl dutd 21,098.4 21523.38
) Crvarall Anancing [H) [3.968.23) {3.480.65)
i Gaariog ralo (5] E@J [6.18)

58, Corporate soclal responsibliity:
(4] The provisions sipulated under Secion] 35 of Ba Compankis A2t 2013 ane nol agolicalie 1o B camgany for the year o8 thens ha Been e profits fof the lasd thre yean
ngMEE il woth e Bhe Rz e below The lmit apacifisd

8] Mo wipandiure has been pad b & related party. in relaton & CSR sxpenciune &6 per Ind-45 24, Reisted Party Disckesures.

60, Disclosure under Micro,Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2008 (MEMED]
Undit th Licra. Smal sed Medum Enbersises Deveopmist Act 2008 (WSMED] »Hich cams into ferce Bom Oeteber 02, 2004, cartain Secioune and riguiced b be site neletng]
t MSAIE. O e Banie of the informirton s reconds mvslille «ith Bhe company, the Ilowing Sncioursd e it Tof lhe smcunt dus o Mo s Sl Entegei

i} Prircipal emount o o &y Suppier s at the jear end

T

Aaal
it March 3T

W] AmeLnt of MEenest paid by TH COMpany I THmS of $4c30n 15 of T MSMED, Biong =7 B Bmeunt of 7

'I_I_I I EE O G0 W BINGIpE et unaed 8l T vear #0d 13 0y suppteE
payman] made 10 T Sappler bayond the sppoinbed oay dunng e BCCCUNERg Jear

vl Paymanl mads o Tw enleprises beyond appointed date under section 16 of BESMED

i

Aswpund of Intares] dus and payalle for T Phlﬁﬂﬂﬂlﬂm payrend which has been pald Bl beyond 15
appoinind day during he s, but wiihoul adding the inteses! specified undesr MEMED.

(wl}  Amours of Inlsrest aecrued aed rmaing uraald 50 Ba and of sach Aocousling year and

(i mtﬂmh.m“m“]rﬂﬂmmﬂhlﬁmmm‘ﬂl-#ndl'h'-‘hlr\-il
inferest duss &5 above &re aclualy pakd Io the small enlerprises, for Bw puiposa of dsallosance as & decactibie
axpandiue unde Sachon 23 of tha KISMED.

A P Ot Adaichuiad B
For CK 6 P AND COLLP
Craristed AnOoanian

Dhanaraey Jaiswsd
P piviasd

Rrrieniutan Mo 10/

Py’ Mumbal
| Eradmc 2 By A4

1 off Fivea Diiile:

The accompanying nofes are an integral par of thesas nancial statemands.

Farm Fogetotan Mo 13123990 10084

s and on bahalf of Beard of Diesion of Zenith Stesl Figss & Indusiries Lisdes

I - 1L ks 1 0 C AT

Puryghattam Sonaans
Drecres
DR 5

B Girvangah
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Minadl Pols
Wihods time Diegrinr
DI, 0T HAEN

Sonal Golankl

61, Prevlous year figures have been regrouped’ reclassiiled o conform presentation as per Ind AS as required by Schedule Il of the Act
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[E.21)

=0, 1%

addh

1 8%

(2.5

0, 6%

. Disclowurs of Tramasclions with struck off Compesniess -
The Corfapany did ot fave any ransactions wiklh companias strack off urder Sedlicn 2498 of L Cofmpanies A&cl, 2013

o Fwcthan 860 of Companiee Act, LE%E during tne financisl year,

Thie Company do nat have any Benmml property, where any proceeding et been indtiated or penoing sgainet The
© Earmpay fop nolding any Bannee propeny

The Company et nat been declared as a wiliTul defauliser in current year bul in sarlier years The company Rat bean
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of
Zenith Steel Pipes & Industries Limited
(Formerly known as Zenith Birla (India) Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Zenith Steel Pipes & Industries
Limited (formerly known as Zenith Birla (India) Limited) (“the Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together to be referred to as ‘the Group’), which comprise the
consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31t March 2024, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the
consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of the material accounting policies and other explanatory information
(herein after referred to as “the Consolidated financial statements”)

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, subject
to the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified opinion paragraph below and based on
the consideration of management certified financial statements and on the other financial information
of the subsidiaries the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act,2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give true and fair view in conformity with
the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2024, the
consolidated loss (including consolidated total comprehensive loss), consolidated changes in equity and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended.

then ended.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

. The Company has not complied with the provisions of section 74 or any other relevant provision
of the Act, and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 with regard to non-repayment
of deposits and interest, on due date, maintenance of liquid assets to the extent required as well
as has not complied fully with the orders passed by the Company Law Board.

. With reference to Note No 44 regarding the balance of Trade Payables, Trade Receivables, Loans,
Advances, Deposits, intergroup, current liabilities, borrowing from others etc. being not
confirmed by the parties due to pending reconciliation the management has not sent direct
confirmations to parties and hence our inability to state whether these balances are recoverable
/payable to the extent stated.

. The Company has made provision of Rs. 43.52 Lakhs in respect of certain current accounts
maintained with banks, which have been frozen by regulatory authorities for which bank
statements is not provided to us. We are unable to comment on its impact, if any, on the books of
accounts. (Refer Note No. 51)
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The Company has accumulated losses exceeding the share capital and reserves and its net wi
has been fully eroded. These conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that may
cast significant doubt about the company’s ability to continue as a going concern. However, the
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis considering
management’s assessment of the current situation and future prospects. (Refer Note No. 48)

As informed to us, the Company has considered inventory value of Rs. 1,986.47 Lakhs as on 31st
March, 2024 in the consolidated financial statements by adopting weighted average cost method.
Since adequate information and necessary supporting evidences for the valuation were not made
available to us, the impact of shortage/ excess in inventory, if any, could not be ascertained and
adjusted in the books. (Refer Note No.50)

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section
143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the
‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent to the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to the following matters forming part of the notes to the consolidated financial
statements:

Note No. 46 regarding MOU entered into by the Company with Tribus Real Estate Pvt Ltd (TREPL)
for taking over the Company’s secured bank loan, pending completion of the process.

Note No. 49 regarding to the order issued by SEBI for violations of provisions of SEBI Act 1992
and SEBI regulations regarding issue of GDR.

Note No. 47 of the consolidated financial statements, regarding action taken by Consortium of
Banks under Securitization & Reconstruction of Financial Assets and Enforcement of Security
Interest Act, 2002 for repayment of dues amounting Rs. 19,319.00 lakhs as on 31st January, 2014
and have taken symbolic possession of immovable assets and filed case for physical possession of
discontinued unit at Khopoli and the case is pending in DRT, Pune.

Note No. 54 regarding the show cause notice u/s 148A(b) of Income Tax Act, 1961 received by
Holding Company on 01st March, 2024 for AY 2020-21.

Note No. 55 regarding reversal of provisions for expenses and it’s disclosure in the Consolidated
Financial Statement.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.
Key Audit Matters

Key Audit Matters (“KAM”) are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current audit period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
In addition to the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion Section, we have determined
the matters described below to be the Key Audit Matters (“KAM”) to be communicated in our
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report.

Key Audit Matter

Auditors’ Response

Evaluation of income tax provision
The Company is required to estimate its

income tax liabilities in accordance with
the tax laws applicable in India. Further,
there are matters of interpretation in
terms of application of tax laws and
related rules to determine current tax
provision and deferred taxed.

The Company has material tax positions
and litigations on a range of tax matters.
This requires management to make
significant judgements to determine the
possible
provisions and
consequent impact on related accounting
and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements.

outcome of uncertain tax

litigations and their

Refer Note No. 34 to the consolidated
Financial Statements.

In view of significance of matter, we applied the

following audit procedures in this area, among

others to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence:

e testing the design and operating effectiveness of
the company’s key controls over identifying
uncertain tax position and matters involving
litigations/disputes.

e obtaining details of tax positions and tax
litigations for the year and as at 31st March
2024 and holding discussions with designated
management personnel.

e assessing and select  key
correspondences with tax authorities and
inspecting external legal opinions obtained by
management for key uncertain tax positions and
tax litigations.

analysing

e evaluating underlying evidence and
documentation to determine whether the
information provides a basis for amounts
reserved / not reserved in the books of account.

e Involving our tax specialists and evaluating
managements underlying key assumptions in
estimating the tax provisions and estimate the
possible outcome of tax litigations; and in
respect of tax positions and litigation, assessing
the computation of provisions and consequent
impact on related accounting and disclosures in

the consolidated financial statements.

We verified that the income tax provisions
recognised till date in the books of account and
assessed that the related disclosures are given in
the financial statements.

Allowance for credit losses

The Group determines the allowance for
credit losses based on historical loss
experience adjusted to reflect current and

estimated future economic conditions. The
Group considered current and anticipated
future economic conditions relating to
industries the group deals with and the

Our audit procedures related to the allowance for
credit losses for trade receivables included the
following, among others:

We tested the effectiveness of controls over the
e development of the methodology for the
credit losses,

allowance for including

113




Annual Report

2023-24

geographical location where it operates. consideration of the current and estima
future economic conditions
In calculating expected credit loss, the | e completeness and accuracy of information

Company has also considered credit used in the estimation of probability of
reports and other related credit default and

information for its customers to estimate | e Computation of the allowance for credit
the probability of default in future. losses.

We identified allowance for creditlosses as | For a sample of customers:
a key audit matter because the Company
exercises  significant  judgment in | We tested the input data such as credit reports
calculating the expected credit losses. and other credit related information used in
estimating the probability of default by

Refer Note No. 58 to the consolidated | comparing them to external and internal sources
financial statements. of information.

We tested the mathematical accuracy and
computation of the allowances by using the same
input data used by the Company.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
Thereon

The Holding Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Management
Discussion and Analysis, Director’s Report including annexures to Director’s Report, and
Corporate Governance Report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon. The above-referred information is expected to be made available to us
after the date of this Auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance, conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the
course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to date of this
audit report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the other information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein,
we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take
appropriate actions if required.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

The Holding Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters

stated in Section 134 (5) of the Act with respect to the preparation and presentation of these
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
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position, consolidated financial performance (including consolidated other comprehens
income), consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. The respective
management and Board of Directors of the Companies included in the Group are responsible for
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the group, for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements by management and directors of the Holding
Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective management and Board of
Directors of the Companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the
Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless respective management and Board of
Directors either intends to liquidate their respective entities or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the Companies included in the Group are also responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

The description of the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements is given in “Appendix I” to this report.

Other Matters

a. The consolidated financial statements include the unaudited financial statements of two
wholly owned subsidiaries (Zenith USA and Zenith Middle East), whose financial statements
/ financial information reflect Group’s share of total assets of Rs. 354.96 lakhs as at 31st
March 2024, Group’s share of total revenue of Rs. Nil, Group’s share of total net profit after
tax of Rs. (2.44) lakhs and Group’s share of net cash inflows of Rs. Nil for the year ended on
that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. These unaudited financial
statements / financial information have been prepared by the management based on the
financial statements as approved by the respective Board of Directors of these subsidiaries
companies which have been furnished to us by the management and Board of Directors and
our opinion on the consolidated financial statements in so far as it relates to the amounts and
disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries is based solely on such unaudited
financial statements/financial results/financial information.
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Of the aforesaid subsidiaries, their financial statements have been prepared in accords
with accounting principles generally accepted in their respective countries of incorporation.
The Holding Company’s management has converted the financial statements of these
subsidiaries entities, located outside India from accounting principles generally accepted in
their respective countries to accounting principles generally accepted in India. These
financial statements are prepared from Ind AS converted financial statements certified by
management. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us
by the Board of Directors, these financial statements / financial results / financial
information are material to the Group.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements is not modified in respect of the above
matters, inter-alia with respect to our reliance on work done and the unaudited financial
statements / financial information approved by the Board of Directors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on consideration of reports of
other auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial information of subsidiaries
as noted in sub-paragraph (a) of ‘Other Matters’ paragraph, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books of accounts of the Holding Company except for
the matters stated in paragraph 10(h) (vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended);

c. The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements;

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended;

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding
Company as on 31st March, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding
Company, none of the directors of group company incorporated in India, are disqualified as
on 31st March, 2024 from being appointed as a director of that company in terms of Section
164(2) of the Act.

f.  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Holding Company, subsidiary companies incorporated outside India and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in ‘Annexure A’
which is based on the auditors’ report on the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies.
Based on these reports, our report expresses a qualified opinion on the existence and
operating effectiveness of the Group’s internal financial control with reference to
consolidated financial statements;

g. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
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us, the remuneration paid by the holding company, to its directors during the year
accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration
of the reports of the other auditors on separate financial statement of the subsidiaries as
notes in the “Other Matter” paragraph:

i) The Holding Company and its subsidiary companies included in the consolidation has
disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31st March 2024 on its financial position
in its consolidated financial statements (Refer Note No. 34 to the consolidated financial
statements)

ii) The Holding Company and its subsidiary companies included in the consolidation, did not
have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any
material foreseeable losses.

iii) No amounts are required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
by the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies included in the consolidation;

iv) a. The respective Management of the Company and its subsidiaries which are incorporated
in India whose financial statement have been audited under the Act have represented to
us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries respectively that, to the best of their
knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company
or any of such subsidiaries to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company or any of such subsidiaries (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b. The Management of the Company and its subsidiaries which are companies
incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have
represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been received by
the Company or any of such subsidiaries from any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Company or any of such subsidiaries shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

c. Based on the audit procedures that has been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances performed by us and those performed by the auditors of the
subsidiaries which are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have
been audited under the Act, nothing has come to our or other auditor’s notice that has
caused us or the other auditors to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a)
and (b) contain any material misstatement.

v) No Dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the group.
vi) Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting

software’s for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended 31st March,
2024 which does not have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility for all
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relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, in absence of audit trail fed
in the system we are unable to comment on whether the audit trail feature is being
tampered with.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from 1st
April, 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention
is not applicable for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024.

2. With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s
Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order”/ “CARQ”) issued by the Central Government in terms of Section
143(11) of the Act, to be included in the Auditor’s report, according to the information and
explanations given to us, and based on the CARO reports issued by us and in respect of companies
included in the consolidated financial statements provided to us by the Management of the
holding company, we report that in respect of those companies which are not incorporated in
India reporting under section 143 of the Act is not applicable.

For CKSP AND CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN - 131228W / W100044

Dhananajay Jaiswal

Partner

M. No. 187686

UDIN: 24187686BKBXMY5477

Place: Mumbai
Dated: 28th May, 2024
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APPENDIX - I : THE FURTHER DESCRIPTION OF THE AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies
Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company,
have adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management and Board of Directors.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management and Board of Director’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

= Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the
financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we
are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial
statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion. Our responsibilities in this regard are further described in para
(a) of the section titled ‘Other Matters’ in this audit report.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that,
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individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of reason@bly
knowledgeable user of the consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements
in the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.
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ANNEXURE - A TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report to the members of Zenith Steel Pipes & Industries Limited of even date.)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the
Act’)

In conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of Zenith Steel Pipes and
Industries Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) as of and for the year ended
31st March, 2024, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements of the Holding Company, as of that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company, are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over Financial Reporting
with reference to financial statements criteria established by the respective companies
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (‘the ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Act

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Holding Company, based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note issued by ICAI and the Standards on Auditing, deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
existence of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the existence of the
internal financial controls system with reference to the consolidated financial statements and
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system with reference to
consolidated financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference
to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that-

i. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

ii. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

iii. provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on
the consolidated financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to the
consolidated financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with
reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

Qualified Opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the following
material weaknesses have been identified as at 31st March, 2024:

a) The Holding Company does not have an approved delegation of authority matrix, which leads
to uncertainties regarding decision-making authority and responsibility within the
organization. This deficiency may result in unauthorized transactions, inefficient processes,
and increased risk of errors or fraud, as there are no clearly defined parameters for approving
and executing financial transactions and other significant actions.

b) The Holding Company does not have a Risk Control Matrix (RCM). Without a comprehensive
assessment of the RCM, the company may not effectively identify, assess, or mitigate risks
associated with its financial and operational processes. This oversight can impair the ability
to implement appropriate controls, increasing the risk of financial misstatements,
operational inefficiencies, and non-compliance with regulatory requirements.

c) The Holding Company does not have an appropriate internal control system for identification
and allocation of overheads to inventory. This could potentially result in material
misstatements in the Company’s consumption, inventory and expense account balances.

d) The Holding Company does not have a system to obtain balance confirmations from all
parties. Without periodic balance confirmations, there is an increased risk of inaccuracies in
the company's financial statements. This deficiency may lead to discrepancies between the
company’s records and those of its external parties, potentially resulting in unidentified
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errors.

A ‘material weakness’ is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial control
over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the holding company's annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected
on a timely basis.

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Holding Company has maintained, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements were operating effectively as at 31st March 2024 based on the internal
financial control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the holding
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
issued by the ICAI, except for the possible effects of the material weaknesses described above on
the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the holding Company’s internal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as of 31st March, 2024.

We have considered the material weaknesses identified and reported above in determining the
nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the 31st March 2024 financial
statements of the Company, and these material weaknesses do not affect our qualified opinion on
the consolidated financial statements of the Company.

For CKSP AND CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN - 131228W / W100044

Dhananajay Jaiswal

Partner

M. No. 187686

UDIN: 24187686BKBXMY5477

Place: Mumbai
Dated: 28th May, 2024
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ZENITH STEEL PIFES AND INDUSTRIEE LIMITED
consclidated Balance sheet as at st March, 2024
{Grmeount in Lakhs)
Sr. Hote As at Az at
Mo, - Mo. st March, 2024 st March, 2023
I |AB3ETS
HOMN-CURRENT ASBETS
Propary, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Asser
(&) |Prepeny. Plant & Equipment 2 4,358,680 &, 451.01
(B} |Capital work in progress 3 823 #8523
{e) Intangible Sasels 4 118 1267
{dj Financal Assels
e (i Inwestments 5 020 020
(i) ©ther Financial Assesis ] 33704 256827
iy Oiher Non-Current Asseis 7T EI!I-TQ..N 2.?'."5_1'?_
Total Mon - Current Assais T, 160.44 7.089.55
CURRENT AGEETS
(&) |Irventories 8 1.885.4T 2.0 48
b} Finarcial Asseis
(it Trade Receivables o E 20843 470877
|m} Cash and Cash Equivalsnts 10 43.07 528 88
{lil} Bank Balances othar than (1) asove 11 E5.54 G084
(Wl Loans 12 1,673,189 1.632.32
{v) Other Financial Assets = =
(el |Dehar Current Asssts 13 1,358 13 STV.T0
{d)  |[Surrer: tax aasels (Met) 14 10T T 155, TS
Total - Current Assels 11 9,800,596 |
Total Assals 18, 198.44 16,890.51
L. EQGUITY AMD LIABILITIES
EQGUITY
{8} |ESquety shars capital 15 14, 22304 14,228 .04
(b} |Sther eguity 18 38.814.01 138,840, 36)]
Total - Equity (25,685.0T) [!E.ﬂ-1i-3!ﬂ
LIABILITIES
A Han-Current Liabilities
{a) |Financial labiltess
(I} Bemerwings 17 2,233.30 T28.34
b} Provisions 18 EQR B2 54324
(el Defered tax liabilities (Ml 19 504 BB S04 BB
Tatal Hon - Current Linbilities 3,324.88 1, 77644
-] Current Liabdlities
(1] Financial labilties
{i] Bommoeings 17 16,282.14 21,208.12
(i} Trade payables 20 - -
- MEME Payable 24787
Orther Than MEME Payable 8,652 B8 B.312.30
(i) Cthar financial iabiies 21 4 AT4. 43 4 133,08
(B | Db currenl lisbides 22 888018 5.133.68
] Pranvdivinna 18 &1.89 TE £5
{d)  |Surrent tax babilites (MNet) 23 S03.47 aes.ar
Total - Current LEabiltics 40,557 .53 40, 726,40
Total Equity and Liabilitles 18, 106,44 16,890.51
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statemnis,
A3 Per Cur Atached Report of Even Date Far and an behalf of Board of Directors of
|For € K 5 P AND CO LLP Zenith Sveel Pipes & Indusiries Limited
Chartered Accouniants CiIN - L2892 200H1960PLCO11773
Firm Registration Mo 13 1228W AW 100044
Purushottam Sonavane Minal Pote
Dhananajay Jaiswal Directar Whole time Director
Partner DI, 08405653 DiIM. 07163539
Membarship Mao: 187888
B.Girvanesh Sonal Salanki
Pmem: Rl b Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
1Sate:28th May 2024
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ZENITH STEEL PIPES AND INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the Perlod ended 31st March, 2024
- A Far the Year ended 315t For the year ended
No Pamiculars No. March, 2024 (Amount bn | 3481 March, 2023
Lakhs) {Amaount in Lakhs)
L. INCOME
Reverue from operions oa 14,355 66 TR48 3
Caher income 25 06,16
Total Income 14.884.59 17.1948.07
o EXPENSES
Corst of Riaw Materials and Components Consumed 26 T3 10,523.58
Purchersa=s of Siock-n-Trade I 23068 1,118
Lhanges m bvenlones of Frshed Goods, Sered mshed Goods and
S0k -in- [ rade - s il
Emphrpie Benclits cpense o G163 2662
Fincance cosls hhi| 293 40 S
Depreciabion and amofzabon aspense 3 25819 24517
Crher expenses 2 5T4T.TE 4536.48 |
Tetal Expenzes 14,807 80 18,300,710
Ml Profit [ |Loss) before exception items and tax (11} (4631 11.110.63]
I Exceptanal ibims - | .
V. |Profit | [Less) befare tax (0 - 1¥) {48.31) 1.110.83)
¥l T s -
{1} Current Lax
(1) Eaier vaar's Tax
{5} Deferred Lix -
WL [Proht (Less) hor i peanad roem continiumng opnatons [V-\1] { 'Ili {1.910.63]
VIL | Proit (Lioss) from descontinuing opsrabons {23.34) (2773
N | T eapenii of discontmuing operations .
X Frohbi{ess) from Disoonbinunng opesalion:s (alber Lo (110K EHHE (327,73
XL |PeoftiLoss) for the pencd [VIsX) {B9.65) {1.436.35)
L. [OTHER COMPREHENSIVE IHCOME
(i) Hemes that will not b neclassified 10 proft or kbes
Feked o employes benefis H-.ﬂﬂﬁ! 880
Fereign Transalabion Diflerence .
{n} I Bax pedabmg b e thal will mol be reclassded o probl o
ot
Total Cther Comprehensive Income (el of tas) ﬁi SEd
Total Comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (XX} 11.428.75))
Earnings per aquity share: .
Braei arwd Dilutesd EPS for (e psnod from Contmunndg and
Unicontmeed Operabions .05 {1.81)
— . . .03
G ard Diluled EPS for the psiod fram Contmuing Operations {0,541
Biawsoc aved Chiubed EPS bor s pesnod from Chscontmuesd
Cpetations i) 10.21]
The accomparying notes are an integral part of these financlal staternnts.
Far and an behalf
As Par Our Mtached Repert of Even Diate of Board of
For CK 5P AND COLLP CIM - L2AXHMHIS50PLCO 1T
Chartenisd Accountants
Farm Regsirabon Mo, 1T31EY AN 100044
Purushottam Saonavane Minal Pote
Dhananajay Jaiswal Diractor Whale time Direcior
Partnier DIM. 05805853 DKW 0T 183539
Kembership Mo 187808
B.GlIrvanesh
Plaoe; Mumbxs Chief Financial Officar
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COMSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YIEAR CHDED 3VST BMARCH, 2024
{R= &n I..-llrllu
Far thas yur sned For e yasr snded
8¢, Mo |Pariculass ﬂﬂw 31uk March 3933 {Asdibed)
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I s osta G A0 YT
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B B- Rl | g 7 S A
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EE TSR | 1 (48 Th
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Caah pnd Canh Cgu at fha g &4 e paricd B3890 LT 8- 1
A (inciedns) ) Decresse In Flued DeDesn 800U Kepl ae
maegdn meoney veith bankes A TS
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B Dopsirail Hovng Bistui ity Less Thon Treies Rlontis . S5 O
L © Preraifion for DirviaPong Vi ic Mok Plalin o fw ﬂ-..ll?r [ 2T L X
Wtk
a Sravemang of canh thow e besn prepared andes the indirecy marthod se st ot in the it & 7 “Srsrsmrss nn of Cash Micw™ s ppecitied in b compamlsn [indien
Arcoimbeg Srandsrde) Bulss, FO1%
Thd il QT DaA A g HOTES &8 &0 IMegial Dam o hess NAend) sl aTaL8MHALE.
For el on behol of Bosed of Dhrectors of Lwemy vl Bonwd
Jin e Do Al besd FHepord of §een Thols Pipes & Induatriss LimHed
Far D K B AND COLLE CAM - LS | RO DG
L horbored Ao el el
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Zenith S-tuIPH:u & Industries Limited

Motes to the the financial statements
Mote 11.1. Trade Becebrables
Ageing of Trade Receivable as on March 31, 2024
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Particulars
Mot Due

< i Months

Chatstanding for following pericds from due date of payment

& Mantha ta 1
Year

lio2Years  2ip3'Wears >3 Wears Tofal

Undisputed Trade Receivables - Considened pood
Undisputed Trade Receivables - Which have significant
imcrease in credit risk .
Undispuated Trade Receivables - Credit impaired -
Dispurted Trade Recebables - Considerad pocd -
Dispurted Trade Recebmbles - Which have sgeifizant increase

im eredit risk

Disputed Trade Recenables - Credit Impadred -

102129

3610 150679

333773 052

758 158

rH

3510 1,506.79

550 soieal

Less : Alcrwance for doubthyl trade recenvable - Billed -
Tota Trade Receivables
Trade Recenvabies unbilled -

Ageing of Trade Recelvabde as on March 31, 2003

1,337.73

(758} 5“‘:2|

Particulars
Hot Due

« i Maonths

G Months ta 1
Year

o2 ¥ews JiodYears >3 Years Tolal

Undispated Trade Recehables - Comsidensd good 6153
Undispated Trade Recehables - Which have significant

Imcrese in credit risk -
Undisputed Trade Recaivablaes - Cradit impaired -
Daputed Trads Recebables - Considerad pocd -
Duputed Trade Fecerables - Which have sagraficant increass

im credrt risk -
Dipubed Trade Fecerables - Credit Impaared -

o067 12310

1533 . a aman

798 758

G153

7.9 ATIE 5513

Less ; Alcwance for doubtial frade recenakde - Billed -
Total Trade Receivables
Trade Recanvables unbilled -

[Mote: 11.2 Ageing Done From The Date of Transactions.

3F66621  1MILIX306
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Zenith Steel Pipes & Industries Limited
MHotes to the the financial statements

Mote 17.1. Trade Payables
Ageing of Trade Payables as on March 31, 2024

Ptk Custstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Mot Due < 1 Year 1to2 Years 2to 3 Years >3Years  Total
(i) MSME 247.87 - - - 247.87
(ii) Others 6E0.36 1.021.07 443774 254,79 2,294.96 8538.92
i} Disputed Dues - MSME e - - B - 0.0
(i} Disputed Dues - Cthers - - - - 3.63 3.63
928.23 1021.07 4437.74 254.79 2298.59 8940.42)
Ageing of Trade Payables as on March 31, 2023
Fa———— Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Mot Due < 1 Year 1to 2 Years 2003 Years >3 Years  Total
(1] hSRAE - - - - - -
(i) Cthars 1643.21 5106.71 246,82 11.08 2304.47 9312.30
(im) Disputed Dues - MEME - - - - - -
(i) Disputed Dues - Others - - - - - -
1643.21 5106.71 246.82 11.08 2304.47 9312.30
|Mote 17.1
Trade payables are non interest bearing and are normially settled on 30 days to 365 days credit term.
|Mote 17.2
Ageing Done From the Date of Transactions.
Mote 17.3
Disclosure under section 22 of the Bicro, Small and hMedium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (as amended)
As at 31 As st 31
March, 2024 March, 2023
(1) Frincipal amount remaining unpald 24187 -
{ii} Interest amount rernaining unpaid -
(i} Interest paid by the Company in terms of
Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with =
the amount of the payment made to the supplier
beyand the appinted day

(iv) Interest due and pavable for the pericd of

delay in making payment (which have been paid

but beyond the appainted day during the period)

but without adding interest specified under the

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

Development Act, 2008

{v] Interest accrued and remaining unpaid -
{wi} Interest remaiming due and payable even in

the succesding years, until such date whan the

interest dues as above are actually paid to the

small enterprises =

Mote: Identification of micro and small enterprises is basis intimation received from vendors
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Hotes on Consolidated financial atatements for the year ended 318t March, 2024
Background:
Zanth Siesl Pipas & Indusines Limited (the Company) is a Public Limded Company incorporated in India having is
registerad office al Indusiry Housa, 5th Fleor, 158, Churchgate Reclamaton Mumbai-d00 020, India. The Company is
engaged in the manufacturing and ssling of ERVW And SAW Pipes.
1. Material accounting policies
{A) Statement of Compliance

The inancial statemants have Dean préepared in accordancs with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as prescribed
under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™), read with the Companies {(Indian Accounting Standarnds)
Rules, 2015 as amendad from time o time and othver provisions of the Act to the exient notified and applicable,

{B) Basis of preparation of financial statements

Thasa financial statemants have been prepared on the histoncal cost basis, excepl for canain assats and liabilities
which ard maadured al fair values al the end of each reporting penod, as axplained in the actoimting pobicies Balow .
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and Sservices,

The statement of financial position (including stalement of changes in equily) and the statement of profil and loss are
prepared and presented in the format prescrbed in Division 1 of Schedule 1 o the Companies Act, 2013, The cash
flcres statemant has been prapared and presanted as pear the requiremants of Ind AS ¥ "Cash Flow Statemants™. The
disclosure equinemeants with resped! to items in the balance shaal and statement of profit and loss, as prescribed n
Schaduba 11 to the Act, are presented by way of notlées forming part of accounts along with the other notes requined 1o
be disciosed under the notified Accounting Standards.

All assels and lHabilbes have bean classified as curmant oOF RonN-curmant as per the Company’s Normdal operating cycle
and other criteria as el out under Ind AS and in the Scheduls 1 o the Act. Based on thes naturs of the services and
thair realisation in Cash and Cash Equivalants, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as bealve months for
tha purpose of curmant or non-cumant classification of assals and labihas,

Accounting policias have bean consistently applied excapt whara a newly-issued actounting standand is initially
adopled or a fevigion o an exasting actownting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hithana in use.

The Company's financial statements are presented in Indian Rupess @), which is also its functional currency, All
amounts have beaen nounded off (o the neares! lakhs unkess otherwvise indicated. Per share data are presenied in
Indian Rupass.

() Key Accounting Estimate and Judgements

Tha preparation of financial statements requines Managemant (o make judgments, astimates and assumptions in the
application of accounting palicies that affect the reported balances of assats and kabiliies, decosuras relating (o
contingant liabilikes as at date of financial statemants and reported statement af income and expense for the pediod
presented. Managemen! believes that the estimates used in the preparation of the financial statemoents are prodent
and reasonable. Estimates & underyng assumphons ane reviewesd on an ongoing basis, Revisions to accounting
aslimates are recognised prospectively.

Dataded information about each of these estimates and judgamants s ncluded in releavant notes together with the
information about the basis of caloulaticon for each afectad lire item in the inancial statemeants.

The areas involving critcal estimates or judgemeants pertaming 1o revenus recognition, investments, usaeful life of
proparty. plant and aguipmant ncluding intangible assat, currant (ax axpanss and tax provisions, recognison of
daferred lax assets and Provigions and contingent liabdities. Estimates and judgameants angé continually evaluated.
They are based on historncal experienocs and other factors, including expectatons of fulure events that may have a
fimancial Impact on thae Eﬂmﬂﬂﬂ!ﬂ and that are bebaved 10 ba reascnable undar e CIFCUMSTANCES.

Impairmeent of Investiments: The Company reviews its camying value of investments in subsidiares and other entities a
cost annually, or more frequantly whan thera is indication for impairmeant, If the recovarable amount is less than its
carrying amount, the impairmean] 186 is accountad for.

Usaful life of Property. Plant and Equipment including intangible assel: Residual values, useful lives and mathods of
dapreciation of property, plant and egquipment are reviewed at aach financial yvear end and adjusted prospectneely, if
appropriate.

Taxes The Company provides for lax considenng the applicable tax regulations and based on probable estmates

The recognition of deferred lax assets is based on estimate of sufficient taxable profits in the Company against which
such assals can ba uilized

Frovisions and contingent liakilities: Provision is recognised whan the Company has a present obligation as a result of
past evant and it is probable that an sutflow of resources will be regquingd o sattle the obligaton, in respect of which a
reliable estimate can be made. Provisions and contingeant liabilities are revieesed at sach balance sheet date and
adpusied to reflect the cumeant est eslimales,

Fair Valus Measuremenis: When the fair valee of the financial assests or financial liabdities recorded or disclosed n ths
Financial Statements cannot be measured at quoted pricae i tha active markaets, thair fair value is maasured Uusing tha
valuation techmigues, The inpul to these valuaton lechnigues ane laken rom observable markels, wherne possible, Bul
wihdrs thaas is not feasible, a I:lﬂﬂl'&-& ijutlﬂl‘l‘lﬁﬁ! s ragquired in ﬂﬂlﬂh’hﬂ-hh‘lﬁ Tair vialuas.

Laasas; Tha Gﬂwnnr avaluates if an amangarsant qualifes (o be o lease as par tha requireamaents of Tnd A5 116
Idantficatiaon of a lease requires signiicant judgemant. The Company uses significan] judgemant in assessing the
lease tarm (including anticipated renesals) and the applicable discownt rate.
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Allovwancs &t rEporing Sale 10 The Ansount TRal IS required 10 De recoanised S reconriSeod &S an FmDairmeent Gain oF
I&sda i prafit arsd S

(H} Inventorios:

{1} Raovy BAnioriols and oorspononis, seoi-finished goods, firkshed goods, stones. end spares, gosoos for troca e vl
el e rved randnliF sl waduas wetaic [T oot fomrmaalo usascl i semighiec meesrnges cost ot camprmes of oot
of purchasn, oost Of oomeersion mnd ot cost irrourmed i beinging o sanioey bo its prosont Boooation and oomnditeon

i) Goocds J/ BMatoniais in Transl o valuooed al eosl o dala
jii ) Seramps s walusscd @l i rasali w i L
fiv ) Adeguaie Provisions ams made for obsobele @venbory Dasaed on technical estmates made by e Company.

i1} Foarsign Curr ¥ Tr meticma:

Transfclions in fosign CUrmenoy & recorded &l (e excohandgs rate Draysiling on he date of trEn SHctors. Paet

EieEP el Siin ar lGaRs reaullifng in respes] af fsrsipn sechnnags 1FAARRcorm aeiblad auring the wadar |5 receqniEed (f ey
Bitmteament of Profid snad Loss
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{4} Emiployes Bonefiis;
{i] Shart-term ﬂ-hﬂlﬂl“ﬂn!.

Fuovwaloywan Boafils Iy werilfuiry Fewanl rrwcvlFuis ol W St fares clodinifing ma shesrt-tarem
TR oy Dol This borefis inolwdos solonns and S, DOris aerich M gt The virsoli ool asd aimoasnt ol
whEar L -larry arng Emsriadl Nes Erm gaonicd s ey Ol anrmip by rasrwi e Jares PSP A irs B penricsd i bl B

PR Pl o] rondars tho robbed sarsios.
{iip Qther long-term smployes benefit oblgations:
Thae Makslilsns fos eunrrasdd lodevs are rodeasurgd s e proseal eaboe of axpoctod luluse pogyrreenis o B roocke in resgsocl
of sarvions providod by samployens wp to ihde end of tho repoming porsod usireg e progoeoted it oroedit etbsod. Ths
Emmriafits aire chnacomantocd wsing e roaekasl piokds ol B oosd OF hee copcarbing pescicad 1Rt Fuaea Terms apgsrosirnading (o Thes
Bmieven off 1w riolatasol obdsgotion. Rosresasuianionds os o rosull OF e Pk s e jusdmaed s ond ofsangos in aobuais)

W A 3 1 vy sBoborrssnl el precafil arsd
IR} Porst-arrymlongmnee e odad gt onms
Befined contribution plans: & Aefined contribuaian plan s o sosl-armpiayrmnn banafit plamn under whish an embiy
s Spaecified COMABUGONS 0 & Sepatale antity and bas no obBRAon 1o ey any furmer anvounts. The Compant
makes specified monthly contnbuticns iowards Prevident Fund and Employesss State Insurnnce Corporaticn ("CHIC')
Theie Cosimpii ™ s SOMIADUToN 18 rMCSnisdasd 68 an expenss in the Siatensent of Profit and Loss durireg the paerkod imn
which smployes renders the BRI,

Disfimed hansfit plans:

Thas Compamy™s gratuity Benelil Scheme 1% & delined banefit @lan. The Company™s nel obligatisn o respect of & defifed
Bansfit plan iz calculated by sstimaling the amount of future Benstl that smploysss have samasd in retem for their
SEFVISE B TR CUTrenT A prear pancds] That Beneil i3 discounled 1o Selerming (03 Present value, and the Pair «alus of
nry Rlan aesste is deducted

The pressnt value of the oblgation wnder such defined bensfl plan m determined bassd on astuanal valasbon weing
vl Prajected Uit Sradit Mathoa, wheh fecogniBes $Ach parics of servics & Giving fide 0 adaitioonal unit of Sy
bansfit sntitlenant and Measurss sach unit ssperatsly to bulld up the final chligation,

Thee oblgation s measured at the present value of the estimated futeme cash Bows. The discoount rates Usaed for
chistirrmirnng the present valus of the chiligation undss defined benefit plan, are Baksed cn the marked yields on
i B FTTrR Ml Saolrilhes A8 mt e Balanocs Shddl ol

WFeery B canlocydabiors remialin o o Baarestil bo lbe Cormpany, Bhe recopodied amsod in lanodesd o tha et iedal of any
lunrecogniscd aoiunrksl losses and past servecs cosis and the present waliee of any iutune refumndds Trom the glan or

rascuscEicame im futurs asaniribBaatianm S e il

Agugeriod garinm arad losses are recagiesd immestintely in e Siateoneent aof Profie oo Loss

Roarssnnurasrman which cosngsises of sciuarioal gamin mnch lomassn, v refurnm af plars omsaantn {oEclusting irvlssrest]) ancd b
effool of aaned ooilieg (F oy, edcloeding nterest) nre ecognised n Osl Plan Asasts of Dofined Baaafin Plandg R

Ewmres rmasanmyrass] @it foer vad e

() Min Tnetr
A Nirdancial ifmiiusmend? is any conbiact ihdal groos fisda oo lirneociol assal of one enbily and a Temareceal labshity oo agquny
imsimamant of ancihar antity. Financial inetrumanis alee inclede dernsalive conirects swech ae formign aschange forsaed

oo ilrancls

Firnmreial 1% il E Hivk dRF T pranad whn tha Company Dacormes a parly B0 e contrasciual proveacns of Bhas
iR Te s, Finanoil seests and Gnbilitos o initally moensoerod ol feir vales. Tronsaobon oosts that oo dinsely
mttribtmbe 10 the aoguisition or issiee of financiol aasets arnd Tnaeciod Lnbkdities (obher Than fmoncinl naosts and

firswricial babdlitien ol Pair walues through preafil o lomsd are By clasdl Fremmn Bha Edie wilus rmsdmasrsdd an initial
reecogrilsnn of fiarncial asset o financiel Bability. Trnsacion costs diresly atbibuiable b e aodquisieon of finomcial
onsedn o fndevcial lindsiligies af foir valoe Ehraugih profil ar loss are o o iry peafil or ks

{1} Financinl arsets at smortined cost

Finnnolsl anasts are suhasaquenty menaured ot amortiaed oost if iheass fnancisl assets e hebd within a bosinses

et ian abjistivee 15 1S Pobd (P s assats in oarder 16 eollest samifasiunl cash Merad and comifmciunl birns of e fnansial
st give rias on apeolfisd dates 10 onsh Nows thnt are solely DEymants of Drincipal Ao intensst on the peinoipas)
AL Salstanaing

{ii} Financinl asseta ot fair value through other camprehenaive Incomes (FYTOCH)

A financial aanst s measursd ol FYTOHCL 2 i held within 8 Businesas mocses| whoss ohjsctive s schisyvsd by hosth
collscting contrasciual canh Mowa and sslling financial Asssis and the conirmctunl tarrma of he financial aiss give rine
on apaciflied dates 1o cash Aows that are olsly payments of principal ana intersst on he pnincipal Srmownt Sutstanding |

{ili} Financinl sssets ot Talr value through profit o loss (FWYTPL)

Financial asssls aré measured al FYTPL unléss 1Py @re maasured Gl anmsmised cosl o at Py ool s nitial
recogniison. The transscticn costs directly attribuiable to the acquisiton of inancisl sssete and liabilitiss st faer value
prsugh Eredil o loas are ¥ PRSI if Dl Slateracd & el and ke,

{iv} Investment in subsidiariss, aenocciates and joint venturs

Invastmants in Subsidianes. Associnies and Joint Venture sre oarmied at ool Mets sccunmulated Impairment losses,

@y, VvPeEre an fisar of 1] o el Cilrmyingg armicaent o ths inviFrsbrmant id assessdsd and whntlEEn down

i ey o IGE recoYerable anount. On drlp-nlll of INYeSEMEnts in subsidiarnes, S8%00 ates i jont waeniure, e

chif@rancs Bestarsn rasl al p du and Ehe Canynng anmsunts ares recogrissd in e Satsmwsnt of Frofit and

Loios.

oOR

Than lf"::uu."-1y ir iy siiEsnsd g s fesr bmpasinsnrd vwliism e ne drvaen b :ﬂulrruur. LR RE PR FIRR DS FTTRTSTN R

||rl-|:||nul-:| T T Tt Ty g T s nmuunt ol this irwsssdrmaent iy reob e ooy o IF gay seoh edioedion axints, e Cormpanty
Elbaes 1 aillalur il of e mveasbinwenl in subsicsiory . The cacoearanbdon amoeent al such investrmanl s e

|h-|;|hn-r of e Taowr vl birss oost of disposal (CFYLCD ™ oo ibs woluo-io-uss (WILF ) Thee Y0 of dhe insaesirmant s

LERBIHY [ Ca) Futures comby Mo I e cecovisranbla armouent ol B ircestomant s bess Fuere (86 conrying
mrvoLiret, e canrryingg armoent s reduood o iis secovorable oot Thie reduobion s breatod o an impasimant loss and
[N ] i 1w rilfl aaf paabil aencl icss
v Finoncial Hakilties
Adl fimancinl linbites are recsgrirsd At fer valus aod i ease of loans, net of diveclly attribuiable cost Fooss of raeurring
nature nre directly recoqgnissd in the Statement of Profit and Loss as finanoe ooss Finanoind Babdities are onrried ot
ATt e Sosl uReng the alfecthve interas mathdsd Fod irfde and atfed payhbles mdburifg »H 6 o yanr ieorm e
halamce sheet daie, the onrrying amounts spproocimnie fair ealee dus §othe shot maturity of these Insfruments.
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(L) Borrowing Coat:

Bormowing ooats deactly attributabba to e Scguisition, consiructon of prodiuection of an i thuai r arily takos m
substantial pericd of tirme o get ready for s intended uie or sals are capitalised as part of the cost of the assat. All
other bormowing oosls nre axpensed in the penod in which thay ooour, Bormowing oosts consist of interes! and olbher
ocosts that mn ey incurs in connechon with Bhae bomosang of funds. Borrosang cost also ncledos oxchangs
differences io the axton! regarded as an adjustmant bo the Barrowing coasts

(M) Taxation:
Imoomas o oeponss for the year comprsss of current oo and dofood fax. noomas Tax s oocgnesasd i Statomaent of
Frafit armd Loss, axcspt to e $xTent that it relales Lo itemd recognised in the comprahsnsive incoms oF in agquety. n
which case. he tax is Also recognised in other comprahensive IRCome or equity, Foreign Branches recognize curmant
Lo avnd deferred e Babilities and assets in scocordancs with the applicable local lows.

Curmant tax is thae axpacted tax payabla/recaivable on tha taxable moonmad loss for the year using applicable tax rates o
e Balance Shest date, and anmy adjudiment 1o axed in respact of prévious years, Managament panicdically avalentes]
posiions tmken in tnx retum wakh respect o situntions in wihioh appleoabls e regulntions ore subgoot o mborgreiatson
arsd satablis e Brovessons wharé aporopriats

Drafarngd Thx 4 recognisad in reapact of lemparany différances BErvaan R cartying ameunt of assaets and Habilities fos
financial reporting purposes and the comesponding tax base used for computation of uabbe IRCoMme.

A daferred tax Assats’ lability is mecognised based on the expectoed manner of realisation or seitlenant of the camying
amount of assets and liabiRiss, uling 1ax rates snacted, or substantlively snacted. by the and of the reporting pericd.
Dapf@rred e assels e recognised only o the extent thal it & probaisle thal fulure cnbdle profits wall be availlmble
against whsch the nssel con be uliised, Deferned tax assobs arne ovieswed ot each reporting date and reduced o the
axtand thal it is no lenger probabde hat the related tax Benalit will be realised

D ferred lax relatiog boiterms recognised oulsice profil cr loes is recogresed oulside prof o oss (either in OC or in
AP

Current tax assels and ourrent tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable ight bo sel off the recognisesd
amounds and these s an mtentson o settle the asset and the hability on o et basis, Deferred ax assels and deflesred
lax Raksilitios are offsat whan (e s o legally enforcaabe nghl 10 sel o cuman hx asses Bgainst cudrant Lax
labilities; and the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabiligfies relate o mcome laxes levied by the same taxaticn
Loy

The Company udes stlimates and judgements baded an the malavant rulings in e areas of alloraancsd amnd
disallowwances which are axercised while detemnining the orovision for income tas

M) Leasos:
Thp Company o & lesdaed

The Company has adopted Ind AS 118-Leases effective 15t Aprid, 20190, using the modified refrospective method. The
gy s applsd e stancdand b its eamas sath (e cumelative mmpec] ressgrsad on B dato of indual appheation
(1=t April, 2018). Accordingly, pravious period information has mot been restated.

The Company's loase nssel olosses primarnly consist of leases for Land and Buddmgs and Plant & RBachinony, Thes
Coampany amsastes whollr a Coniract it or containg & lease al Inceplion of a contract. A conirac] I8, ar conlains, a
laasae it the contract comyays the right to contral the use of an Identified assaet for o pariod of time 0 axchangs Tor
consderation. To assess whelher o contract conveys the nght 1o controd the use of oo identifed asesast, the Cormpany
ayssira s e b

T} Bh eoniract invobsas the s of an dantileed assast

fil) the Company has b right 1o sbiain substantially all of the econsmic beanafits from ues of the asast through the
parica of th lease nrsd

i) o Company s tho rghl o direct Bha uso of tho oot

(i) e Company has the right 10 Sparatle the aslal] or

v} the Company designed the assets in a woy that predetermined how and for what purpose it will be used.

The Company ag o Wegor
Lenses under which the Company is a lessor are classified as finance or opernting Ieases. Lease contraots whene all
b rimkes arwd rivecsarcin e sobastanlidally eanshe e (o e n, Abwm | [+ Aicts mreg clastalnd o Hirdndc lbamas

Al othar ases are classified as operating leases,

For leases under which (e Company is on inermedinie lessor, he Company acoounts for e head-lease and the swub
laana as bwo separale contracts. The sub-leases m furthar classifiesd aidbor s a inancs leas o an oporabng eass by
rafarancs 1o ihve Rol) asset arising from the read-lease,

(0 Dovernment Srant/Lonm:

Capatal grants for project oapatal subsschy ans credibed o onpital resenae.

This Comipany has availed mandatary axsmplion urnders Ind AS 101 and accordingly, 1hars m g Shangs in ascountng
treatment on the amount carried forsard on the date of iransition for salas tax defermral loan § incentve,

(P} Asngets Hild for Sale

Mon-ourrent ossets or disposal groups comprising of assets and liabiities are classified as * whoen oll the folkowing
wariberam are orwsl i) e P Beisaiy endnclee 1o sl (o) e aasatn ane lawbalax Hear arvarrcd wanliy im el prasenl
conditicn, (6} the assats are baireg actvely markated and (iv) saba has bean agraed oF IS axpected 10 ba concludaed
within 12 moanths of the Dalance Shest date. Subsagquently. such non-current assets and disposal groups classified as
hadd for sade’ are measuned ot the lower of 1S carrying volue and Teir voles 1855 0osts 1o sell. Mon-curment assats held
for sale are ol deprocaatod or amorfisod.

Q) Discontinued aparaticns

A discontinued operation IS a componant of the Company’s business that represants & separate ine of business that
hos been disposed of or is hakd for salé, or is a subsidiary aoquinsd exolusively with a view o resale. Classification as @
discontinued aperation occurs upon Wl edarkeer of desposal or when the apacation muaels the crabena o B clasaed s
hadd] For &b
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(R} Earninge per shars (EFS)

In debtErrmiming D armeansggs peer Blhaere, e OO0 W iy T el Eprofil affer inx affribuinGls o squrty ahareoiaders oo
irsalchan pomd Binx affaeal aof oy axosgsbioreal iBoere, FHoerdaoe of sfaarass asacd in oompeuabing Dosss oserrsings gaoar mPuaree i Ehae
warigbvlad average rrumbeser S e shares Sulsbtanding duningg e penod. Lhlodrys sarmirsg e share i oo lbad asd
RO Ea Pl r ol LS e Te ol of aill BN e be v e Gaguily alvmeae s, T oy, ROl vl n Pl el e e o ol

| vt paoderitial ecpiily Snares e desmrved coaveenieod @ @1 e Degen neng of The period, e ss issuec &l & Later oale

{3 Provielons., Somntivgent Liabiities and Sonlbng Pt

I har Ldrmparyy crasaiss a provieson wivwere Fers is e 1 obligaborn as & resull ST & casl syvent hal probakbly recguires
m DuElflons Of Fasouraas B B feliahle aEliimale oo e rdcds o e S OF e shilEgation . A desalasiins Mo 6
oD e L abily i iadle e (e 1S 6 possible OF & pressnt obligaaorn et iveay, Dol probabby will eol Pedgulie an
cAatficra of ronoraen,. Wiken ifeere in o poanibie obiligmtion in reapoat of sehich dhae likndihood of oobfioess of resouncesn in
FERITVCH I, N aronvision o dsclosure is macds, Contingent Acsele are dieclosesd only whsan an iflowy of aconoamic bamnaeiii
im probabie

T} Cash and cash sguilvalsnts
Cimni ared casb aquinialanks comprss aash end deposil wati banks and earporatesnms. The Campany oonsidacs mll
P bty B irvvesivsarels with o ermading mateiily al e dale of purciass of e rresnths of less and sl arg sooi iy

s L LT " VLR T Wi Wi CLEEF SR DT
JLAp P LA VRS T T l'll-lr i of T i W

Thids i rairvye o el smiiad dlll:ll-a-uaulruu ParCjuEiT e P aaveer of Taeir vabdos fod thae Teaecl el isinumaenie
Thas Coimppany e an -Hd#hhl-rnlnl:l GGl Tr@ ok Wil B ¥V LFE Tl G (aer walems, T o age s
ravguElmriy v migyr 1t pnahaerembde inguodn nna soleniion ndjumnimembn, B ihicd party nforrrembion, meech o brolor
cuHl e o JOrECEG o T of B oy vigw Fmir walluass, EBhan e managesarssn] asssssss svidesncs csbhiamesd lrom
|Thifd paerbies B Al 1 EFa fanr 1Pl Sk walualians masl Fde feaglifsmania af 1Ina A5 incliding Eyval i e falr
walug Frlararalvy i sellal such valeabions ahowid e classifiod. YWihan mwoasuring e fasl value of a finanoial aesol or a
FiFifndidml HiamMniliny, 1 L ondeiy Y RS oD L I FWhm ST CLELA AR FAF A6 Pehasilnble T air Galiess fde o6l o el dyhn

cliffarrand lonsmln in o feir valeos hsrarohy based on e ineputs asd i he vl tion aehnkguess e Tolloses

Lavenl 1 cpacdiosd prican {uracijuninc) in noive masrkedn Mor icdordiaanl amsoie o labilitioem

Larwal 22 imppausds olbser Ehan quobsd prices ivcludsd o Leves] 1 Ehal ares oibservabis oo e asswl on hakility, sithesy dirssclihy
ghE . Al P leeal O iPEliPEs iy (6 Ol P TROEe e ae s

Laswal 3. irspuils For e assal oF abiNly ol am ol Based O obhsorvaldle maikal dala (umDbsedyaldde inguols ).

T iFparl s Ui BO ieaslife Tair valkuie o an a5 G @ Baklily Tall inhd Siffsdverl leyels Of Tair vallie Riefrarafay, hen Tair Yail
FRIRR R LI FTIERTIE s Dawlasganr il iy 0 asrlivay Wy e soeves bowvael of Tadr o lues N rar ol e hee Bessonat Toyad Srpeul (iet e
signifugail 1o Qe aiiliie easlureiveal The Coimeany recogmiiises e steis e beean levels of Tar value Deoaochy al e
mincl of the repanirfing perina cdurning wwhiian thee chinnges nn oaneerea

W HEGEMT PRORCEL R E R E TS
BAimiimlay of Sorporats Affaine CRCAT) motifioe v standarde or aevsaradmanbe (o (R axisiing sianosiols wnoen
Companisn {incduen Acoountimg Sdtancdeards] Tulss an wd from i B bimies . T or the year sncked PAsrch 059, 05054

FACH: Bnam naat rcdifiosd arvy reores alasncdorads o aresencdrmeesba B Ihar aaxiabing sloesclaercln r 143 IFwr O ¥
33 i Lakbi
SO TRTDTTI TS AU AE March, JiFa

Frrofid L cimm ) for tines s ricesl Fcerm s e i T CH 111

Frraml ions ) frarm £ a V& i .F%ET A

Pl Frinalidl J {loiams) aollae Lo albiobealalbee o Loy 28N sl esdae s {51 T i

S e e e e S L o s 1,22 80 448

P, wal ity Slamims oLt bmied i daeieig S wear (or ool abre Ui L ofiy : z EENEEN N FL]

Pdas, anl hqulﬁ Hhares outstanding dueweg e year Tor caboulnbesg Diubeed EF S0 ‘|-I'I.mﬂl.d-rl
irml S L il Logidity tilsamims [Ha 3 e 10«

Basdd el iubsd EFE Ao e g Framrmy r.:l:F-l'ﬂer.IIE'I'_rd Al Liisacorfir o
Pimmas mred Db | 51 e D Tl PO LT INLINE b ]
Clmmec mreol Ehdorsa D0 Ao ones it Prose Dlemcoantineissc T D

D, SCoplivvgent Habilities andd Somireitivveiite (Do thve e le il ol piovicded Tor)
im] C= ddwd st ol corfrscis remsEiming o s dwd o i
PPV Ol S DR O el o
St =il Vil
P ﬂlnul-r-
1 L i il n-m'-nr'u:m- Lk n ba, e ]
o b D
Erk B Wi
o) Casnbred Salos Tos
Ak Mahassahiim WAt
ok lnaooirmen T
Taslal
(o) Tha Cosmpany ino party o hegaml g b thes newrnml courms of Buaninoan mrd desen ol eareect s oasooma of
fhae prfstaadings b Ave Ay advarie effec] o i inandial Sandifeans, resgills GF Ghefalesns of Saahh P
(el Thar Gulflosy of thio fosowl Gos i respeol O goending dispubed rreallers in fespecl of Sales Tas. iovcoims Tas, WVaT and
B wnE e BT 0] L] Ol TS LETEIYR A O D e O B e Fradtes sl irgg 1 A AR E A L L S L S R L T
BFAG 10 Lakhs (pravious pear Re, G340 10 Lakhe) Howsdar comipany hae maecds ihe provisions of Re. 204,17 Lakhs
The Comipany Ras taken el amcd ofhser st s NecEssary (o protsct s Absri i 1 ot s ss clminns

s lalasal faow

A6, Wtilizatiomn of procesds of pualeliod ight issue as o 210 March, 2024 is as winder:

Drirmar g licen Tortisl Bebirrsoted Sl

Loang v Masilkding VUL, D0
P larnd el Msckhinagsy g = 3 b BEIZ. GO
Plincollarnioous Fiknued Aouobe S, DO
Emn L v

- Balance amount to be epent

Fai Tasll Litdl ri, e balaroces aanount e hald in O Wi cags it Moanfadvances Sscoounts, Thars s Provwissoos fos
daubiful mdvaencans o ihe funa of s 10028 Lashs. Mending recovery of Bhal sdvnrsos, e amouni o Tor 1k il
Eriavbing U yaar 2O06-0T the Sompany rmacde o Folloey o Pl leeus and sonseduenlly raissd an ot of e, 13100 Lakihs

Ther mbymrehoddors ol e cormpany el Bee Arwesol Sorardl Rassting haeld oes 1 FElR -Hl.rl.l-'lurnlnl-l 2012 apmrovad wamibwlors in wlilicwloe
L SR LT ClE SR PR TR O AR DR AR AP T Wy O ELAAY A R D A
Chvennal of &t such othsr looalions as may bes decided by the Dosrd,. Dol of Be. 130460 Lakhs, Be, B30 Lakhs will bes uldscsd
Frniwh 1Fif LiALIBE A B ocadis OF publio iSfua and el S Sdid Lasfs w6l B iioem asliliBed edaasds of G iSauas Tha

clatail of atiligatngr of oioagereds of s 12000 jak i P &l

Ffl. Tree ivie descds For i&ncd fwceid }, s i, e o whaibin Aok G [ i Fuds il @ im e rocesas of Deingg
bramvn P read e Uiws naene ol Tha O PuEryy o 1 T Tungeifeaai s Foldings Priveis Limslod. Slasmp duly anad ol
laims @riss Sl G R Ssarre | @ any . afhall B ] e aticry g T wal Irasus ey BArrmakliae

L] 'rﬂﬁl' -ﬂlﬂﬂﬁﬂ
i
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,mmhmnmﬁmﬂrmmﬂm
w volmely by prerienid e isoocad) dindiriares.

1 Bubsikharss
[ETRICE D psi s & el s i e aioned ooty o et Sisad P 8 Incundree, Limesos) weth i olioaen Soegen sGesioeny
Hame of th sLBSI0Iy Country of Fropemen of Gwnarship
InCorpoaation Inierest
Tarah 1k Tirvies Sames LN Aron g
Faran ik il 10T 2wl el of B e 1o

AT

jRea.in lki)
Tarieh USA NG Taritn Miacie East FIE
Palicular Al a As &t Ay At Az
s | v sesen | 1oazez
iy -crmred s, = . . .
Curvomd gacts - Mawm 353 4% - -
[Total Aasats ) AT = -
P =cumeel Iabilrd TAIEAT| 410
e Ll didary E'r E LT 7] =
[Total Lisbilites (8) M| e - -
IM G501 =l =
The Corrgay's bt of roe] st o 0| 1007
| ryreg irrm ol milnEd M gl e
Cindgont oy 5 i : P
C e i 2 = i
i Gurnenarised Fnsncl Pralomce Of Tulrdones
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Terich USA IHS Zacits Misils Exat FIE
Particular at Anat Anat A
Ao roen] QAR | 1032003
T B o= 108308 - -
Lo T4 | ZEMTI = :
ProdiLoees badoes B {1ATLET - -
InE S - - -
[Prciit L by e e 1ATY B7) T :
olel COSTICAMEE et T 18.&3 = "
=] i Br B peer 1,558 1830 =T N
COMpany 'S S i pRoRAS 10| el 10|
rormpuny's s n DI 1% % 160%|
i 4 Aaivel i ola [ 1 100
] Aakedfrwsl nlormmaiion o Cooscialisled Feddem, i respEs] unclr sctweaiuin 8 o B Compesress &cd 513
{Mis.in lakhs]
Patsutar Hat Assais Share in Proftorioss | “.'""’I ""I'“::m mwl 'h“"i"
_ RS of
conmebtatea| A28 n::u At 31002004
1
— __| Incema |
Farani (113851} 455 ] 4300
Terin LA NG FI) W55 san ia
|E‘n|meI-d-:ltD|nFI ST = = o
TR TR O feL R O oo = = = -
Tatal 108,00 WG| eocg ﬁ
T — Shasw i batal
Purculsr Compeehensive income | Comprehansive incosss
A el A% of
AS Lol e s ARt T pedal
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1. Employee Benefits:
(A} Dafined Coniribution Plans:

Tt Cormpany M res geizend et Fodir=vmd Grnoarns iy anatemen of profl meed loas dor the yea i"’-hlr'““ll
Particulars H1s1 Warch, 2004 Jst March, 2023

[Cormbution 10 Evployees Provident Sund and Dther Furds 1615 a.ﬁl

Tatal 16815 8.53

(B} Dafined Benafil Plans :

I. [a] Contribution to Gratulty:
PP a0 Pr (LWL Ty P el AT B T BCCOLNIE DA LR 0N Bf SCTUSTE) vANIBTON AT dd Ol 87 Tha chi oF T pamr Tha Corpany Sold S0 Rl 87 ALl oy 8 anssim )
Dataila undar irdl AT-10 8o tha st applicabis i fumished Balows

(R=.In Lakhs)|
Farticulars F188 Barch, 2024 Jikt March, 2033
Arveoannl ¢ nised in Balance Shest
|Muuummm 28287 280 22
Foir wnbos of phan gesets i g

Funded Status

Expanss recognised in the Statemant of Profil and Loss
Cormanl sarvce ool 1313

577
L AT r] 3058 1567
Tolal axpanss chnrn&ﬂ ta Prodit and Loss Account BAT FB.Ag

Amount recorded as Other Comprahansiva Incoma
Actuseial |GainyLons recognaed tor B pencd %08 808
o o Pl sty anciudirsg ! nbane
Total Actuarial (Sain)Loss recopnised in OCI - 5.08 8.08
Reconciliation of nel labilitg/{Assel)
Urpereng nad lasbdity 200 33 28580
L g T T e e Y Y|
Ay bl 1 opeing balancs

aar

Exprrien chargsd 1o the Statement of Proft and Loss 28,80
Corirbarbon pad {1118 x|
Cthar Comerehanaive income (DC1) 508 880
Closing net defined banalit [labillly{assal) - 29287 28022

Movamant in banafit obdligation
Opsning defined bansfit obiligation 20033 2E5.50
rbarer o e benedt oblganon 308 1587
Courtarnil iy Seal 57T 13.13
Banehis pad (11.19) (33.68))
Austuarial {GanpLoss om ohbgaton 508 .04
Closing of defined benafit obligation 28247 288.T0

Mowamant In Plan Assets

ﬂ'ﬂ’l‘lhﬂ falr value of plan assets

A TR e Beer g e e ihed Ol lan DEMECE
Rpbrn on plan asseis sxgiuding indemest income
Irbarend biene

Banalid pasd

Closing falr value of plan assels

L]
L]

4
1

L]
L]

L]
L]

Assat Information
raurer managed funds - -
Oithers = =
Grand Total

Principal actuarial assumptions

|I:~u-unmuu| T.25% T.A8%
o alaon e (o | 5.50 % 1o T %) 5.50 % 1o 7 %
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Fmaﬂmﬁmwm Tumad v tha fust year

Sratadly
A quasnifiabve penariydy anafyu for sigrelcant susumpion ae at 31 Maerch 2003 s as shosn balow Eﬁ'\yﬂ'lmml’m
Ih'-p.m oy bt Reerna ] OO0 QTR0

Rt
1% Decreass 21.30 20 80
JRate of increass & Salary
1% it 21,50 F R
1% Detreass (19.00) 18 103
Vo, Frodie of Oefuped bl S0 s FETMFW
i
1t Tofgeing Year 25.00 B 83
Drad fodiceying Year 0.89 2 a8
T Tolosing Vear 1.00 0,48
L Aodioreing Year 4,68 1283
B Bodinedng Ve 2.1 2303
|5-.rnul'h:|l':|‘r'|m B.05 100 AN
. Leav'e Encashment:

[ Thae Coeiesetry Flrs (ESof B Tt Rl dng BYaaavs of SIEIESEnr oF proft Sl liad b the o= ar

{Rs.In Lakhs)|

Particulars st Fizd Azt March. 2023
Amount recognised in Balance Sheet
Promant vaius of ettt otiig 38 3
Fiuk withss of plin Sidets - -
Funded Status
Enpense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

TEnl Sefvios ool o8 1.68

0.7 2.0

Total expense changed to Profit and Loss Accownt 1.76 5.9

Amount recorded as Other Comprehensive Income
Acriuisial | Gain)Loss recognised ko (he period
Rehurn on Plon Assets exhafng rel imerest

Tetal Actuarial {Galn)/Loss recogniaed In OC1 .

1.52
1.62

10.53)
19.53)
Reconciliation of net labllity/[Assel)
et kb dity 30.38 28.37
1.78
022}
{0.53)

5.0
15,54,

o Comprehaness ircomes {C01) I; 1.52
Cloning met defined benalit liability\(asaet) - .39 30,348

Experias charged 13 e Stabament of Proft and Lo

Movensent in benelit obilgation

Opening defined benefit obligation 30,38 Ta.ar
Fiteresl on defred benelt obigaten 078 zm
Tl Syt ool .87 3 58
Barafits pakd {0.22) 15 500
Actuiial (Gan) Lo on cbigation 053] 153
Clesing of defined benefit obligation 3.38 .38

Movement in Plan Assats
Cpening falr value of plan aaseta
Adusbmant 1o opning faer valoes of plan sasts

§
|

Clesing falr value of plan assets

Asset Information

rrsurgr P ged Tunds - =
e = =
Erand Total = =

Principal actuarial sssumptions

Raute of Inbargs! e danciniing T.25% p.a. T 35% pa.
Falary groreth 5.50% to T 00% p.a 5.50% to T.00% pa
ithoemd Fale 1004 al al ages] 1. 00 ol apesl

[Tha Indan Paiament hin apgeovd the Code on Socunl Secutity, 2020 whish would mpscl The contribaBons By the Campany Keaitk Precddent Furel and Gratuty. The
ot A PO e Tl ONARDES N8 BOVADS 8 EE D0 D re0feed Bl thel Traal nubes. a0e el 70 Do ranosd. Trs Company will ey DUl &R & NUSton of the M
B P e Al i T BREansih SIMESEnrs o the ekt in o hleh e Cate Beonees sFeEioe i e feLaRsT fuled are poBlmhed
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40. Related party disclosures:
(&) Mame of related parties and nature of relationships:
[t ] iid A5 0 T L #h o H i willf e i T e s b

Name of the Related Party Relationship

|2 Brin E el |Limsod

Enhﬂ T s xlillss I'ﬂ‘k'zll'r-ht
4. Dria Vilone) Travess Lmited

5 Birlods O s Priwisdi | iredind
6. [Erenie ROioennned Chismeoaos Frrsslimined
1| Kl Ineeslimsnibs L s s

A Prilasira Tarwtias P Priviiks Limisd
m S Private Ll

], Edwicdnn Wi L st

11, Gl Précaison [ae nakog e Limies Cmpm—sn
13 Chavarmrsh Babasutssrtmian b Parsoaned (Chaa! I'eancisl THBos b
1A Soweid Sobnki
fall. Ml imarsh Poie Hoiy Mlanadesimeel Parsonng] (W b D’l"‘l:':ﬁl
m.lur LT R o
1 Sachans Svinash Pan

17 s Sheenp Bhaosnio

1. Brburviln 53 ir-r‘;'lu - o salas
10 Ganesh Ramaesh Mshssnoraicar (W.EF 15.07.3023]

g

f

Lo wilh Cofmh Drsciorn

%t Balamcr of Recoivable, Payable, Depasies, Loan oir, |—Daianee Carried to Dalance Sheet (ied) Balancs Carried ts Palance Shaet CUrt)
’ a3 st 31033034 mn At 31-03-3033
where Tramsction have Takem Flace Rrcebvabi Fayabl Receivable Fan ablr
lﬂ 3T
1) Bay Menagemen Pares —
Plwwil A fmach P [ *L)
{1l Emimrprines Owened or |1 Difla Prbcinicn Technologis
mignificanty influsnced By Ltz
ARBGEEE S personnE| o m o L 1
Emir relalinces.
UB]TWHm dlll"ll"'ﬂ'll woar ended 31st March, 2024 with related parties ; IRs.in Lakhs)
Pairtleular kv Managemeni Prrvomnel Meantly imluenced b
A)0A-E0Ld A1 0% BTy 304 2034 A1 0% B0y
[Extnangs e Lows .
[T —— — -
Lopn Advangs Hts il R 1500, 00 -
F-va Eﬁwﬂﬁl a ]
Lo & Pubwieisi - s Ol
Sald of GHddh o - -
ol e e Ty =] 14 5 a
) Disclosura in of material transsction with related rties du ar included in (B} abowve: {Rs.in Lakhs)|
Particulars 2023-24 072-23
|1, Baile of Goods
& Loans & Advances
|| Rl Pt S Tl:'..lulli:'lla-\. L ralind A
3. Remineration Pasd % 15 &i

A1, In B opdrmnn of Thes Pasiedd Cosnsid Akt Loairi st Adhaindse haid nowniks ao redaluslion n B oodieeny comeriis ol Buousse ol kil mapus 1 thay semasund il wBach ey nm
pLo1ttal

a2, Bpgmert Hogpaorfag
[ P &

¥ L w
Tha& y n i s mlimEy Fei and hetds Tl Pimasy Duoandnd daed maenl IfSnTiabion &6 fdl apiabile
|RE. In Lakhs|
Particulars 202324 H0EE-23
a} In bedin

11 Sade of Products [T
7] ol 3 FES

b Sk b Inedia

i} Sai of Products .

i} St et : |
|'I'mlltnmn from Sperations 1_1@ 18,405 59
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43, Dischersured in reapect of Deraalives Invinaments:
Derivaiive_instruments sulstandings as at s Warch 37524 Rs. NIL. {Previous Year HIL)

44, Balgoe Confamatons-

4. Tha balance of Trade Payabien. Trads Receivabies, Loam a5 Advinces, Deposits, Current Lisbies. Bomawings $om olhers ¢l e coraidensd 48 par books of Socount,
i 1o panding recorediations by the management and thins dines] confimalonds wene nol S&01 B T parbes. In Ta openion of the sanagement, Snce T armaunl due 1 from
frepe parbies ane fully payatie recoverable, no matenal diference is expecied o anse al i e of sefement. equirng Focounting efed n as on 3TN0

B Tha Compaey o cumenty in fia proceas of lefing the mousss of rads payable 1a Eu Jay Global Ventues Privais Limited snd teds recstabie from Mangs Casitsl LLC aa
Foet bharss, &5 a7 appicabie e &8 aopleable and after T2 necessary contmation will be cblaned from the pares afle e 1ame.

Pantunl 15 the above, T Company hid necsived & legal rotion on TROGT003 om Ea Jiy Giobal Yenhures Privins Lisited 1o wBich e Company hik S b responis on
MWDE 022, Acoordengly, e cOMPanTy had cebermined thal T ned amount recehathe feom the group B R, 150 Lakna which B ender slonessid reconciiaton’iegal deapute.

The company had recehed Turther communication in tha regands fom e Advocates of Ess Jay Global Ventunes Private Lissted on 1D0R0ZY for which the company has
provided resporded of IT0S2003 theough T Companty sdvotales. Besides, T company Ras slso send 3 foral iegal noboe i3 Mang> Capital LLC on 0402023 aaking them
1o chear fhes duss. A on dals, ths company has not recessd oy further commanicalon in regends o the sars.

2. Tha Comgany hat nol ok 1 ot form il wandons deganding MEAME stifus. hence withoet the rel ety prowikion i mel made S renel abilty Sorwands they
A ® i 200kl 0 of 3100T00 a8 ol M Sioduned remted 10 MISKE & Sl RAErOpning i abience of wenificaton of MILE parmed,

&5, The company has deciand o lackout of s Khapoli un in Movember. 2013 and e same has been aaled a8 @ Secontirgsd undl! speration ror the quarter ended J)-04-
20 and the deapicsl urit'operation hire aiag been considensd i Saoonfimed operalions in socoidirce with Ind A5 105 - Non-Coment Axsets Held for Sale and Dincontiresd

Ciperatons’.

48, The Company had enbered info a MOLU with Tribus Real Estate Pat. Lid. [TREPL) for iking rrver the ormpany’s bank loans. as reflecied saries in the company’s books based
ot berms agreed 1o bebesen the Comgany and TREPL TREPL wl negotiate with e lerding Danks AR Cy o sefte their duss amicably sther treough One Time Setement o
Sthatuiie on scoaptatle Wima and lakedver 8l sesuied laans of the Comparny fram Banks oge®er with seourities o¥aned 15 the Banka by ®a Company. Aa gar MO, TREFL
WSy MU T O Thidd Seoustr B thi COMPARY MEEyE T RRSunT AU0ed i KDL T mevsinil 85 th saninl 5aid By TREPL has b haw i S Bosunh i

Loan feoems Others. Bamk/ARC s holding morigaged securites which ane nof yed assigned in faver of the TREFL.

AT, Condeoriae of bankd hid Wi SE55A uH3ET SPeumiaben 55 Retoninnbss of Fransial Axiets Shd Ertsrce=anl of Seouriy bkl At 2002 i Fabmuley, 2014 bl sl
RO el SNy B repdy e armounl of Rs 10319 Crores Iowarss e dues 3 on 31 .00 2074 within sisty days. Theneafer B oongorium of banks save tilen symbolke
possesson on 5508 5014 of the immovable aasets o the Khopoll unit and fied o case for [aking physical possession | =hich will be neviewed airesh by Ineent Assets
Securinaton and Reconifnasbon Privale Limited wncs the laan has been seiigred 13 them by bank on 31032018

48, The ret worth of T CoPpany &3 per T definiion given in the Companies &1 201 3 continiess o Be nepabive &8 o 3103-2004 doe 10 socumialated iases. Cordidernng
siralegc undersiarding with supplers/omsiomens, the company & on the nevival mode and & operating some ol T units. Ao, the Company's Board of Dwrectons (The Boand | any
exasining availabie opSon 10 further intrease alesincome from cperations. Barming wnioresen droumitancis Bayond T control of the Company, the Board s confident abogt
T Company’s abiity 1o contivus &5 8§ 9oy concem. Based thersupon and g the projecied i cash i, the Compary kas prepared on & gaing
CONCEm o
4&meu-mmnmmhmmnmmu-_r-muuwm11m1m1mmgmmurmseum1mmj

SEN Begalaton for Issue of Global Ceposdary Receipts (PG0R L On 18072021, the Company appealed aganst the aforementioned crder. The fnal heanng was completed on
SRO02E, and SEBI ived the Fnal nding on 21003003, Ak par the rdng, e Cosgany's kepeal wink Lty veheld, e delbarmasn] o shorined i the s aleady

Al vl PRty il Seonbiied from Re. 10 Srofed b5 R, 25 1o, T bems B Been provaded i B sk of sosourts of i Company 58 ol 310372023 and iyl 1 be pasdl
s of 312024, A on date, SEE Pas Med & ol appeal with Supsesss Courl againat the sares on 0TIDEI023 As on dale, the SOmpany hid nod recthned any Bather
SOMmUnCINon B regands 1o B kame,

50, For the puiposs of valuing its ireinfoned, Te company wiid the wiighled average oot lichrique and mepomed a0 inveatonry vilue of Ra 108847 Lﬂ'ﬂﬂﬂﬂ-i'ﬁﬂﬂ.bﬂl‘
o the added vanabie coats connecied with manulaciunng e goods, the valus of Inished goods, work in peogress, and scrap Bemes i done manually rafer than being procuced
kB wyatem.

E1. There ane ceriadn non-operating current bamk accourds of the Company. The bank statements and balance corfirmations as on 31002024 for fwese accounis oould not be
cbiained: e company has prosided for e full amourt (B3 43,52 Lakhs] pending clanfcatons confimatons from respectyve Banks.

57 Dwrng P Saplieniar, 2003 qubiter, th Company REl Piciasd B ne-Spaenng sobize u'i 140 of Insme T A, 181 Rar AY 2016-20 for whizh it i B nitum of Ingome
wistnedn the income B departmend kas aleped thal here s a compleie cessation of labiily i the hands of the Compary 'with regands o principal amoun of loan and

wrlerest papable on lcan” norslaSon o iy Mon-Perdorming Assets wilh vanous bark. The Comparry has made necessany submission o T AuthorBes ard submession 5

oy T LTI P BTy B demand

53, Durng the June, 2023 quarer, The Company had recerved a lefier on bom Desclorate of Enfovcement under Foreign Dochange Management Act) on 229052021 drecing T4
company o submil certan recorms'doouments s ksted in the sad letier persuant 1o order u's 1T of Fonesgn Exchange Maragemant Act, 188% nead with Sechon 1 3308] of the
Trsermy Thin At 10871, Iy PESponEs 15 the Jh th Company had JuBmimed T Pigqutils Sooomentl 1 i SRpRT=enl. AL on 2008, T SOMBANY RS ROl Shosiad By urrer
EORILINGMGOR I Fegands i T same,

4. The Company has recerved @ show cause notion u's 1484[0) ol Income Tam Aot 1881 on 010372004 for &Y 202021 in respect of aoquasston of Mon-Performang dssals by
lrveprt group. Tha Company Bae made neciiadry iebmitsion of 100002004 1o S Authares. On 15080004 e Cormpany han reosivesd notics W' 148 of Incorme Tax Acl, 108
5 reaiaiia the incoms of b and e e retun within B0 days Bo= the notice. TR Company & in proceis o file the delurn as per ula 1463

5 Dwring e quacter ended 3100200, e marageen! 5ot assrsied the prosislons for expanis made in edder yean for quality claim and sxpart freight and based Tenecn]
rivenied prTsions: in e Socounts in nespect of ceran partes and discioted Tue same under other income & provikion within back amourting 1o R, 484, T Lakhs.
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50, Discicamre A% per saction 188 of the Companies act, 2012

detalis of loans, guarantees and invesiments under Section 186 of the companies act. 200 nead with the companies rules. 2004 are as Tollows

57. Fair values of financial asssta and financial Fabilities:

(i} Valuatzn All fnansial Faluments aie nitaly 9 q sl gk thy ie-maanred a foif vakow as depcribed balow, The lain value of finassial sssets &nd Rabiite s are

iPechadad 1 R BMOUNT B which T ETnen Loull be ascRanged B 8 CUNES PRAABERDN Babawen T wiing PEMSA, STar B0 i 8 forced oF laudaton sale. TR aer valus of

IFresatmgnd in quoted Equity Shares. Borshh, Govermmiant Securifas. Traasury Rills and Muteal Funds b measured 81 gualed price o HAY. The leir valug of ®a remaining fnancidl

FElTUTSS B Sermined uaing diucounied cash e sralyain. The Bnsncsl STruTent e caleponEed inls Toes el Based on T gt used 19 arre 51 fair valus
TR S dSoritesd Db Ll 1° Doted prices |Unsfusied] in scihe rarkets for dentosl sstets of bablties: and Leved 2° Inpots 0w Tuan the Quaobed peices

irvchadad ‘within Lavel 1 that are chaarcable for the anset or liasiity, @8 directy or indirectly, Lowal 3 Vilyation bichnizua tor which the lowes! livel nput that in aign$cant 1o thy

i kel MSEILTSMEN IS nobisrable. The carying vakes o the Inancal insmarents By Colegerss wiee B4 oo

Tha ledleremng o B hindaschy fod determunng and decisarg the lar value ol fnancial Faluments by valuabsn lechnagus,

vl 1 - Crudtd pricha (uniduiled] = sctws markets for Herbeal siiebi of haldtiwg

“Lavend 2 = Inputs othier thas quated sroes istheded wihin Level 1 thet are cEsarcable for the aieel of RaSily. s Sirecty (L6, 83 prioss) of indrecty [Le. derived rom prces)

i} Demils of Investmens msde &fe given in mome ne s
i it &l |odns

Ll D « Inguts fof tha E538% & babies thal & =20 based o ooder sl 2aia! J808 (mobaaras e mgush
Ko financial asseislabings hav been vaked usng yvel | 1Er vakie MEFSLITRMETEs.
Thas foilcreing teths prssanty falr valus Risranchy of seests B kabiltay maavored af farr salos on 8 reoamng besis

Ra.in Lakha)
As st 316t March, 2024 A5 ot ¥t March, 3023
ety ‘Lwvwl af b \Lawel il il B Ll
el e I R

[Financial Assota
At Brmsoartined Cosl
Traede receyskies E.m & TOh FFI -
Cash and cash equbpients 4307 B -
Egsk balanad ctfar than Lash and La3 aduiabesr LR [ a0 ] 3
Loarm and advarsen 1.672.18 184233 -
E'!Mffmr:lﬂnhh - o -
.M: FYTPL - - - -

Thqmngmnurmmlhhl Ak And SAYR SgUl S 370 othed SRtk DAARZEL. 08T ahd B3 AR EE athe TRancal a484 andther Cerent assels e
consdered o appronimaie ther fal values due bo ther shor iem natare

[Financial linbilities

| &t Bmoriised Cost

Berraings P BB R -
Traeds Papabiss B4 21230 -
Cithar fnarscial Rabiltien m 413308 -
shar current labilties 6.600.18 6108 :
AL FVTPL = = = =
Tha tarying armaunts of boenrearg, Yode payaties, olhel Pancal hakites and othes Surren! ek ) e b gie Fan Tar vahees dus 1o Tear e baren

naturs. Thay ane classfied as bavel 3 tair vaiues in T falr vslus Resancsy due b the inchmson of unobseraabls g ncuding own 80 oEnNSIPaTy Cred risk

58. Financial risk manesgamant objectives and policies:
Tha Cosrpany & suposed 0 vancss fnancial raks. Trese risks ste cabegorized into marost sk, cradi risk and Sguadity risk. mw.ﬁnmwmumﬁ

the Boand ol [ 3 @ Faiuses on g keng teim e abcrt seem caih e, The Comparny does nol engags B ading of fnencial aiet = ¥ 3
{A) Market risk:
Marke! rish o T b the! B fai vabus of fuluie caad Bows of a b ol it il i Eacauae o chasges in marsl prices. Maike! rak compnes thiwe rpes of nek,

inderent rte k. cwmency risk a0 other price mek, such B squly price risk g commedty nek, Financisl struments sftecied by mackst iak ncude bornpeings a0 derioatie
francul inatnarants
(i) bvbirreal rake risk:

Irtarwal rabe ik o B el thel e Tar walos e Aetune cash Seea of a b i @il sl Buch (- of chasgea m marked iiedesl rabes. The Company's sepoiuns 12
rink Gf chianges in market nheoesd rates relates primanly o P Compeny s long-tenm debi cbligationn with ficabrg inleest rates

{if} Forsign currency risk:

Tha Carrgany & 55 foredg ¥ rale ariing maieky en b 3. axport ol goads and ol wlves | Fordign curresy s are g wilhy
o 1] ﬂ.ng- kaing foreard conlracts,
Fmip curraney axposurs that are not hedged by forward contracia as at 31st March. 2024,

g Amoust [USD] 202334 | Amoune (USD) 200223
1. Tem Lsan T — =
2. Dwbtors BL62, 78852 £0,41,7T79.62
[3. Ot Payazies 8.73.644.45 8.44.817.57
4. Other Recaivabieg 15765488, 25% 15765488.29 *
* Pl provinien for bl pgvance has besn mads aganes this amoant
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] Cradit risk:

wol ek i e ek of Snancie’ e b the Tompany e oUSTNS OF COUNISTETY 5 8 Teancisl npmament tade 10 mael B Conmachay obliganonda. Credit gk srisss principaly
tha stalulony daposils wilh regealony agenches and #eo anses Som cash held =& banks s~ financial insdtutons. The Manmem arposas b oedi rek & sgel 1o the
airying velus of the fnancial axsets. The chiecive of managng courenparty tredt risk i 19 preves s in finensial The Cempany th credit uality of the
BT DR, DAY 1l BESSunl thid SHARZIE BIEANA, SEEl Rupaiaete B ot (82100,

Comeany Imis B sxposne 15 credit ik of caph hald wsh banks by dealing w78 highly rated banky and inpliubicrs and retaring aMcient baances in bank sosoursy reguing
Sl B NS Soarabons Lot Thi MEsagersnt rividd T Dank Sccounch on reulsr basis and fmd drawdoens ane plinnad 1o ansurs Tal this B sl surples cash
N bank acooents. The Comparr does nol foreser Ay Cred risks on daposils with regasiory suthortes.

€ ) Liquidity risk:
riski i thol riaks That s Company w8 nol e abbs 5> mee its finamclsl cbigatiors &8 thiy become dee. Tha Company sanages is bqueity sk by snsuning, s e g
. That it will abwart Buves sulScant bauidy b rad! 24 Gabitisn when dus

Rl Balore analyse the company’s fnancisl Rabites ino reivanl meter e based o0 el contralusl matises for

klﬂlwhu at 315t FurL] Lasd then 1 year 12 ywars 2.5 yaars Above § year
Girorsngs 2 155000 4 54 T 128 T
Trade 5 g 1 64050 4,837 74 3 EE 13 )
Dithar fnancial I9EISas PR FTEH T00.18 [FET TE005T
[ a1 313t March, 2023 Less then | year 1-2 year: -5 years Above 5 jears
i LX) 14,18 T 2198743
N ETFE] % 740,32 T FEFIE] -
413306 0478 33807 Z11811 BTaiTe |

54, Capial managemeni:
Pt thi purpeds of the Cospany’s capial managerent, captal ncutes nised squly captal, shers premurm Bl ol ot e2uily raeived elribulable 12 T sgquily halden. Ths
ry olbjeciive of e Compayy's caphal masagement |s o macksize the sharsholder vaius and 1 snsure the Company's abily 10 coninue &5 & QiR CONCEM.

- - g et e hotal dabl in proportion o i deenall Faanding afruciume, L8 equity and debe Total Sabi hy prisas of b ingh from backa
Ewumwmm Thoe Compey AgEs the Capaial sirocire &nd rakes Sdusimaents 1o & in the kgl of changes i econoin condibons and the nsk
sractenakicn of e underlyng Brsets.

| Particilars (1 st 2023

i} Ternd sguity |25.612.32)

(s Total Skt 2151614 21,924 45

Ji) Cvaesll fnancing (il 14,170,641 [3ETT 86)

(el Gearing rates () (5.15) {5 95)

Ld. Corporate social responsibility:
{4 Tha pravislorn atipuleted urder pection] 35 of the Comzankes A1 5013 ane not applicabie 1o e company faf the year as thans has besn no profits for tha last thres years
Febgativn et wiith and e luimawer b Salow the kit speciied

(B e oipansiiue had BeRt DL b3 B related pary. o celatioa 1 DR eapeeditee &8 pi neAS 24 Related Farty Ciaclosunes

1, Disclosure under Micro,Small ond Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED)
thas Mazin, Sreall and Madisms Enlee prises Caviopaant Aot 2008 (MSMED] whith camw inds fonos bos Oetober 02, 27008, camain Sasleuns §ne rigured 1o B msds
wabing o MM, Sn the base of the information and records aveiacie wih the compery, B folowing dadourss are made for Ta amoud dus o Micrg and Seall Dierprines.

LT ) A an
_3iar Mareh, Fdd Itk Manth DIEd

(] Prncipsl smceant dus 2 80y supplier s ol T e e 24T BT a
(i) Inbereat dus o B pricipal amsunt urgald a2 the yaar snd 80 any suppliss - "
(il Amount of Intsrest pald By the company n Barma of sacBan 18 of the MIMED, along «#h the amcunt of B
[eaymnent made b the suppies beyend fe apponied day during the acseuntng year A .
i) Paymand mode o the erfspeses beyond spooenied date under secton 10 o MEMED = x
Eﬂ Amount of Inerest dus and payable for the parad of delay in Pakng piymes? which ha been pass st

M'E 4 diny 5 s par. But wihcul adding T wil i e undas MSAUED L =
(W) Astcunt of Intered? accrusd and mnang wrpaid ab the ed of aach accoentng e and e .
wi]  Ambust ol Turthed Sieredl femasnsg dus Sl pagable e o B ol chaden plies, UnSlSuch date « R e
taraan JUSE 55 BOOVE B8 SCEaly pad 10 e Bl anleeprisat. for the purposs of SElE-EN0R 85 & decuciize - =
parcitum usder Saction 23 of the LISMED:

. Previous year figures have beon regrouped! reclassified to conform presentation as per Ind AS as required by Schedule ll of the Act.
hé aooampanying motes are an insegral part of thess financial SN MENtS.

Pea L Mdvchd Fingott of Freen Clske For snd on bshall of Board of Direciers of Zeeith Sesl Pipss & Induséries Limiled
CHSPAND OO LLP L - LISQ0LIH s PLoO I T

Aot ra,

rm Plegnkabion Mo, 131 Z188W 100044 Puruwhoties Soravars Hinal Pols

Diiraeiior ‘Wials time Dirsctor
g Jaeral Do GR4a88E3 DM, AT IEED
L
[l ol P 5 NOED
o B B Sirvaness Bt Salankd
Diadur 2500 by 2034 Crigd Financial Oticer  Comparny Sscrsiry
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B3 1.

Wi,

wiil,

X,

- banks or financial institutions are not in agreement with the books of accounts.

* (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermadiary shall:

. disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or amy

Disclosure of Transactions with struck off Companies -
The Company did not have any trantactions with companies struck off under Section 2438 of the Companies Act, 2013 or
Section 560 of Companies Act, 1956 during the financial year.

The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company

far halding any Benami property.

The Company has not been declared a3 a willful defaulter in current year but in earlier years the company has been declared
a5 a willful defaulter by any lender wheo has powers to declare a company as a willful defaulter at any time during the
financial year or after the end of reporting period but before the date when the financial statements are approved.

The Company do not have any cases where quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the Company with

The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is vet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory pariod

The Company have not traded or invested in Cryplo currency of Virtual Currency during the financial year

The Company have not advanced or lpaned or invested funds to any other person{s] or entity{ies), including foreign entities

directly or inderectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by ar on
(o) bahalf of the Company [Ultimate Benaficiaries), or

(b) provide any guarantes, security or the like to or an behall of the Uitimate Beneficiaries

The Company have not received any fund from any personis) or entity(ies), including foreign entities [Funding Party) with
the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwize} that the Company shall:
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified n any manner whatsosver by or on
[a} behalf of the Funding Party [Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

provide any guarantes, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,
(bj

The Company does not hawe transaction which is not recorded in the books af accounts that has been surrendered or
ather relevant previsions of the Income Tax Act, 1961)

The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the
Companies (Restriction on number of Layers] Rules, 2017
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[Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section |3) of section 129 read with Rula 5 of the Companies |Acoounts] Rules, J0014)

Staternent contaning alient features of the financial staternent of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures

PART "A”;

subsidiaries [Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in’)

| sL
! Mo

Marne of the Subsidiary:

Jenith Middle East F2-LLC

Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if deferent from the holding
company s req:u:lr‘tinE period

31" March 2024

Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the date of the relevent
Financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries

AED

Share Capital

AED2 216670

Resepdes & Surplus

Total Assets

AED(2216670)

Tatal Liabilities

Investrments

Turngwer

Priofit f{Loss) beforeTaxation

Prowision forTaxation

Profit f{Loss) afterTaxation

Proposed Dividend

|'ﬁ of shareholding

100%:

| S
i Mo,

| Mame of the Subsidiany:

Zenith [UISA) Inc.

2

Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if deferent from the holding
company's reporting period

317 December 2023

|
' Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the date of the relevent LD
! Financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries
! Share Capital LIZD20000
| Reserves & Surplus UsD (7, 70,023 86]
I Total Assets LD 4,25,741.34
! Total Liabilities LsD 4,25,741.34
I Investments .
| | Turnover USD NiL
| Profit before Taxation LSD [2941.03)
! Provision forTaxation .
Profit after Taxation LSD (2941.03)
Proposed Dividend .
|'ﬁ of shareholding 100%
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Maotes: The following information shall be furnished at the endof the statement:

1. Mames afubsidicies which are yer 1o commerce operations

2, Mames of subsidiaries which haee Basin gquidated or sold during the year,

Fart B Associates and lodnt Venturos
Statement Pursiant to section 125(3) af the Cormpary 2013 related to associate and jaint vantures, The Company does not
hawe any associates and joint ventures,

Tha accomparying notes are an integral part of these financial statemnts
ol

Ag Fer Dur Attached Report of Even Date For and on behalt of Zoand of Deireciors of
Fror CES P AND COLLP
Ldanith Sted Fpes & industnes Limited
Chartesed Accotmbants CIN-L29220MH1950PLO011773
Firm Hi.",a_l!‘:l'l':lllfﬂ"l ML 1312 WA 10008 Eﬂ;ﬂrllﬂrﬂ Sodiavans winal Pole
oh s i
Dhananagy Lalswal B ARG S =
Pl Aall r .
B Cheel Financial Cfficer Sonal Solank
Membership Moc 187685 Lampdny SSCralary

Hlaca: Mumbai
Dialte: 287 May, 2024
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¢ Pioneers in the manufacture of ERW pipes in India
¢ Imported machinery from M/S Mannesmann A.G.Germany
WHY ¢ Producer of a wide range of quality products:ERW Black & G.I. pipes
and Spiral Pipes along with types of coatings for various kinds of
critical & non critical applications
¢ Awarded with various Export ExcellencyAwards (awards)
¢ Single Largest exporter of galvanized pipes toUS from India
Capability to plan & execute large slzed orders for cllent specific
Requirements (e.g. executed the single largest order to supply 16,000
MTERW pipes for Saudi-Iraq Border)
¢ Global supplier of ERW pipes to more than 83 countries for various
prestigious projects
¢ Extensive dealer network across India
¢ Provides value for money
+ Reliable source of quality pipes
Trusted brand for more than 50 years in the global market

ReliableSourceofqual¥
Pipes.

PIONEERSINTHEMANUFACT
UREOFERWPIPESININDIA

PROFESSIONALST
ANDARDS Established in 1960,
Work with us involves commencedcommercialproductioni
acarefully planned n1962.The
seriesofsteps,centeredaro first In India to produce ERW pipes.
undaschedulewestick =]
to and
N dailycommunica

tion.





